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Financial Highlight
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Return on average capital and reserves
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Return on average total assets
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2011 2010 ° Change
HMET S
zF

Forthe year S 000 Hikbo00 +- %

H: JV?FE’QIE L TiUNER Net operating income before impairment
i allowances 1,250,602 1,029,105 +21.52
Operating profit 1,131,501 730,938 +54.80
Profit before taxation 1,165,929 751,957 +55.05
Profit for the year 972,027 623,612 +55.87

. ﬂw;rﬁ
Q3 [ -
e Atyear-end Aot Hkbooo - %
A A Capital and reserves 5,302,656 4,729,977 +12.11
SIS W A Issued and fully paid share capital 300,000 300,000 -
e ARAE Total assets 44,112,208 41,066,624 +7.42
Bk Financial ratios % % %
SR A [k ! Return on average capital and reserves ' 19.38 14.12 +5.26
S [l 2 Return on average total assets > 2.28 1.54 +0.74
Ry S peag Cost to income ratio 26.43 29.03 -2.60
ey beag 4 Loan to deposit ratio * 63.63 62.64 +0.99
TSRS P Average liquidity ratio ® 42.14 41.68 +0.46
B A Lk Capital adequacy ratio ° 19.36 15.91 +3.45
F BEF

Profit for the year

R AR O A BREERT S

Average of beginning and ending balance of capital and reserves

I
Profit for the year

YA AUEED T e T S aREERY IS

Average of beginning and ending balance of total assets

. Cost to income ratio has been calculated after excluding the effect of Lehman

Brothers related products expenses recovery in 2011.

. Loan to deposit ratio is calculated as at year end. Loan represents gross

advances to customers. Deposit also includes structured deposits reported as
“Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss”.

. Average liquidity ratio is calculated as the simple average of each calendar

month’s average liquidity ratio of local offices of Chiyu Banking Corporation
Limited for the year.

. Capital adequacy ratio (“CAR”) is computed on the combined basis that

comprises the positions of local offices and overseas branches of Chiyu
Banking Corporation Limited specified by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority
(“HKMA”") for its regulatory purposes and in accordance with the Banking
(Capital) Rules. The basis of regulatory capital calculation for credit risk,
market risk and operational risk are described in Note 4.4 to the Financial
Statements in this Annual Report. As a result of the change in the basis used,
the capital ratios shown above are not directly comparable.
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Five-Year Financial Summary

The financial information of Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited (hereinafter referred to as the “Bank”) and
its subsidiaries (together with the Bank hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) for the last five years
commencing from 1 January 2007 is summarised below:

2011 2010 2009 ? 2008 ? 2007 2
5 7 W L W L W L W L
= For the year HeE000  HK§000  HKS000  HK$000  HK$000
R IR EES Net operating income before
e impairment allowances 1,250,602 1,029,105 944,926 1,145,044 1,177,834
EENEF Operating profit 1,131,501 730,938 491,537 712,176 930,983
(Bl Profit before taxation 1,165,929 751,957 509,276 714,267 942,273
7] Profit for the year 972,027 623,612 423,264 592,144 776,589
» ST T HSET HBET HBET
rCEFSEEL - ?ﬁ
TR Atyear-end r{ ooo HK$'000  HK§000  HK$000  HK$'000

ErE M PR

Advances and other accounts 25,243,795 22,791,839 18,582,368 15,908,861 13,354,058

Ty AT Total assets 44,112,208 41,066,624 39,944,869 39,211,049 39,039,964
B Deposits from customer’ 36,032,369 34,577,588 33,817,255 32,218,306 31,517,480
Ff’,[ |§ﬁ?’i$ﬁ Total liabilities 38,809,552 36,336,647 35,844,209 35,461,610 34,747,101
SR R A Issued and fully paid share

capital 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000 300,000
T Capital and reserves 5,302,656 4,729,977 4,100,660 3,749,439 4,292,863
g Financial ratios % % % % %
I B A [ Return on average capital and

reserves 19.38 14.12 10.78 14.73 18.84
T ISR [l Return on average total assets 2.28 1.54 1.07 1.51 213
o o R Cost to income ratio 26.43 29.03 50.47 36.66 22.93
ey gy ! Loan to deposit ratio’ 63.63 62.64 54.10 48.97 41.70
1 HETER “U?[ 217 T2l 1. Deposits from customers also include structured deposits reported as “Financial liabilities designated at

R R Vﬁﬁiﬂl Ui
R T A -

T e

A
'FLE} ) T

fair value through profit or loss”.

STHE) > Il 2. Certain comparative amounts have been restated to reflect the early adoption of HKAS 12

(Amendment) “Income Taxes”.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis

Business Review

In 2011, the major global financial markets were ever changing. The unstable
US economy together with the aggravation of the European debt crisis posed
challenges to the relatively stable Asia Pacific economies. The Mainland China
has embarked on a new five-year development plan, the government tightened
the monetary policy in order to tackle high inflation and implemented high
quality economic structure to sustain the economic growth. At the same time,
Hong Kong continued to grasp its own competitive edge and grew in line with
the Mainland. Benefited from the relaxation of the offshore RMB policy, the
financial industry captured new business opportunities. Overall, Hong Kong
economy has been developing steadily.

During 2011, the uncertainties in the global market increased the operational
risk in the banking sector. Together with the saturated local market, the
competition in the banking sector was very intensive. In an extremely low
interest rate and high competitive environment, it became more difficult to
maintain profitability. Against this backdrop, the Group managed to capture all
kinds of market opportunities and achieved an inspiring business performance.

In a persistently low interest rate environment, the Group has introduced
various kinds of deposits products in response to customer needs of flexibility
and high interest rate return, such as High Yield Time Deposit, which allows
early termination but can enjoy relatively higher return compared with the rate
of savings account. Meanwhile, our integrated banking services, including the
brand of “Wealth Management” and “i-Free”, have been enhanced so as to let
our customers enjoy more comprehensive and convenient services. To capture
the RMB business opportunities, the cross-border trade settlement services for
corporate customers and RMB fund management have also been rationalised.
Meanwhile, our round-the-clock automated channels, including Internet
Banking, Mobile Banking and Phone Banking, are being enhanced throughout
the year. These new functions, which are welcome by our customers, in turn
strengthen our service quality and manage to expand the service scopes.

In order to cater for financing needs of individual and corporate customers, the
Group has offered a wide range of financing products, such as personal loans,
mortgage, operating cashflow financing, capital expenditure financing, etc.
The group has also offered cross-border integrated banking services to our
customers via our branches in both Hong Kong and Mainland China for
fulfilling their needs of wealth management and capital financing.

The Group has adopted an expanding business strategy in wealth
management services in response to the higher customer needs on wealth
appreciation. Apart from the convenient stock trading services, the Group is
enriching its product lines of investment and insurance businesses so as to
satisfy customers with different needs. Meanwhile, in response to the high
demands on cross-border settlement and remittance, the level of efficiency and
quality of trade finance services, remittance and currency exchange services
have been improved via streamlining the related workflows. Such services
enhancement should be beneficial to the development of the fee-income
businesses.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Business Review (continued)

RMB related business becomes our new revenue engine owing to the
development of the offshore RMB centre in Hong Kong as well as the
expectation of RMB appreciation. Our scope of RMB related business has
been enlarged significantly via provision of well diversified RMB related
services to individual and corporate customers, including RMB deposits,
currency exchange, all-rounded cross-border settlement services, etc. In order
to satisfy the investment needs of customers, the Group has introduced
various RMB wealth management products, such as RQFIl funds, life
insurance products and bonds. The Group is also providing comprehensive
and tailor-made RMB solutions to assist business development of our
corporate customers

During the year, the Group continued to enhance the management of its two
branches and the sub-branch in Fuzhou and Xiamen, aiming to provide better
services to satisfy different needs of customers. In addition, we devote dto
improve our cross-border services through the enhancement of our products,
the quality of the customer service teams, branch networks and cross-border
collaboration between our Hong Kong and Mainland teams in order to provide
our customers with more comprehensive financial services and cross-border
business solutions. In 2011, the persistent tightening monetary policy in the
Mainland imposed additional challenges to our Mainland business, but the
Group continued to provide more value-added services to our customers. As a
result, our Mainland business recorded an encouraging growth.

Financial Review

For 2011, the Group recorded a profit attributable to shareholders of
HK$972,027,000, increased by 55.87% from last year. It was mainly due to an
increase in net interest income as a result of higher net interest margin and
recovery of Lehman Brothers related products expenses. The return on
average shareholders’ funds and the return on average total assets were
19.38% and 2.28%respectively, increased by 5.26% and 0.74% compared with
2010.

Net interest income was HK$903,713,000, increased by 21.47% as compared
with 2010. Net interest margin was 2.14% or 23 basis points higher than last
year. Net fees and commission income was HK$268,695,000, increased by
1.04% from last year. Excluding the effect of Lehman Brothers related products
expenses recovery of HK$215,715,000, operating expenses increased by
10.65% to HK$330,585,000 and the cost-to-income ratio decreased by 2.60%
to 26.43%.

The Group continues to apply prudent credit risk management strategy. The
classified loans ratio remained at a low level of 0.03%. In 2011, the net charge
of loan impairment allowances was HK$4,225,000, as compared with net
reversal of loan impairment allowances of HK$665,000 last year.

As at 31 December 2011, the Group recorded an increase in the total
consolidated assets by 7.42% to HK$44,112,208,000. Loans and advances to
customers increased by 5.86% to HK$22,927,806,000. Customer deposits
also recorded an increase of 4.21% to HK$36,032,369,000.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Prospect

Looking ahead, global economic uncertainties will continue in 2012. The
market risk remains high for Hong Kong's banking sector. The Group’s
management will take positive yet prudent business strategies and policies to
ensure robust business growth. We will continue to speed up our business
scale development and optimise our business structure. At the same time, we
also aim to enhance the Group’s customer services and monitor our major
potential risks on a regular basis.

Our Group aims at providing flexible, convenient and personalised banking
services to our valuable customers and therefore will continue to enhance our
general banking services and products in response to the market development
and customer needs, such as cash management services, mortgage, personal
loans, corporate financing as well as cross-border banking services.

In order to strive towards excellence of our wealth management services, the
Group has already allocated more resources to enhance our integrated
banking services for this segment, including enhancing professionalism of our
service teams, providing valuable investment advice, introducing various
products according to the dynamic market conditions and customer needs as
well as offering investment portfolio management services for high netwealth
customers.

As the market in Mainland China still provide more business development
opportunities, the Group will put more efforts and resources, especially human
resource, to further expand our Mainland business and enhance business
supervision. Furthermore, the Group is planning to establish additional
sub-branches in Xiamen and Fuzhou, which will boost the services efficiency
and contribution of our Mainland business.

Risk Management

Overview

The Group believes that sound risk management is is crucial to the success
any organisation. In its daily operation, the Group attaches a high degree of
importance to risk management and emphasises that a balance must be struck
between risk control and business growth and development. The principal
types of risk inherent in the Group’s businesses are credit risk, interest rate
risk, market risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, reputation risk, legal and
compliance risk, and strategic risk. The Group’s risk management objective is
to enhance shareholder value by maintaining risk exposures within acceptable
limits. For details of the Group’s risk management governance structure,
please refer to Note 4 to the Financial Statements in this Annual Report.

Credit Risk Management

Credit risk is the risk of loss that a customer or counterparty will be unable to or
unwilling to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk exists in the trading
book and banking book, on— and off-balance sheet exposures of a bank. It
arises principally from the lending, trade finance and treasury businesses, and
covers inter-bank transactions, foreign exchange and derivative transactions
as well as investments in bonds and securities. For details of the Group’s
Credit Risk Management, please refer to Note 4.1 to the Financial Statements
in this Annual Report.



4 & a4y

DEHFHRUMEN A member of BOCHK Group

Chiyu Banking @eorporation Ltd.

TERRHFE 8)
RRTE (@)
e

1%5@;@1[4@@@1 %5 ot/ 71
Pl e Ll

S ) | e
LﬂHJﬁEﬁﬁ'r&Fﬁ,ﬁ[ﬁ i w A
FH (1R E g e ik

S il st

E’EI'T?V; *
ENiTES R N e JT S CE ey
FﬂE'E}?HEFE Ui s %H Ef{(ﬁfﬁlﬁh[ﬁi 4.2 .

HIF R

I Bk L Al -~ E R VG
TRiERAd 7 %J@gbp”’ﬁ“éf%mngqy
ARG (T o o & R [ e e =
e bt
P i) 55 B F= FIF’@”‘lEa palE El(%r?“llaa
s IASVEL o & TSR R e o E R A B Ll"pH
R T [/P41E‘EY*|?F'¢ i‘ ST 553
%Fﬁ}% 42-

gy S WIS R

By 2 B R RLE LT [N R Y 2 T
Py T lﬁ\/*ﬁmﬂ*UHF SEAD R RS
i s Rl J;FH; iw J é“r"ﬁ‘{[gi 13 F[J’J e
'?“ﬁsa (Ff R o T Yﬂﬁ‘f@* AR

SlAEHRRE T ff iiw%?@{u% ﬁi]Li
UREITEYE ol T A Bl A2
OIS F o BRSSO L)
I#?f%ﬁi § EIPIOIIYS - r«ﬁﬁ@
VS R T REAERI LR o T
WA 4.3 -

R

[ IR (A 5 5 *
i fl—ﬁpmﬁ R St

K B (R %#ﬁzmg@,tﬂ;f REAl
BT > RLELE T | ﬁ jﬁér&ij?ﬁ [ErSEtpo e o

BB TR ST jt?LﬂIEJFI » BT ;",4\
R P S
EX ﬁ'&@/ LEEE [Jlgzu F[ J%Lqﬁ FLE'H ”Ai/ FE*E'F”
jﬁé [ ﬁ'LyﬂJb*EFf E”ﬂ Uk’%ﬁif ﬂ]
Eo ﬂ'?‘rgg*"_ﬂ?:l F'[F‘fégjﬂ—

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Risk Management (continued)

Market Risk Management

Market risk refers to the risk of losses arising from adverse movements in the
value of foreign exchange and commodity positions and the trading book
interest rate and equity positions held by the Group due to the volatility of
financial market price (debt security price/interest rate, foreign exchange rate,
equity price, commodity price). The Group adopts robust market risk appetite
to achieve balance between risk and return. For details of the Group’s Market
Risk Management, please refer to Note 4.2 to the Financial Statements in this
Annual Report.

Interest Rate Risk Management

Interest rate risk means the risks to a bank’s earnings and economic value
arising from adverse movements in interest rate and term structures of the
bank’s asset and liability positions. The Group’s interest rate risk exposures
are mainly structural. The major types of interest rate risk from structural
positions are re-pricing risk, basis risk, yield curve risk and options risk. For
details of the Group’s Interest Rate Risk Management, please refer Note to 4.2
to the Financial Statements in this Annual Report.

Liquidity Risk Management

Liquidity risk is the risk that banks fail to provide sufficient funds to grow assets
or pay the due obligations, and need to bear an unacceptable loss. The Group
follows the sound liquidity risk appetite to provide stable, reliable and adequate
sources of cash to meet liquidity needs under normal circumstances and
stressed scenarios; and survive with net positive cumulative cash flow in
extreme scenarios, without requesting HKMA to act as the lender of last resort.
For details about Liquidity Risk Management, please refer to the Note 4.3 to
the Financial Statements in this Annual Report.

Operational Risk Management

Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal
processes, people and systems, or from external events. The risk is inherent in
every aspect of business operations and confronted by the Bank in its day to
day operational activities.

The Group has put in place an effective internal control process which requires
the establishment of policies and control procedures for all the key activities.
Proper segregation of duties and authorisation is the fundamental principle
followed by the Group. Corporate-level policy and procedure on operational
risk management are formulated by SCD and approved by RC.
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Chiyu Banking @eorporation Ltd.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Risk Management (continued)
Operational Risk Management (continued)

The Group has adopted the “Three Lines of Defence” model for its operational
risk management governance structure: all departments as the first line of
defence are the owner of operational risk and are responsible for carrying out
the duties and functions of self risk control in the process of business operation
through self assessment, self checking and self correction. SCD together with
certain specialist functional units in relation to operational risk management
within the Group are the second line of defence, which is responsible for
assessing and monitoring the operational risk condition of the first line of
defence, and providing them with guidance. In addition to formulating the
operational risk management policy and procedure, SCD, being independent
from business units, is the central management unit of the Group’s operational
risk management and also responsible for designing the operational risk
assessment methodologies, tools and the reporting mechanism (including the
capturing of data on operational risk events loss), monitoring the
implementation status of policies and operational procedures in the
departments of the first line of defence through operational risk management
tools, and assessing and reporting the overall operational risk position to
Management and RC. Certain specialist functional units are required to carry
out their managerial duties of the second line of defence with respect to some
specific aspects of operational risk. Besides taking charge of operational risk
management in their own units, these units are also required to provide other
units with professional advice / training in respect of certain operational risk
categories and to lead the corporate-level operational risk management. Audit
Division is the third line of defence which provides independent assessment
with respect to the operational risk management framework and is required to
conduct periodic audit of the operational risk management activities of various
departments / business units within the Group regarding their compliance and
effectiveness and to put forward recommendations for corrective actions.

The Group adopts the tools or methodologies such as key risk indicators,
self-assessment, operational risk events reporting and review to identify,
assess, monitor and control the risks inherent in business activities and
products, as well as takes out insurance to mitigate unforeseeable operational
risks. Business continuity plans are in place to support business operations in
the event of an emergency or disaster. Adequate backup facilites are
maintained and periodic drills are conducted.

Reputation Risk Management

Reputation risk is the risk that negative publicity regarding the Group’s
business practices, whether genuine or not, will cause a potential decline in the
customer base or lead to costly litigation or revenue erosion. Reputation risk is
inherent in every aspect of business operation and covers a wide spectrum of
issues.

In order to mitigate reputation risk, the Group has formulated and duly followed
its Reputation Risk Management Policy. The policy aims to prevent and
manage reputation risk proactively at an early stage when an incident occurs.
The system entails continuous monitoring of external reputation risk incidents
and published failures of risk incidents in the financial industry.
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Management’s Discussion and Analysis (continued)

Risk Management (continued)

Legal and Compliance Risk Management

Legal risk is the risk that unenforceable contracts, lawsuits or adverse
judgments may disrupt or otherwise negatively affect the operation or financial
condition of the Group. Compliance risk is the risk of legal or regulatory
sanctions, financial loss, or loss to reputation a bank may suffer as a result of
its failure to comply with all applicable laws and regulations. Legal and
compliance risks are managed by Compliance Section headed by the Head of
SCD who reports to CE. As part of the Group’s corporate governance
framework, the policy for the management of legal and compliance risk is
approved by RC.

Strategic Risk Management

Strategic risk generally refers to the risks that may induce immediate or future
negative impact on the financial and market positions of the Group because of
poor strategic decisions, improper implementation of strategies and lack of
response to the market. The Board of Directors reviews and approves the
policy for the management of strategic risks. Key strategic issues have to be
fully evaluated and properly endorsed by the senior management and the
Board.

The Group will regularly review its business strategies to cope with the latest
market situation and developments.

Capital Management

The major objective of the Bank’s capital management is to maximise total
shareholders’ return while maintaining a capital adequacy position in relation to
the Bank’s overall risk profile. The Bank periodically reviews its capital
structure and adjusts the capital mix where appropriate to achieve the required
rate of return on capital.

To comply with HKMA's requirements as stated in the Supervisory Policy
Manual “Supervisory Review Process”, the Bank has established the internal
capital adequacy assessment process (ICAAP) and reviews it annually. Using
the statutory minimum CAR, 8%, as a starting point, extra capital (capital
add-on) needed to cover the risks not captured under Pillar | is assessed. A
Scorecard approach based on HKMA's compliance guidance on Pillar Il has
been used to evaluate the Bank's risk profile in order to assess the add-on
capital to determine the minimum CAR. An Operating CAR Range has also
been established which incorporates the need for future business growth and
efficiency of capital utilisation. In response to the core capital requirements
under Basel Ill Accord, minimum common equity CAR and minimum core CAR
are further introduced in 2011’s ICAAP.

Stress Testing

The Group supplements the analysis of various types of risks with stress
testing. Stress testing is a risk management tool for estimating risk exposures
under stressed conditions arising from extreme but plausible market or
macroeconomic movements. These tests are conducted on a regular basis by
the Group’s various risk management units and ALCO monitors the results
against key risk limit approved by the RC. The SCD reports the combined
stress test results to the Board and RC regularly.
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Report of the Directors

The Directors are pleased to present their report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited
(hereinafter referred to as the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together with the
Bank hereinafter referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2011.

Principal Activities

The Bank is a licensed bank authorised under Homg Kong Banking
Ordinance.The principal activities of the Group are the provision of banking
and related financial services. An analysis of the Group’s performance for
the year by business segments is set out in Note 39 to the financial
statements.

Results and Appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated income
statement on page 17.

The Board declared a first interim dividend of HK$39 per ordinary share,
totalling HK$117,000,000 on 20 May 2011.

The Board declared a second interim dividend of HK$171 per ordinary
share, totalling HK$513,000,000 on 29 December 2011.

Therefore, the total dividend payout for 2011 would be HK$210 per ordinary
share.

Reserves

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group and the Bank are set out
in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and statement of
changes in equity on page 22 and 23 respectively.

Properties, Plant and Equipment

Details of movements in properties, plant and equipment of the Group and
the Bank are set out in Note 27 to the financial statements.

Share Capital

Details of the share capital of the Bank are set out in the Note 32 to the
financial statements.

Directors
The Directors of the Bank during the year and up to date of this report are:

Chairman
Vice Chairman

He Guangbei #

Ng Leung Sing #

Ng Man Kung

Chan Yiu Fai

Chen Zhong Xin #

Cheung Wai Hing *

Chiu Ming Wah #

Liu Yanfen # (resigned on 16 March 2011)

Mao Xiaowei #

Ouyang Jian #

Tan Wan Chye #

To Chi Wing #

Woo Chia Wei *

Yu Kwok Chun *

Dong Jie # (appointed on 18 April 2011 and
resigned on 20 December 2011)

Directors

# Non-executive Directors
* Independent non-executive Directors

9
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Chiyu Banking @eorporation Ltd.

Report of the Directors (continued)

In accordance with Article 99 of the Bank’s Articles of Association, Mr. Ng
Leung Sing and Mr. Ouyang Jian retire at the forthcoming annual general
meeting and, being eligible, Mr. Ng Leung Sing offers himself for re-election.

Directors’ Interests

Pursuant to written resolutions of all the shareholders of the Bank’s
intermediate holding company, BOC Hong Kong (Holdings) Limited
(“BOCHKHL"), passed on 10 July 2002, BOCHKHL has approved and
adopted two share option schemes, namely, the Share Option Scheme and
the Sharesave Plan. No options have been granted by BOCHKHL pursuant
to the Share Option Scheme or the Sharesave Plan during the year.

On 5 July 2002, Mr. He Guangbei, Mr. Ng Leung Sing, Mr. Ng Man Kung,
Mr. Chiu Ming Wah, Mr. Mao Xiaowei, Mr. Chan Yiu Fai and Mr. To Chi Wing
were granted option by BOC Hong Kong (BVI) Limited (“BOC (BVI)”), the
immediate holding company of BOCHKHL, pursuant to a Pre-listing Share
Option Scheme to purchase from BOC (BVI) existing issued shares of
BOCHKHL at a price of HK$8.5 per share. These options have a vesting
period of four years from 25 July 2002 with a valid exercise period of ten
years. No option was exercised to purchase shares of BOCHKHL during the
year.

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the Bank, its
subsidiaries, its fellow subsidiaries or its holding companies a party to any
arrangements to enable the directors to acquire benefits by means of the
acquisition of shares in, or debentures of the Bank or at any other body
corporate.

No contracts of significance, in relation to the Group’s business to which the
Bank, its holding companies, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries
was a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Management Contracts

No contracts concerning the management or administration of the whole or
any substantial part of the business of the Group were entered into or
existed during the year.

Compliance with the Banking (Disclosure) Rules

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2011 comply with
the requirements set out in the Banking (Disclosure) Rules under the
Banking Ordinance.

Auditor

The financial statements for the year 2011 have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution for their re-appointment as auditor
for the ensuing year will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.

On behalf of the Board

HE Guangbei
Chairman

Hong Kong, 20 March 2012
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Chiyu Banking @eorporation Ltd.

Corporate Governance

The Group has complied with the HKMA's guidelines set out in the Supervisory
Policy Manual CG-1 “Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated
Authorised Institutions”.

In order to focus on the strategic and material issues that have significant
impact on the Group’s operation, financial performance, risk management and
long-term development, four committees have been established under the
Board of Directors to oversee the major areas of the Group. The details of the
committees are given below.

Executive Committee (“EC”)

The EC has been delegated with authorities from the Board to handle matters
which require the Board’s review, but arise between board meetings. Its
responsibilities include:

- approving policies, implementation plans and management measures to
effect the group-wide development strategies and business plans approved
by the Board;

- reviewing the implementation progress of the strategies and business
plans;

- recommending strategic proposals to the Board for its consideration and
approval; and

- approving the Group’s rules and regulations according to the policies
imposed by the supervisory authorities and the holding companies.

The members of EC are Mr. Ng Man Kung (Chairman), Mr. Chan Yiu Fai and
Mr. To Chi Wing. All are Directors of the Bank.

Audit Committee (“AC")

The AC assists the Board in overseeing the auditing activities of the Group and
monitoring compliance with approved policies and procedures, so that the
effectiveness of financial reporting process and internal control systems of the
Group can be assured. Its responsibilities include:

- reviewing and monitoring the effectiveness of the internal control systems,
the controls over financial risks and the procedures of financial reporting
and auditing;

- assessing independently the effectiveness and efficiency of financial
reporting system and its controlling mechanism, and the sufficiency of
operating policies and system; and

- monitoring the operation of the Group to ensure the Group is running in
compliance with the relevant rules and regulations.

The members of AC are Mr. Chiu Ming Wah (Chairman), Mr. Cheung Wai
Hing, Mr. Tan Wan Chye, Mr. Woo Chia Wei and Mr. Yu Kwok Chun. All are
non-executive Directors of the Bank. Among them, Mr. Cheung Wai Hing, Mr.
Woo Chia Wei and Mr. Yu Kwok Chun are independent non-executive
Directors.

11
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Chiyu Banking @eorporation Ltd.

Corporate Governance (continued)

Risk Management Committee (“RC")

The RC assists the Board in overseeing the risk management of the Group,
formulating the Group’s risk management strategies, policies and procedures,
and monitoring the implementation of those strategies, policies and
procedures. Its responsibilities include:

- assisting the Board to measure and monitor the risk exposures of the
Group;

- recommending appropriate risk management strategies to the Board; and

- formulating risk management related policies such as risk management
policies and authorities and duties delegation policies in accordance with
the requirements set by the Board.

The members of the RC are Mr. Mao Xiaowei (Chairman), Mr. Ng Leung Sing,
Mr. Ng Man Kung, Mr. To Chi Wing and Mr. Yu Kwok Chun. All are Directors of
the Bank.

Nomination and Remuneration Committee (“NRC")

The NCR assists the Board in performing the duties in respect of, among
others, the following areas:

- overall human resources, remuneration strategy and incentive framework
of the Group;

- selection and nomination of Directors, Board Committee members and
certain senior executives as designated by the Board from time to time;

- structure, size and composition (including skills, experience and
knowledge) of the Board and Board Committees;

- remuneration of Directors, Board Committee members, designated senior
management and key personnel, and

- effectiveness of the Board and Board Committees.

The members of the NRC are Mr. To Chi Wing (Chairman), Mr. Cheung Wai
Hing and Mr. Woo Chia Wei. All are non-executive Directors of the Bank.
Among them, Mr. Cheung Wai Hing and Mr. Woo Chia Wei are independent
non-executive Directors.

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism

The Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism of the Group is based on the
principles of “effective motivation” and “sound remuneration management”. It
links remuneration, performance and risk management tightly, and encourages
staff to enhance their performance and at the same time strengthen their
mindset of risk management so as to achieve sound remuneration
management.
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Chiyu Banking @eorporation Ltd.

Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

1. “Senior Management” and “Key Personnel”

The following groups of employees have been identified as the “Senior
Management” and “Key Personnel” as defined in the HKMA's Guideline on
a Sound Remuneration System:

- “Senior Management”: The senior executives designated by the Board
who are responsible for oversight of the firm-wide strategy or material
business lines, including Chief Executive and Deputy General Manager.

- “Key Personnel”: The employees whose individual business activities
involve the assumption of material risk which may have significant
impact on risk exposure, or whose individual responsibilities are directly
and materially linked to the Group’s risk management, or those who
have direct influence to the Group profit, including Head of material
business line, Head of Trading, as well as Head of risk control functions.

2. Determination of the Remuneration Policy

To fulfill the above-mentioned principles and to facilitate effective risk
management within the framework of the Remuneration Policy of the
Group, the Remuneration Policy of the Group is initiated by Human
Resources Division with consultation of the risk control units including risk
management, financial management and compliance in order to balance
the needs for staff motivations, sound remuneration and prudent risk
management. After the proposed Remuneration Policy is cleared with the
Board of Management, it will be submitted to the Nomination and
Remuneration Committee for review and thereafter to the Board of
Directors for approval. NRC and the Board of Directors will seek opinions
from other Board committees (e.g. RC, AC, etc.) where they consider
necessary under the circumstances.

3. Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism

(1) Performance Management Mechanism

To reflect the corporate culture of “Achieving Performance and
Effectiveness”, the Group has put in place a performance management
mechanism to formalise the performance management at the levels of
the Group, units and individuals. The annual targets of the Group will be
cascaded down under the framework of balanced scorecard whereby
the performance of the senior management and different units
(including business units, risk control units and other units) would be
assessed from the perspectives of financial, customer, building
block/key tasks, human capital, risk management and compliance. As to
the performance management of individual staff at different levels, the
annual targets of the Group will be tied to the job requirements of
different posts at different levels through the model of level-based
performance management. Performance of individuals will be appraised
with reference to their accomplishment of work targets, contribution
towards overall performance of their corresponding units and
compliance of risk management and internal control policies. Under this
mechanism, not only the target accomplishment has been taken into
account, the risk exposure involved during the course of work of a staff
member could also be evaluated and managed so as to provide
safeguards to the Group against the risk and ensure normal operations.
The mechanism is also coupled with the assessment on system of
values, thereby facilitating the attainment of the core values of the
Group.
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Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

3. The Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
(continued)

(2) Risk Modification of Remuneration
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To implement the principle of aligning the performance and
remuneration with the risk, the Group has introduced “The Risk
Adjustment Method” under which the key risk modifiers of the bank have
been incorporated into the performance management mechanism of the
Group and the size of the Variable Remuneration Pool of the Group,
which is the total amount to be paid to the staff as variable
compensation, would be determined on the basis of the risk-adjusted
performance results. This method enables the Group to fix the Group’s
Variable Remuneration Pool after considering risk exposures and

ﬁ changes and to maintain effective risk management through the
remuneration mechanism.
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“The Risk Adjustment Method for Group Bonus Funding Mechanics”
consists of “Risk Modifier” and “Post Result Score Adjustment”:
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follow the philosophy of prudent risk management and sound long-term
financial stability

Every year, the Group will conduct periodic review on the fixed
remuneration of the staff with reference to various factors like
remuneration strategy, market pay trend and staff salary level; and to
determine the remuneration based on the affordability of the Group as
well as the performance of the Group, units and individuals. As
mentioned above, performance assessment criteria include quantitative
and qualitative factors, as well as financial and non-financial indicators.
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Corporate Governance (continued)

Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism (continued)

3. The Key Features of the Remuneration and Incentive Mechanism
(continued)

(3) Performance-based Remuneration Management (continued)
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According to the Group Bonus Funding Mechanics, the size of the
Variable Remuneration Pool of the Group is determined by the Board on
the basis of the financial performance of the Group and the
achievement of non-financial strategic business targets under the
long-term development of the Group. Thorough consideration is also
made to the risk factors in the determination process. The size of the
Pool is reached based on pre-defined formulaic calculations but the
Board can make discretionary adjustment to it if deemed appropriate
under prevailing circumstances. When the group’s performance is
relatively weak (e.g. failed to meet the threshold performance level), no
variable remuneration will be paid out that year in principle, however,
the Board reserves the rights to exercise its discretion.

As far as individual units and individual staff are concerned, allocation of
the variable remuneration is closely linked to the performance of the
units, and that of each individual staff as well as the unit he/she is
attaching to, the assessment of which should include risk modifiers. The
performance and remuneration arrangement of risk control personnel
are determined by the achievements of their core job responsibilities,
independent from the business they oversee; for front-line risk
controllers, a matrix reporting and performance management system is
applied to ensure the suitability of performance-based remuneration.
Within the acceptable risk level of the Group, the better the performance
of the unit and the individual staff, the higher will be the variable
remuneration for the individual staff.

(4) Linking the payout of the variable remuneration with the time

horizon of the risk to reflect the long-term value creation of the
Group

To work out the principle of aligning remuneration with the risk and to
ensure that sufficient time is allowed to ascertain the associated risk and
its impact before the actual payout, payout of the variable remuneration
of staff is required to be deferred if such amount reaches certain
prescribed threshold. The Group adopts a progressive approach
towards deferral. The longer the time horizon of risk in the activities
conducted by the staff, the higher the job grade or the higher amount of
the variable remuneration, the higher will be the proportion of deferral.
Deferral lasts for 3 years.

The vesting of the deferred variable remuneration is linked with the long
term value creation of the Group. The vesting conditions are linked to
the yearly performance (financial and non-financial) of the Group in the
next 3 years to the effect that the variable remuneration could only be
vested to such extent as set for the relevant year in that 3-year period
subject to the condition that the Group’s performance has met the
threshold requirement in the corresponding year. In case of material
revision of the original estimates of the performance of the Group or
individual units, or if a staff is found to commit fraud, or found to be of
malfeasance or in violation of internal control policies, the unvested
portion of the deferred variable remuneration of the relevant staff will be
clawed back.

4. External Remuneration Consultant
To ensure the suitability and competitiveness of the remuneration and
incentive mechanism, the Group appointed Towers Watson Pennsylvania
Inc. for independent consultation in areas of base pay management
approach, pay management mechanism of senior management, short-term
incentive schemes as well as market remuneration data.
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Chiyu Banking @eorporation Ltd.

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the shareholders of Chiyu Banking Corporation Limited
(incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Chiyu Banking
Corporation Limited (the “Bank”) and its subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) set
out on pages 17 to 167, which comprise the consolidated and company balance
sheets as at 31 December 2011, and the consolidated income statement, the
consolidated and company statements of comprehensive income, the
consolidated and company statements of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Bank are responsible for the preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audit and to report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
in accordance with section 141 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Those
standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the
amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation of consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Bank and of the Group as at 31 December 2011, and of
the Group’s profit and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 20 March 2012
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Consolidated Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December

Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest income

Fees and commission income
Fees and commission expenses

Net fees and commission income

Net trading gain/ (loss)

Net gain on financial instruments designated at
fair value through profit or loss

Net gain from disposal of available-for-sale
securities

Other operating income

Net operating income before impairment
allowances

Net (charge)/ reversal of impairment
allowances

Net operating income
Operating expenses

Operating profit

Net gain from disposal of/ fair value
adjustments on investment properties

Net (loss)/ gain from disposal of properties,
plant and equipment

Profit before taxation
Taxation

Profit for the year

Dividends

The notes on pages 25 to 167 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes 2011 2010
mE g

HK$'000 HK$'000

1,146,174 889,570

(242,461) (145,576)

5 903,713 743,994
301,066 305,853

(32,371) (39,923)

6 268,695 265,930
7 27,657 (10,593)
3,108 20,471

35,641 -

8 11,788 9,303
1,250,602 1,029,105

9 (4,231) 607
1,246,371 1,029,712

10 (114,870) (298,774)
1,131,501 730,938

11 35,771 20,770
12 (1,343) 249
1,165,929 751,957

13 (193,902) (128,345)
972,027 623,612

15 630,000 136,500
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A Z PR R Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
=
(= 12 F| 31 [ HF A For the year ended 31 December Notes 2011 2010
g
HK$'000 HK$’000
= BEF] Profit for the year 972,027 623,612
ik Premises:
e 3 |'Ff, Revaluation of premises 240,498 126,399
PEPFRE Deferred tax 31 (37,937) (17,235)
202,561 109,164
etk F‘%%ﬁj : Available-for-sale securities:
A RS D N A Change in fair value of available-for-sale
securities 39,621 5,023
[*JH’.E,T’ # HWE,?&?? R Release upon disposal of available-for-sale
securities (35,692) -
PP Deferred tax 31 834 (982)
4,763 4,041
EEFER N BRI S T Change in fair value of hedging instruments
g™ under net investment hedges (25,179) (6,527)
E‘Tff*.i‘mﬁ% A Currency translation difference 48,507 35,527
FRERARH P12 P Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax 230,652 142,205
kg EnliEg o k) Total comprehensive income for the year 1,202,679 765,817
'f%flﬁ:f [liEg >k Total comprehensive income attributable to:
E 7 SR bE Equity holders of the Bank 1,202,679 765,817
5725 = 167 [! VI’|J T A PR A A The notes on pages 25 to 167 are an integral part of these financial statements.
Wﬁﬂu °
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EXEllEras Statement of Comprehensive Income
=
(=12 5] 31 [ HF For the year ended 31 December Notes 2011 2010
g
HK$'000 HK$'000
= BEH| Profit for the year 948,798 669,236
T 3 Premises:
e 3 |'Ff, Revaluation of premises 236,445 124,620
PEPFRE Deferred tax 31 (37,298) (16,960)
199,147 107,660
etk FE’, B Available-for-sale securities:
i F‘%%ﬁ? Il Change in fair value of available-for-sale
securities (4,651) 6,232
PEPFRE Deferred tax 31 834 (982)
(3,817) 5,250
TSR BT S 2T Change in fair value of hedging instruments
gh[™ under net investment hedges (25,179) (6,527)
E‘Uf’.ﬁyﬂ%r £ Currency translation difference 48,507 35,527
FRERARH P12 P Other comprehensive income for the year,
net of tax 218,658 141,910
g ANl oe b E) Total comprehensive income for the year 1,167,456 811,146
5725 % 167 |I j/ﬁ[vj'ﬂgjﬁgﬁjb s VA The notes on pages 25 to 167 are an integral part of these financial statements.
E‘}ﬁﬂ)? o
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

B
As at 31 December Notes 2011 2010
BT M 7
HK$'000 HK$’000

ASSETS
Cash and balances with banks and other

financial institutions 19 7,113,949 6,283,636
Placements with banks and other financial

institutions maturing between one and

twelve months 5,091,569 5,030,190
Financial assets designed at fair value

through profit or loss 20 842,569 990,147
Derivative financial instruments 21 425,767 397,946
Advances and other accounts 22 25,243,795 22,791,839
Investment in securities 24 3,871,802 4,149,592
Investment properties 26 165,170 124,070
Properties, plant and equipment 27 974,905 749,120
Other assets 28 382,682 550,084
Total assets 44,112,208 41,066,624
LIABILITIES
Deposits and balances from banks and

other financial institutions 1,029,021 352,605
Derivative financial instruments 21 275,987 253,505
Deposits from customers 29 36,032,369 34,577,588
Other accounts and provisions 30 1,258,605 1,010,410
Current tax liabilities 88,824 53,193
Deferred tax liabilities 31 124,746 89,346
Total liabilities 38,809,552 36,336,647
EQUITY
Share capital 32 300,000 300,000
Reserves 33 5,002,656 4,429,977
Total equity 5,302,656 4,729,977
Total liabilities and equity 44,112,208 41,066,624

The notes on pages 25 to 167 are an integral part of these financial statements.

Approved by the Board of Directors on 20 March 2012 and signed on behalf of the Board by:

HE Guangbei NG Man Kung
Director Director
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Balance Sheet

As at 31 December

ASSETS

Cash and balances with banks and other
financial institutions

Placements with banks and other financial
institutions maturing between one and
twelve months

Financial assets designed at fair value
through profit or loss

Derivative financial instruments
Advances and other accounts
Investment in securities
Investment in subsidiaries
Amount due from subsidiaries
Investment properties
Properties, plant and equipment
Other assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits and balances from banks and
other financial institutions

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Amount due to subsidiaries

Other accounts and provisions

Current tax liabilities

Deferred tax liabilities

Total liabilities

EQUITY
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

The notes on pages 25 to 167 are an integral part of these financial statements.

lhj=4
Notes 2011 2010
i e
HK$'000 HK$'000
19 7,113,949 6,283,636
5,091,569 5,030,190
20 842,569 990,147
21 425,767 397,946
22 25,243,795 22,791,839
24 3,830,562 4,107,624
25 3,913 3,913
25 11,169 35,232
26 165,170 124,070
27 963,105 741,120
28 382,974 550,362
44,074,542 41,056,079
1,029,021 352,605
21 275,987 253,505
29 36,053,847 34,612,582
25 24,202 1,901
30 1,258,605 1,010,410
88,824 53,193
31 123,402 88,685
38,853,888 36,372,881
32 300,000 300,000
33 4,920,654 4,383,198
5,220,654 4,683,198
44,074,542 41,056,079

Approved by the Board of Directors on 20 March 2012 and signed on behalf of the Board by:

HE Guangbei
Director

NG Man Kung
Director
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ﬁﬁ%ﬁ@?ﬁ% Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

S 4 B R
Attributable to equity holders of the Group
FAEE
HREG @EAT
(i3 W e TR PR Feadl st
Reserve for
fair value
changes of
Premises available-
Share  revaluation for- sale Regulatory  Translation Retained
capital reserve securities reserve* reserve earnings Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
#2010 & 1 FJ A pLY At 1 January 2010,
RIS as previously reported 300,000 407,769 24,004 149,257 2,274 3,206,821 4,090,125
; Emﬁu ¥EHI3T 1255 Effect of early adoption of
i ) VR HKAS 12 (Amendment) - 3,825 - - - 6,710 10,535
502010 & 1 7] 1 FLVEH] At 1 January 2010,
as restated 300,000 411,594 24,004 149,257 2,274 3,213,531 4,100,660
EqRllisas Comprehensive income - 109,164 4,041 - 29,000 623,612 765,817
[ ’,ﬁ;’/i@#ﬁ Release upon disposal of
premises - (1,025) - - - 1,025 -
2010 # =1 {27~ v 2010 first interim
HERL dividend paid - - - - - (118,500) (118,500)
2010.3 SN R 2010 second interim
JERL dividend paid - - - - - (18,000) (18,000)
Akl Transfer from retained
earnings - - - 33,964 - (33,964) -
2010 & 12 £ 31 [ ! At 31 December 2010 300,000 519,733 28,045 183,221 31,274 3,667,704 4,729,977
SR 4 & BHEH
Attributable to equity holders of the Group
FRME
SR mEATH
1wk B WREE OBl BNEE FeR seEt
Reserve for
fair value
changes of
Premises available-
Share revaluation for-sale  Regulatory Translation Retained
capital reserve securities reserve* reserve earnings Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
502011 F 1 5[ ! At 1 January 2011 300,000 519,733 28,045 183,221 31,274 3,667,704 4,729,977
Eauiitsas Comprehensive income - 202,561 4,763 - 23,328 972,027 1,202,679
2011 ¥ =1 i 8- 2011 first interim
HERL dividend paid - - - - - (117,000) (117,000)
2011 S =R 2011 second interim
gL dividend declared - - - - - (513,000) (513,000)
?ﬁﬁ‘ﬁ?;[]@?ﬁ Transfer from retained
earnings - - - 59,605 - (59,605) -
552011 & 12 F] 31 | At 31 December 2011 300,000 722,294 32,808 242,826 54,602 3,950,126 _ 5,302,656

*

S R RHER]Y 39 B
EHECHLIS [ - 5
£ FRb I Eﬁﬁ ST
ZoH|E B L (e
~ IR ] Cit )
FH P TR ) -

* In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for general banking risks, including future losses or
other unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment allowances recognised under HKAS 39.

37 25 % 167 IV P::E%ﬁ iy
H L RS T

The notes on pages 25 to 167 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of Changes in Equity

At 1 January 2010,

as previously reported
Effect of early adoption of

HKAS 12 (Amendment)
At 1 January 2010,

as restated

Comprehensive income

Release upon disposal of
premises

2010 first interim
dividend paid

2010 second interim
dividend paid

Transfer from retained
earnings

At 31 December 2010

At 1 January 2011

Comprehensive income

2011 first interim
dividend paid

2011 second interim
dividend declared

Transfer from retained
earnings

At 31 December 2011

S S
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
TR
MR @SS
Tt W R FERET O BUTRE Bnal st
Reserve for
fair value
changes of
Premises available-
Share revaluation for- sale Regulatory  Translation Retained
capital reserve securities reserve* reserve earnings Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
300,000 404,571 1,075 149,257 2,274 3,140,840 3,998,017
- 3,825 - - - 6,710 10,535
300,000 408,396 1,075 149,257 2,274 3,147,550 4,008,552
- 107,660 5,250 - 29,000 669,236 811,146
- (1,025) - - - 1,025 -
- - - - - (118,500) (118,500)
- - - - - (18,000) (18,000)
- - - 33,964 - (33,964) -
300,000 515,031 6,325 183,221 31,274 3,647,347 4,683,198
FEAT R LS ER
Attributable to equity holders of the Bank
T HEY
I |
SREMH BIETA
wt B emRN SR BRERE Fezel st
Reserve for
fair value
changes of
Premises available-
Share revaluation for-sale  Regulatory Translation Retained
capital reserve securities reserve* reserve earnings Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
300,000 515,031 6,325 183,221 31,274 3,647,347 4,683,198
- 199,147 (3,817) - 23,328 948,798 1,167,456
- - - - - (117,000) (117,000)
- - - - - (513,000) (513,000)
- - - 59,605 - (59,605) -
300,000 714,178 2,508 242,826 54,602 3,906,540 5,220,654

* In accordance with the requirements of the HKMA, the amounts are set aside for general banking risks, including future losses or
other unforeseeable risks, in addition to the loan impairment allowances recognised under HKAS 39.

The notes on pages 25 to 167 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

I 2
f
For the year ended 31 December Notes 2011 2010
R
HK$'000 HK$’000
Cash flows from operating activities
Operating cash inflow/ (outflow) before
taxation 34(a) 1,702,560 (2,483,159)
Hong Kong profits tax paid (117,764) (21,731)
Overseas profits tax paid (42,210) (23,589)
Net cash inflow/ (outflow) from operating
activities 1,542,586 (2,528,479)
Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of properties, plant and
equipment (7,660) (4,654)
Proceeds from disposal of properties, plant
and equipment - 1,233
Proceeds from disposal of other assets 7 21
Net cash outflow from investing activities (7,653) (3,400)
Cash flows from financing activities
Dividends paid to the equity holders of the
Bank (135,000) (264,000)
Net cash outflow from financing activities (135,000) (264,000)
Increase/ (decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents 1,399,933 (2,795,879)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 7,799,505 10,411,838
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and
cash equivalents 110,662 183,546
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 34(b) 9,310,100 7,799,505

The notes on pages 25 to 167 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ*f‘ﬁﬁ% Notes to the Financial Statements

1. 2RI 1. Principal activities
TERZ @IE"F‘,E{»@:}@E L AL ’%’/ﬁ'ﬁfi The Group is principally engaged in the provision of banking and related financial

I ZRIR - services in Hong Kong.

iE‘LWL ’%Uf"*?ﬁ"?‘ﬁ eI A The Bank is a limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. The address of
fil o 2 RlER R ['%ifi’ﬁagfll its registered office is No.78 Des Vouex Road, Central, Hong Kong.
78 5FFI§ I ﬁ{.jxﬂ .

= F;lgﬁ-r—%iﬁ%ﬁzl 2. Summary of significant accounting policies
”J’J‘Nﬁlﬁiﬁf A = %‘f?’riﬁf The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated
qu/ Hil ™o financial statements are set out below.
Fﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁf 19t SRS f:,.‘am el These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
THE A [rTEJ 9l pp ;rgx Hh Hll o otherwise stated.
21 x‘ﬁﬁﬂﬁl@ 2.1 Basis of preparation
F R B ER AT A S R E' M The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
Fﬁﬁﬂr Lavr' V*i{?ﬂa‘z;ﬁy b accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (HKFRSs is a
Hil (fﬂﬁ» {ﬁ %ﬁ,fgll [ 1ﬁiﬁ collective term which includes all applicable individual Hong Kong Financial
Fl il cujffﬁ‘s ; I/*&LE'?}?J? Reporting Standards, HKASs and Interpretations) issued by the HKICPA and
(“égll %EF%“FHE 1] ij%“) T@Q the requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
o T“Fl l'gﬁj I/tf‘[{"
iﬁf (i s e S L o 1R The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the
ffrml T L"E,.?g’iy ABNEN historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of available-for-sale
' fifiieh [~ 5 ﬁ}ﬁpufﬁﬂl s}@ > securities, financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative
e ( EIJ}“F i Eg5) ST financial instruments) at fair value through profit or loss, investment properties
S SRR A e ) 2 il which are carried at fair value and premises which are carried at fair value or
p“/y y?‘, @ﬂlﬁ%EﬁJaﬁ’?ngﬁJﬂ Vb fifl revalued amount less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment
ngi}:m JIRRD g (= .%‘EZ losses.
ﬁpﬁ P 7 Y PR 554 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs requires
%ET 3*?7’? P 5 ;I - Vet the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the
“TEE (£ }45“?" HiA R g Management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
aﬂifﬂ“ldijl‘ﬂ“ Fj;#[ ‘F{r FlE s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
% Wrel mEs *f" e complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
Eaju,sﬁy%pu F %";}"l N7 |E;%“J;v consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 3.

|ﬁ, , “'E&F"f‘lfi 3o
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Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ*f‘ﬁﬁ% (78%) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
2. 2 Elgﬁf—%ﬁﬁ%ﬁl &) 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 ﬁ?}%‘iﬁlﬁﬁ (&) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(@) =IH2011% 1E]1 E'@ﬁijii,ﬁfiﬂ?f (a) Standards, amendments and interpretations already mandatorily effective
F ’?}éﬁiﬁjﬂﬁﬁf PV EEH f 5T Bﬁ‘_ﬁ% for accounting periods beginning on 1 January 2011
oA T
YERL F%*%” [‘J"Fﬁ’ @ﬁfiiﬁf'l;‘/i‘ & - [%‘ﬂﬁ'réfé
Currently
Applicable for financial relevant to
Standard!/ Interpretation Content years beginning on/after the Group
Fﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁéﬁﬂcﬁm W (REIETT) ?Jr‘»,lfﬁg_l s PR 2011 5 1 5] 1[I L
HKAS 24 (Revised) Related Party Disclosures 1 January 2011 Yes
F‘, ET%‘L%EUET 325k (,%’:';f[”%fé,’) flgg s T SRR 5 2010 = 2 £ 1 }! F‘l
HKAS 32 (Amendment) Classification of Rights Issues 1 February 2010 No
IV Y 1 8 FITRSRAT S ST S - O ERA #2010 75 1 il
(257 PSS 7 YA YR
[ E5 ol
HKFRS 1 (Revised) First-time Adoption of Hong Kong Financial 1 July 2010 No
Reporting Standards—Limited exemption
from comparative HKFRS 7 disclosures for
first-time adopters
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 (FZ{EF) P ERFY T el (S8 A b 2 T 2011 F 1 5] 1 |1 h
HK(IFRIC)-Int 14 (Amendment) The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, 1 January 2011 Iilo
Minimum Funding Requirements and their
Interaction
HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 It T SRS T 2010 =+ 7 £ 1 |! A
HK(IFRIC)-Int 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity 1 July 2010 Iﬁlo
Instruments

i RV HI 5T 245 (X + HKAS 24 (Revised), ‘Related Party Disclosures’. The Group early adopted
r JFJE BN L - the partial exemption regarding disclosure requirements for transactions with
2009F 12 5|31 [ | & g 1/ & by ff55 government-related entities in its annual financial statements for the year
A R ERAT TR AR ended 31 December 2009. The application of the remainder of the revised
E SUAINELT =B 'IfJﬁ[fj} TG T standard this year which amends the definition of related parties will not have
I E S YEHIPVER significant impact on the presentation and disclosure of the Group’s financial
- statements.
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Eﬂ‘ﬁ?ﬁﬁ*f‘ﬁﬁ% (78%) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
2. 2 Elgﬁf—%ﬁﬁ%ﬁl &) 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 ‘rﬁ%‘iﬁl?‘ﬁ ) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) =LFTE 5[»5‘&@?*& ?ﬂs’is‘i“‘sj (b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily
WA 8 B 2011 F HFIRAL ¥ effective and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2011
R 557
ST = e following standards and amendments have been issued and are
P = '*‘*E'ILTF’EAZW# The followi dards and d have been issued and
THAPTE T 'JF“# L mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011:
¥ ﬂ[ii ¥ o
WA o
Y=L PJ”’F‘,’ (SR N 7+ & EIHHEY
Currently
Applicable for financial  relevant to
Standard Content years beginning on/after the Group
*?JEFF“EMEE'I IYA B (REfS PR ] 2012 % 751 |1 s
HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements 1 July 2012 Yes
*rﬁﬁ YRR 19 B (2011) (EaE] 2013 F 1 5] 1 |1 xL
HKAS 19 (2011) Employee Benefits 1 January 2013 Yes
*tﬁfm{‘*t'[ 15y 27 5 (2011) ARG RS 2013 # 141 |1 P
HKAS 27 (2011) Separate Financial Statements 1 January 2013 Yes
FHAFIES280E (2011) DY AR Iy 2013 % 141 |1 !
HKAS 28 (2011) Investments in Associates and Joint 1 January 2013 No
Ventures
%Yﬁﬁ;{v{%gll g‘rszﬁr(;:,%f: SR SDFIE - SRR SR LT 2014 2 1 F] 1 FL
HKAS 32 (Amendment) Financial Instruments Presentation — 1 January 2014 Yes
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities
i tﬁ:ﬁﬁa:‘t;%, 19 FITRERAT R A R - L B 2011 5 7 £ 1 A
GEIZF ;tﬁ'nmﬁna
HKFRg 1 (ReV|sed) First- tlme Adoption of HKFRS — Fixed 1 July 2011 No
Dates and Hyperinflation
’ﬁ’ﬁ%ﬁ“: Uiye 4 SR S PR - i 2011 & 7 F] 1[I FL
s
HKFRé 7 (Amendment) Financial Instruments: Disclosures — 1 July 2011 Yes
Transfer of Financial Assets
tﬁ W?j‘?ﬁyfw HlIEy79k SR S PR - SR Hﬁﬁiﬂ[ﬁf{iﬁ;’/}j@ﬁi 2013 &F 1 £ 1[I L
(REIEFT)
HKFRé 7 (Amendment) Financial Instruments: Disclosures — 1 January 2013 Yes
Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities
’1i¥?ﬁ§f,2~EWJm?%'F —‘PI#EI i - i ’“”*E'H@‘mﬁFU 2015 F 1 5] 1 | kL
ASFT 1’*%#!5
HKFRé 7 (Amendment) Financial Instruments: Disclosures — 1 January 2015 Yes
Transition to HKFRS 9
Fﬂ%bhﬁ?%ﬁﬂ 15y 9 8 SR 5 2015 =F 1 E[ 1 I Rl
HKFRS 9 FlnanC|aI Instruments 1 January 2015 Yes
thﬁ‘wﬁﬁifm HIET 10 9% ﬁﬁﬂﬁ"%ﬁi% 2013 # 1 4] 1 |1 P
HKFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements 1 January 2013 Yes
T T 11 5 Frerd PR 2013 F 1 51 |1 E‘,
HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements 1 January 2013 o
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RN ()

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2. 2 IR GR)

21 R GB)
®) S A S B

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily

Wi & BT 2011 = IR L & effective and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2011
FJUBF%‘?(@) (continued)

P S S 2011
751 E'E‘gw | ?F[Ufﬁ*‘@ﬂ
§F{ﬁfﬂlii ¥ o (38)

The following standards and amendments have been issued and are
mandatory for accounting periods beginning on or after 1 July 2011:
(continued)

bl G
el I SN + & iR
Currently
Applicable for financial relevant to

Standard Content years beginning on/after the Group

TR £ TEEY 12 5 P R SRR L 2013 % 1 7)1 [ L

HKFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 1 January 2013 Yes

Fy?ﬁ“fw‘fﬁywﬂ BT 13 9% 2 i E 2013 % 1 4] 1 |1 Rk

HKFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement 1 January 2013 Yes
Ef*%E'IJETWF(% =N - HKAS 1 (Revised), ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’. The amendments

L DI el g
A ﬁﬂ A

to HKAS 1 (Revised) require companies preparing financial statements in
accordance with HKFRSs to group together items within other

B SR ik ,qrmllﬂ i
%¢E“Tﬁﬁﬂf IE £ PSR- 5
S i I a5k A L[YEHIEJ FI
FI ”?rf R FUET) = R ﬂﬁ*
Wwﬁ';&%i& 15 o e

Ee R TH”‘*E'[ﬁ?J@%
&R 2 Rt U

. 7‘%%’7.:[(‘*&'[@1195’}7(2011) fref !
G e L ,I .QEM‘EEU %,lpsnlr
EEoa ﬂyﬁfﬁfbﬁfﬂ[]é@@*
Eﬁﬂﬁi SRR, i?pﬁlréﬁ frazjff=-
Hem;j/ ST & RIpVEAET
4t 1El4\ IJEU/%

—»—m

J;wu 15V279(2011)" it
) S
b Yo s At

‘2‘“@*1‘”%

a1°

comprehensive income (OCI) that may be reclassified to the profit or loss
section of the income statement. The amendments also reaffirm existing
requirements that items in OCI and profit or loss should be presented as
either a single statement or two consecutive statements. The adoption of this
revised standard will affect the presentation of the Group’s statement of
comprehensive income.

+ HKAS 19 (2011), ‘Employee Benefits’. The revised standard mainly amends
the part related to accounting for changes in defined benefit obligations and
plan assets, and related presentation and disclosure. The amendments do
not have impact on the Group’s financial statements.

- HKAS 27 (2011), ‘Separate Financial Statements’. Please refer to the below
on HKFRS 10, ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily
effective and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2011
(continued)

+ HKAS 32 (Amendment), ‘Financial Instruments: Presentation — Offsetting
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Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities’. The amendment addresses
inconsistencies in current practice when applying the offsetting criteria
and clarifies the meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforceable right of
set-off’; and the application of offsetting criteria to some gross settlement
systems (such as central clearing house systems) that may be considered
equivalent to net settlement. The Group is considering the financial impact
of the amendment.

- HKFRS 7 (Amendment), ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Transfer of
Financial Assets’. The amendment introduces new quantitative disclosure
requirements for transfers of financial assets that are either fully
derecognised or derecognised not in their entirety. The adoption of this
amendment will affect the disclosures of the Group’s financial statements
when the Group undertakes transfers of financial assets that fall within its
scope.

- HKFRS 7 (Amendment), ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Offsetting
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities’. The new disclosures, which are
similar to the new US GAAP disclosure requirements, would provide
users with information that is useful in (i) evaluating the effect or potential
effect of netting arrangements on an entity’s financial position and (ii)
analysing and comparing financial statements prepared in accordance
with HKFRSs and US GAAP. The adoption of this amended standard will
affect the disclosure of the Group’s financial statements.

+ HKFRS 7 (Amendment), ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures — Transition
to HKFRS 9. The amendments provide relief from the requirement to
restate comparative financial statements which was originally available
only to entities that chose to apply HKFRS 9 prior to 2012. Instead,
additional transition disclosures will be required to help users to better
understand the effect of initial application of the standard.

29



& A Ay
Chiyu Banking @eorporation Ltd.

SHEBRMER A member of BOCHK Group

Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ*f‘ﬁﬁ% (78%) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
2. 2 Elgﬁf—%ﬁﬁ%ﬁl &) 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 ‘rﬁ%‘iﬁl?‘ﬁ ) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(b) =S %#Jﬁ‘ﬂ EEB AT ] (b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily
% 8BRS 2011 #iﬁﬂ'ﬁfﬁ»a[* VYEH W effective and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2011
f, (58) (continued)
. ﬁ?ﬁﬁ?ﬁ W U HIBT9%E © & 5~ « HKFRS 9, ‘Financial Instruments’. The first part of HKFRS 9 was issued in
o A HE WHJ B YR BT9SRRY ST November 2009 and will replace those parts of HKAS 39 relating to the
( 77 =1472009F 11 5] 5 l'r'J > Y classification and measurement of financial assets. In November 2010, a
|*7‘?=E‘r *{'(‘é I SY39%ET | & Fili ey % further pronouncement was published to address financial liabilities and

Fﬁ;} i ’ ﬁlfg lJﬁm o J*JEE\S, derecognition. Key features are as follows:
FH%&;&LPF}“E Ilﬁljﬂ? B350 el
120104 17| 5 7 ﬂiﬁ&f

/LI
(i) 73 % FEl (i) Classification and Measurement
£y E ?&F},lj\;; i?pt JNE Financial assets are required to be classified into one of the following
- FEF R (1) ‘* [;gjrﬁ measurement categories: (1) those to be measured subsequently at
ST E%F&(z)[ %Eﬁﬂp =g fair value or (2) those to be measured subsequently at amortised cost.
FHE o 25 a% fiY 55 ’H@ Classification is to be made on transition, and subsequently on initial
Egjc Fg: s ,ﬂu;{ E?JEST it recognition. The classification depends on the entity’s business model
Lo F 550 JVHJJ‘/‘ ﬁ L5 for managing its financial instruments and the contractual cash flow
BEEURE S, ;fgj' I brj/?* Y characteristics of the instrument.
AR 1 B
1/|” JHEER RS 4 - TERT S A financial instrument is subsequently measured at amortised cost
LA ED o E Ii* —FH?’JM only if it is a debt instrument, and the objective of the entity’s business
B S Sk €5 AP UNE ) model is to hold the asset to collect the contractual cash flows, and
*EJ:/Z\@ PIEEY A 592 & e EV the asset’'s contractual cash flows represent only unleveraged
s T Sy pie J F AR E R payments of principal and interest. All other debt instruments are to be
RESEA F?{;&l o4 & 9 1 I“ %2 measured at fair value through profit or loss.
m . ﬂ%qﬂ &l m B r' N
i (5 " fhsRt B
A E @ﬁli” SIS i R All equity instruments are to be measured subsequently at fair value.
EE: &l o |‘P?L Fi“ & Vg ]E Equity instrument that are held for trading will be measured at fair
S SE ‘* fifried [~ 5 ffias value through profit or loss. For all other equity investments, an
i' o SPACETEE [ g I irrevocable election can be made at initial recognition to recognise
CUR T"’MQ'[ E Eﬂjfp“'j Eie unrealised and realised fair value gains and losses through other
[(ﬂ PSR ;{”9& *4415 b=l comprehensive income rather than income statement. Once elected
o [ﬁqfﬁfﬁ’gﬁr—’é%t/\t[ EE] to be recognised through other comprehensive income, there will be
pll{fﬁ MZRE SR o — A no reclassification of fair value gains and losses to income statement.
#“’15“11‘ Al S A ] Dividends are to be presented in income statement as long as they
L[’;‘ﬁﬁl} B ;{fv M N EE RS represent a return on investment.
[ o % (e }mw% el
i *J‘”Hrﬁ?ﬁ
(i) =g uﬁ “ﬂj}ﬂerh (ii) Financial Liabilities and Derecognition
[ SRR o 9t A’Eﬂ[ f"l Except for the two substantial changes described below, the
|§j FUs KGRI RL A R F classification and measurement requirements of financial liabilities
3{{»%“{% HIBY39UERVRITf - 12 have been basically carried forward with minimal amendments from
N LIS o BHOGE M i“gﬂgl HKAS 39. For the derecognition principles, they are consistent with
Bl y[j;;;[ﬁvﬁ;g? SHEH( 5739 that of HKAS 39.
B
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Chiyu Banking @eorporation Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily
effective and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2011
(continued)

The requirements related to the fair value option for financial liabilities
were changed to address own credit risk. It requires the amount of
change in fair value attributable to changes in the credit risk of the
financial liabilities be presented in other comprehensive income. The
remaining amount of the total gain or loss is included in income
statement. If this requirement creates or enlarges an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss, then the whole fair value change is
presented in income statement. The determination of whether there
will be a mismatch will need to be made at initial recognition of
individual liabilities and will not be re-assessed. Amounts presented in
other comprehensive income are not subsequently reclassified to
income statement but may be transferred within equity.

The standard eliminates the exception from fair value measurement
contained in HKAS 39 for derivative liabilities that are linked to and
must be settled by delivery of an unquoted equity instrument.

The mandatory effective date of HKFRS 9 is deferred from 1 January
2013 to 1 January 2015 with earlier adoption still permitted. The deferral
will make it possible to have the same mandatory effective date for the
entire standard. New transitional disclosures are required instead of
comparative restatement. The Group is considering the financial impact of
the standard and the timing of its application.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b) Standards and amendments issued that are not yet mandatorily
effective and have not been early adopted by the Group in 2011
(continued)
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+ HKFRS 10, ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’. HKFRS 10 builds on
existing principles by identifying the concept of control as the determining
factor when considering whether an entity should be included within the
consolidated financial statements of the parent company. The standard
provides additional guidance to assist in the determination of control
where this is difficult to assess. It also replaces all of the guidance on
control and consolidation stipulated in HKAS 27 (Revised), ‘Consolidated
and Separate Financial Statements’ and HK(SIC)- Int 12, ‘Consolidation —
Special Purpose Entities’. The remainder of HKAS 27 (Revised) is
renamed HKAS 27 (2011), ‘Separate Financial Statements’ as a standard
dealing solely with separate financial statements without changing the
existing guidance for separate financial statements.

+ HKFRS 12, ‘Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’. The standard sets
out the required disclosures for entities reporting under the two new
standards, HKFRS 10 and HKFRS 11, and the revised standard HKAS 28
(2011). The existing guidance and disclosure requirements for separate
financial statements stipulated in HKAS 27 (Revised) are unchanged.
HKFRS 12, requires entities to disclose information that helps financial
statements readers to evaluate the nature, risks and financial effects
associated with the entity’s interests in subsidiaries, associates, joint
arrangements and unconsolidated structured entities.

+ HKFRS 13, ‘Fair Value Measurement’. The new standard which was
issued in June 2011 replaces the fair value measurement guidance
contained in individual HKFRSs by providing a revised definition of fair
value and a single source of fair value measurement and disclosure
requirements for use across HKFRSs. The requirements do not extend the
use of fair value accounting, but provide guidance on how it should be
applied when its use is already required or permitted by other standards
within HKFRSs. The Group is assessing the impact on the financial
statements of the Group as a result of the adoption of this new standard.
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Eﬂ‘ﬁ?ﬁﬁ*f‘ﬁﬁ% (78%) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
2. 2 Elgﬁf—%ﬁﬁ%ﬁl &) 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
2.1 ‘rﬁ%‘iﬁl?‘ﬁ ) 2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)
(c) at’? ‘Fﬁﬁ’ﬁ]"ﬁ = YEH] (c) Improvements to HKFRS
7“1% fi ﬁwﬁﬁﬁb =R EIJ[A'I g2l ‘Improvements to HKFRS’ contains numerous amendments to HKFRS which
5& f*{‘ |F f?,é TR the HKICPA consider non-urgent but necessary. It comprises amendments that
4~ IEJ[’T* o IIE[J?I AEFEEIE result in accounting changes for presentation, recognition or measurement
Fer?:' I\/*f BN F‘ AP J| purpose as well as terminology or editorial amendments related to a variety of
E' IR~ ‘”‘515* B[ ﬁfﬁiﬁm‘z;ﬁ 3 individual HKFRS. Most of the amendments are effective for annual periods
YERARE D P I&;#jéﬂ FuisET A beginning on or after 1 July 2010. For amendments that are effective for the
?Z[[S;}F IJT:’ ~ 010# 751 lé[ﬁq financial year beginning on 1 January 2011, there is no material impact on the
ﬂ‘mef B 4 Ao ERNEN20115F 1 J financial statements of the Group.
1F1 EIR J;j# i
By E E%jﬁ Jijfi‘l*rﬂ

@) m* 9?]%[”?? Pt KB () Amendment issued that is not yet mandatorily effective but has been early

A =15 ﬁjf'%‘r%“ adopted by the Group
WA o
¥ R PJ?‘,’ Sl W + & @[ﬁ'ﬁ‘f& TR %
! f1°
Applicable for Currently
financial years relevant to Year of early
Standard/ Interpretation Content beginning on/after the Group adoption
F,?ﬁﬁﬁf‘é ey 12 8% GEiSFT) Brifa 2012 F 1 ] 1 [! KL 2010
HKAS 12 (Amendment) Income Taxes 1 January 2012 Yes 2010
TEHEEREYI28F (REfEFT + HKAS 12 (Amendment), ‘Income Taxes’. The standard which was revised in
F F"rr ﬁEJ o ﬂ*%f*fY“E'[EAng) December 2010 is mandatorily effective for reporting periods beginning on or
125 BLizs ,H/%‘A2012¢" TE[ME! after 1 January 2012. Earlier application is permitted. The Group considers
k&l JI(F fi Jfﬁf': ’?ﬁﬁjjﬂi ¥ ;'fL[ that the required treatment under the revised standard better reflects the tax
FOHE TN A B R ST position of the investment properties of the Group, and has early adopted the
FUpu s R glﬁ ok B :,d#ﬁ amended standard retrospectively since the year ended 31 December 2010.
Ejfgg}‘#’azﬁ;’ K L;,JJFQ = pEf
T PRI EWRRIE, 2 12010
FA2M 3N IGRETY F 7 SR
AR ST PR -
F" (g 'jn‘va 5 F RESEACCE i Upon early adoption, deferred tax liabilities for the revaluation of investment
""“yl_ RV B T R properties have been calculated subject to a nil tax rate.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 2.2 Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements of the
Bank and all of its subsidiaries made up to 31 December.

(1) Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are all entities (including special purpose entities) over
which the Group controls the composition of the Board of Directors,
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controls more than half of the voting power, holds more than half of the
issued capital or by any other means that entitle the Group to govern the
financial and operating policies of the entities. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or convertible are
considered when assessing whether the Group controls another entity.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from the date that
control ceases.

Business combinations not under common control

Acquisitions of businesses not under common control are
accounted for using the acquisition method. The consideration
transferred in a business combination is the fair values at the
acquisition date of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
(including contingent consideration arrangement) and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are expensed the in income
statement as incurred.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over the net
of the acquisition-date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed. If after assessment, the fair value of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree and the fair value of the Group’s
previously held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is
recognised immediately in income statement as a bargain
purchase gain. Subsequently, goodwill is subject to impairment
testing.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(1) Subsidiaries (continued)

(i) Business combinations not under common control (continued)

Where the consideration the Group transfer in a business
combination includes assets or liabilities resulting from a
contingent  consideration  arrangement, the  contingent
consideration is measured at fair value at the acquisition date and
considered as part of the consideration transferred in a business
combination. Changes in the fair value of the contingent
consideration that qualify as measurement period adjustments are
adjusted retrospectively, with the corresponding adjustments being
made against goodwill or gain on bargain purchase. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the measurement period about facts
and circumstances that existed as of the acquisition date.
Measurement period does not exceed one year from the
acquisition date.

On an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, the Group recognises any
non-controlling interests in the acquiree either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interests’ proportionate share of the fair value of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(1) Subsidiaries (continued)

(ii) Business combinations under common control

For combination with a company under common control, the
merger accounting method will be applied. The principle of merger
accounting is a way to combine companies under common control
as though the business of the acquiree had always been carried
out by the acquirer. The Group’s consolidated financial statements
represent the consolidated results, consolidated cash flows and
consolidated financial position of the Group as if any such
combination had occurred from the date when the Bank and the
acquiree first came under common control (i.e. no fair value
adjustment on the date of combination is required). The difference
between the consideration and carrying amount at the time of
combination is recognised in other comprehensive income. The
effects of all transactions between the Group and the acquiree,
whether occurring before or after the combination, are eliminated
in preparing the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
Comparative amounts are presented as if the acquiree had been
combined at the previous end of the reporting period. The
transaction costs for the combination will be expensed in the
income statement.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated; unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
impairment of the assets transferred. Where necessary, accounting
policies of subsidiaries have been changed to ensure consistency with
the policies adopted by the Group.

In the Bank’s balance sheet, the investments in subsidiaries are stated at
cost less allowance for impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Bank on the basis of dividends received and
receivable.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.3

2.4

Segmental reporting

The operating result of segments are reported in a manner consistent with the
internal reporting provided to the Board of Management, which is the chief
operating decision maker of the Group, that allocates resources and assesses
the performance of operating segments. Income and expenses directly
associated with each segment are included in determining business segment
performance.

Foreign currency translation

Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s entities are
measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the entity operates (the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is the Bank’s functional
and presentation currency.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of foreign
currency transactions using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the
transactions and monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies translated at the rate of exchange at the end of the reporting period
are recognised directly in the income statement.

Translation differences on monetary securities held at fair value through profit
or loss are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss. Changes in the fair
value of monetary securities denominated in foreign currency classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation differences resulting from
changes in the amortised cost of the securities and other changes in the
carrying amount of the securities. Translation differences related to changes in
the amortised cost are recognised in the income statement, and other changes
in the carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive income.

Translation differences on non-monetary items, such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss, are reported as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets such as equities
classified as available-for-sale are included in the available-for-sale reserve in
equity.

The results and financial position of all the Group entities that have a

functional currency different from Hong Kong dollars are translated into Hong

Kong dollars as follows:

+ assets and liabilities are translated at the closing rate at the end of the
reporting period;

* income and expenses are translated at average exchange rates; and

« all resulting exchange differences are recognised in the currency translation
reserve in equity through other comprehensive income.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the translation of the net
investment in foreign entities, and of borrowings and other currency
instruments designated as hedges of such investments are taken to other
comprehensive income. When a foreign entity is sold, such exchange
differences are recognised in the income statement, as part of the gain or loss
on sale.
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2. 2 Elgﬁf—%ﬁﬁ%ﬁl &) 2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
25 = &R Ef“f%]"?ﬁ'ﬁ?l' 2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
frd BT LT REE D b Mfl Z%E[’ Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date the derivative
Hiprpya - EILﬁT“?’[FF RN contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Fair
T g~ ARt Rl e 2 f @f P values are obtained from quoted market prices in active markets, including

B R R RV B recent market transactions, and through the use of valuation techniques,
ﬁﬁ@mﬁﬂi B R ] |’,|’£ﬁ; including discounted cash flow models and options pricing models, as
ESRNCTE A s ARCoR E%JM’?TEL appropriate. All derivatives are carried as assets when fair value is positive
ML (O™ - iy 2 Bl [f!j1E and as liabilities when fair value is negative.

- f ’ f}ﬂ‘ SR 2 ‘”F“‘ JIEREY
B BT LR E'[T@/ £ £
fhi-

e T ST 2 T [ The best evidence of the fair value of a derivative at initial recognition is the

RO MERLE T HI%W‘ YR eregy transaction price (i.e., the fair value of the consideration given or received).

WEEI P o > 1)

7 f«ri SR f“‘h’)’ﬁk RNl Certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments, such as the

Qﬁiﬂl S OI'H : ‘T&IF‘J ST B conversion option in a convertible bond, are treated as separate derivatives
£IpvE ‘f'g‘}”‘ﬁ;@ YR AR when their economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those

Fﬂﬂ—f* alEER = KA ﬁ(ﬁJ of the host contract and the host contract is not carried at fair value through

TR iR R profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with

BRRS fﬁi{i |7 S Sl BRI changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.

T R o et I

e o

el = ey I R A S A = Derivatives are categorised as held for trading and changes in their fair value

SR & 5 R E ISV ST 2 are recognised immediately in the income statement unless they are

I SR ﬁ’”%'f*ﬁi’ ’7‘[ fl > designated as hedges and are effective hedging instruments, then they are
J;‘ﬂn ;:Fmg (= BhH 35 B 222 i subject to measurement under the hedge accounting requirements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.5 Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

The Group documents at inception the relationship between hedging
instruments and hedged items, as well as its risk management objective and
strategy for undertaking various hedge transactions. The Group also
documents its assessment, both at the hedge inception and on an ongoing
basis, of whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions are
highly effective in offsetting changes in fair values or cash flows of hedged
items. These criteria should be met before a hedge can be qualified to be
accounted for under hedge accounting.

The Group designated certain foreign currency deposits from customers for
hedging of net investments in foreign operations (net investment hedge).

Net investment hedge

The effective portion of change in fair value of foreign currency deposits from
customers that are designated and qualified as net investment hedges are
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity; a gain
or loss on the ineffective portion is recognised immediately in the income
statement. Accumulated gains and losses previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to income statement upon disposal of
the foreign operation as part of the gain or loss on disposal.

2.6 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the
balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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2.7 FHIEUET BIHL Ej]?ﬁ»;ﬁ')kfgjﬁ 2.7 Interestincome and expense and fee and commission income
i A0 and expense
TV | & R AL A £ ,'?3 » EF U Interest income and expense are recognised in the income statement for all
% ;pq, S I B R T 5 25 el financial assets and financial liabilities using the effective interest method.
F“ .
BPRF RO RL- FEET BT & v iy The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of
S TR RS 4 1) R MR a financial asset or a financial liability and of allocating the interest income or
HI 53 JEF L RS A F I A S interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
T o R Lvigﬁiﬁl flﬁ?UﬁE rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts
FIRSTEAEIR (O™ 1) [ RS through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a
T E quf%' ERE T S ES SR shorter period to the net carrying amount of the financial asset or financial
A PR S e 2 froF): :o&’uf”rﬁ"éﬁ’ liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Group estimates
EF |5 Eﬂi + B E [in hEkA & future cash flows considering all contractual terms of the financial instrument
B @ BT SR (ﬂJI'ﬁ (e.g. prepayment options or incentives relating to residential mortgage loans)
COPHHT ﬁ;l%u%*ftu? o H}Eé\*ﬁ but does not consider future credit losses. The calculation includes fees,
A IJ[§F£) ’ IHT A premiums or discounts and basis points paid or received between parties to
[J[ 551 fFH: ;ﬁ;rmLf.ﬂ ClE At “h the contract, and directly attributable origination fees and costs which
ﬁ*ﬁfﬂlﬂv LR @Ff = represent an integral part of the effective yield are amortised as interest
ﬁ[ RN E\ﬁ E\ﬁ’,ﬁﬁ@ £ fg;ﬁf income or expense over the expected life of the financial instrument.
fﬂﬁrﬁﬂ BH| L 153 frE”%J‘é"”
ngﬂﬁw* ffﬂ/aflﬁ ISIRES
f—fij& SFE AN F L.
E} RIS Ry B - AR ] Jfﬁﬁfﬁ Once a financial asset or a group of similar financial assets has been written
% FFﬁfui’ﬁ&Iﬂ%J*m fﬂ'f‘fﬁf down as a result of an impairment loss, interest income is recognised on the
];E_’ITFJiEﬁt J4 Gl E s SR [%Jﬁf written down value using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash
=g Jﬂ 5 Fr PR i '/?H;E’I =l flows for the purpose of measuring the impairment loss. Subsequent
R o i AV hplE [fﬁﬂu‘ﬁ unwinding of the discount allowance is recognised as interest income.

Er?’ituﬂ LIJ,IY“ o

T ’I!“J"\W’F’E” FF L j[ 73 AR5 Fee and commission income and expenses that are not an integral part of
9w Pl 2 s fg= sy the effective yield are recognised on an accrual basis ratably over the period
ey Jﬂ"“ pgﬁ&?ﬂ(&’ﬂ TR when the related service is provided, such as administrative fee, asset
# ?FE'FTHFp%Ef if%}i(‘*}i kel management fee and custody services fee. Loan syndication fees are
HEHR S F.ﬁ“e i el evk 4 2R recognised as revenue when the related syndication arrangement has been
SURRY A BRI W R E"ﬁf completed and the Group has retained no part of the loan package for itself
o f*ﬁﬁiD'F*?F'NFEW I‘J“;f/’ﬁ"*lj‘ or has retained a part at the same effective interest rate as that of other
fpf[m E‘?\Eﬁ %L[Eﬂé\ﬁ%ﬁ,ﬁ Wl-‘_: participants.
BET .

40



4 & a4y

DEHFHRUMEN A member of BOCHK Group

Chiyu Banking @eorporation Ltd.

FIFFRAMIRE GH)

2. églgﬁr—%ﬁﬁﬁ% (%)

2.8 LD
+8

[k = gie YR o BV P

9GS 0l

a‘aﬁ
i P‘JJZ:F[ ffﬁﬁlﬁ'éi

UE L ﬁﬁ[ngﬁw

F,_léﬁippf[FE )E; qﬁwg}
A

[Jﬁ:

ni%l » l ) [;g_‘”ﬂuyp =
ﬁﬁlf @ﬁw&wa it - ﬂw
fﬁﬁfﬂ ;«ré R s=E] "17‘}?3%,@59

N

(1) FjA g (7 RV S HEE

SRS MY SR :
)f. phE LEILJQ%J;W‘%; » I —K’Eﬁijﬁﬁ
SRR 2 AR F ISR
SRR -

ww;—fvfgrézfﬁg[g}@; RURL! | i1
iﬁ,% EBE Y A RPROAS £~ HT A
PR LS B 5 7

NN @g}p%ﬂj.ﬂa , IH’[@;J%IH%
I‘ﬁ?’z PAF3E o [ B il <8 ISR
SU B T BT < IR K,

F 10 AR 2R -

B (0 B o 2 Y 91 O
oA LS. Pe A
?Héﬁ,lfg*wiﬁi sy IFH@[ =t
LI 2 B -

A 5 PB4 L
YERHELS ﬁ‘#{[l%*} ng I%?IE ’ */’TE?J
ET EL{IJWEEJ L = LT\A :{’T 4
?éwﬁﬁw<%Wﬁ”ﬁ

o D

CMERE - RS BTV A
[E’Lj ﬁk/ o HATE EJ{JE‘I > ‘Fl‘f,jerl
fgm@iﬂ; B rp“r;’-jf P i )
WWﬁg‘%ﬁﬁ-ﬂ%wiﬁ
o [;E_’l :,%Lm gl > ™ m TE‘"
TR P |

- =] t[JE H?& p[ﬁé&'}?‘% \f\{ A—‘;
ERUS L B I
}E%FIFE ﬁﬁfri ;H\ 42;"

SRR R ﬁmz'rp*@: .
I [«E’IL'? '&Tgf:r Bl o phYR | EI
]% ll’%ﬁi > ¥ I ﬁhglj |%4‘l¥%f
Al -

—rn;

n

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets into the following categories:
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss; loans and receivables;
held-to-maturity securities and available-for-sale financial assets. The
Management determines the classification of investments at initial
recognition. The classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were held. All financial assets are recognised initially at fair
value. Except for financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss,
all transaction costs of financial assets are included in their amortised
costs.

(1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

This category has two sub-categories: financial assets held for trading,
and those designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception.

A financial asset which has been acquired or incurred principally for the
purpose of selling in the short term or is part of a portfolio of identified
financial instruments that are managed together and for which there is
evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking is
classified as held-for-trading. Derivatives are also classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedges.

A financial asset, other than one held for trading, will be designated as
a financial asset at fair value through profit or loss, if it meets one of the
criteria set out below, and is so designated by the Management:

+ eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (sometimes referred to as ‘an accounting mismatch’)
that would otherwise arise from measuring the financial assets or
recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases; or

« applies to a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both that is
managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in
accordance with a documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the group is provided internally on that
basis to the key Management; or

* relates to financial assets containing one or more embedded derivative
that significantly modifies the cash flow resulting from those financial
assets.

These assets are recognised initially at fair value, with transaction costs
taken directly to the income statement, and are subsequently
re-measured at fair value.

41



& A Ay
Chiyu Banking @eorporation Ltd.

DEHFHRUMEN A member of BOCHK Group

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

FIFFRAMIRE GH)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2. églgﬁr—%ﬁﬁﬁ% (%)

2.8 YR (W)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)

(1) )22 (= (1) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (continued)
(+8)

R N [l [ A g Gains and losses from changes in the fair value of such assets
% (7 c,Jrﬂ Eff B53) 8 7 e phiE (excluding the interest component) are reported in net trading income
ER [;,I EERL) T A e 4 or net gain/loss on financial instruments designated at fair value
ﬁy&w« '?5]1_[;%&/ rg;rgj o JhyF] through profit or loss. The interest component is reported as part of
Eﬁf" b= =t A | AV /; i interest income. Dividends on equity instruments of this category are
; ,pe;%, B S I/qg‘;@* £ Ey recognised in the consolidated income statement when the Group’s
U ] FEL right to receive payment is established.
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QL 8 gL
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(2) EWR TR

VR Rl R S i Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or

(2) Loans and receivables

EIEEST .ﬂ qu %%[F}Fu determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market,
ZERTE & ;‘ré %I cp? E\L.ﬂvﬂ including placements with and advances to banks and other financial
4. Q@mig}%’*ﬁ,@m*ﬁ 7 ,E{j institutions, investment debt securities without an active market and
jﬁp B @ I AT é\ﬁ k, I3k loans and advances to customers. They arise when the Group provides

Hi A B L iﬂﬁl ?ﬁiﬁ? MR Y money, goods or services directly to a debtor with no intention of trading
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the receivable. They are initially recorded at fair value plus any directly
attributable transaction costs and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less allowances
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for impairment losses.
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(3) Held-to-maturity
Financial assets classified as held-to-maturity are those traded in active
markets, with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities that
the Group’s Management has both the positive intention and the ability
to hold to maturity. Where the Group sold held-to-maturity assets (i)
Elj/fgg[e‘»f}; v@éplﬂ’rﬁl',%w other than due to an isolated event beyond the Group’s control,
t R ZHN T o4 & non-recurring and could not have been reasonably anticipated by the
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.8 Financial assets (continued)

(4) Available-for-sale

Financial assets classified as available-for-sale are those that are either
designated as such or are not classified in any of the other categories.
They are intended to be held for an indefinite period of time but may be
sold in response to needs for liquidity or changes in interest rates,
exchange rates or equity prices.

Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recorded at fair value plus
any directly attributable transaction costs, and are subsequently
measured at fair value. Unrealised gains and losses arising from
changes in the fair value of investments are recognised directly in other
comprehensive income, until the financial asset is disposed of or
impaired at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised in equity should be transferred to the income statement.
However, interest income which includes the amortisation of premium
and discount is calculated using the effective interest method and is
recognised in the income statement. Dividends on equity instruments
classified as available-for-sale are recognised in the other operating
income when the Group’s right to receive payment is established.

LB RESS B T B JERV R The treatment of translation differences on available-for-sale securities
B b 2.4 - is dealt with in Note 2.4.

ERIEH 2.9 Financial liabilities

7#5'?’;[%3'%&' TNERR RS R b The Group classifies its financial liabilities under the following categories:
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trading liabilities, financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or
loss, deposits, debt securities in issue, subordinated liabilities, and other
liabilities. All financial liabilities are classified at inception and recognised
initially at fair value.

(1) Trading liabilities

A financial liability is classified as held for trading if it is incurred
principally for the purpose of repurchasing in the short term. Derivatives
are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedges. It is measured at fair value and any gains and losses
from changes in fair value are recognised in the income statement.
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Chiyu Banking @eorporation Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.9 Financial liabilities (continued)

(2) Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or

loss

A financial liability can be designated at fair value through profit or
loss if it is so designated at inception. Financial liabilities so
designated include certain certificates of deposit issued and certain
deposits received from customers that are embedded with
derivatives. A financial liability is typically so designated if it meets
one of the following criteria:

« eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency (sometimes referred to as ‘an accounting mismatch’)
that would otherwise arise from measuring the financial liabilities or
recognising the gains and losses on them on different bases; or

« applies to a group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both that
is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with a documented risk management or investment
strategy, and information about the group is provided internally on
that basis to the key Management; or

« relates to financial liabilities containing one or more embedded
derivative that significantly modifies the cash flow resulting from
those financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit or loss are
measured at fair value and any gains and losses from changes in fair
value are recognised in the income statement.

(3) Deposits and other liabilities

Deposits, together with other liabilities, other than those classified as
trading liabilities or designated at fair value through profit or loss are
carried at amortised cost or at cost. Any difference (if available)
between proceeds net of transaction costs and the redemption value
is recognised in the income statement over the period using the
effective interest method.

2.10 Financial guarantee contracts
Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require the issuer to
make specified payments to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payments when due, in
accordance with the terms of a contract between the holder and the
debtor.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised as financial liabilities and
reported under “Other accounts and provisions” in the financial
statements at fair value on the date the guarantee was given.
Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group’s liabilities under such
guarantees are measured at the higher of (i) the amount determined in
accordance with HKAS 37 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and
Contingent Assets” and (ii) the amount initially recognised less, where
appropriate, accumulated amortisation recognised over the life of the
guarantee on a straight-line basis. Any changes in the liability relating
to financial guarantees are taken to the income statement.
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Purchases and sales of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities are recognised on the
trade date, the date on which the Group purchases or sells the assets.
Loans and receivables (except investment securities without an active
market) are recognised when cash is advanced to the borrowers.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or where the Group has transferred
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership. When the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the financial asset, the Group either continues to recognise the
transferred financial asset to the extent of its continuing involvement if
control remains or derecognise it if there is no retained control.

Trading liabilities, financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit
or loss and debt securities in issue are recognised on the trade date.
Deposits other than trading liabilities are recognised when money is
received from customers, other liabilities are recognised when such
obligations arise. Financial liabilities are derecognised from the balance
sheet when and only when the obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. If the Group purchases its own debt, it
is removed from the balance sheet, and the difference between the
carrying amount of a liability and the consideration paid is included in net
trading gain/ loss.

Securities and bills sold to a counter-party with an obligation to
repurchase at a pre-determined price on a specified future date under a
repurchase agreement are referred to as Repos. Securities and bills
purchased from a counter-party with an obligation to re-sell to the
counter-party at a pre-determined price on a specified future date under a
resale agreement are referred to as Reverse repos.

Repos or securities lending are initially recorded as due to banks,
placements from banks and other financial institutions, as appropriate, at
the actual amount of cash received from the counter-party. Financial
assets given as collateral for repurchase agreements are not
derecognised and are recorded as investment securities or financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. Reverse repos or securities
borrowing are initially recorded in the balance sheet as cash and due
from banks or placements with banks and other financial institutions, as
appropriate, at the actual amount of cash paid to the counter-party.
Financial assets received as collateral under reverse repurchase
agreements are not recognised on the balance sheet. The difference
between sale and repurchase price is recognised as interest income or
interest expense over the life of the agreements using the effective
interest method.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.12 Determination of fair value of financial instruments
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The fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities that are quoted
in active markets are based on current bid prices and current ask prices
respectively. If the market for financial assets and financial liabilities is not
active (such as unlisted securities), the Group establishes fair value by
using valuation techniques. These include the use of recent arm’s length
transactions, discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing models and
other valuation techniques commonly used by market participants.

2.13 Impairment of financial assets

The Group assesses as at the end of each reporting period whether there
is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and
impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there is objective evidence
of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (a “loss event”) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial
asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets may be
impaired includes observable data that comes to the attention of the
Group about the following probable loss events:

(i) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or obligor;

(ii) a breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or
principal payment;

the Group granting to the borrower, for economic or legal reasons
relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty, a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider;

(ii

=

(iv) it becoming probable that the borrower will enter into bankruptcy or
other financial reorganisation;

(v) the disappearance of an active market or downgrading below
investment grade level for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties; or

(vi) observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows from a group of financial assets since the
initial recognition of those assets, although the decrease cannot yet
be identified with the individual financial assets in the group,
including:

» adverse changes in the payment status of borrowers in the group;
or

« national or local economic conditions that correlate with defaults on
the assets in the group.
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(78) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.13 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(1) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant. If
the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, it includes the asset in a
group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impairment together with all other
financial assets that are not individually significant or for which
impairment has not yet been identified. Assets that are individually
assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or
continues to be recognised are not included in a collective
assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and
receivables or held-to-maturity securities has been incurred, the
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows
(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance
account and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income
statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable
interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is
the current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a
practical expedient, the Group may measure impairment on the basis
of an instrument’s fair value using an observable market price.

The calculation of the present value of the estimated future cash flows
of a collateralised financial asset reflects the cash flows that may
result from foreclosure less costs for obtaining and selling the
collateral.

For the purposes of a collective assessment of impairment, financial
assets are grouped on the basis of similar and relevant credit risk
characteristics. Those characteristics are relevant to the estimation of
future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the
debtors’ ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual
terms of the assets being evaluated.

Future cash flows in a group of financial assets that are collectively
evaluated for impairment are estimated on the basis of the contractual
cash flows of the assets in the group and historical loss experience for
assets with credit risk characteristics similar to those in the group.
Historical loss experience is adjusted on the basis of current
observable data to reflect the effects of current conditions that did not
affect the period on which the historical loss experience is based and
to remove the effects of conditions in the historical period that do not
exist currently.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.13 Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(1) Assets carried at amortised cost (continued)

When a loan is uncollectible, it is written off against the related
allowance for impairment losses. Such loans are written off after all
the necessary procedures have been completed and the amount of
the loss has been determined. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off decrease the amount of impairment losses in the
income statement.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of allowance for impairment
losses decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised (such as an
improvement in the debtor’s credit rating), the previously recognised
impairment loss to the extent of such a decrease is reversed by
adjusting the allowance account. The amount of the reversal is
recognised in the income statement.

Loans whose terms have been renegotiated with substantial
difference in the terms are no longer considered to be past due but are
treated as new loans.

(2) Assets classified as available-for-sale

If evidence of impairment exists for available-for-sale financial assets,
the cumulative losses, measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost or amortised cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in the
income statement, is removed from equity and recognised in the
income statement. In the case of equity investments classified as
available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the security below its cost is considered in determining whether the
assets are impaired. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt
instrument classified as available-for-sale increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment
loss was recognised in the income statement, the impairment loss to
the extent of such an increase is reversed through the income
statement. With respect to equity instruments, further fair value
changes are recognised in the reserve for fair value change of
available-for-sale securities through other comprehensive income,
impairment losses are not reversed through the income statement.

48



& A Ay
Chiyu Banking @eorporation Ltd.

SHEBRMER A member of BOCHK Group

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

FIFFRAMIRE GH)

2. églgﬁr—%ﬁﬁﬁ% (%)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.14 Impairment of investment in subsidiaries and non-financial assets
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Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable.
Potential indications of impairment may include significant adverse
changes in the technological, market, economic or legal environment in
which the assets operate or whether there has been a significant or
prolonged decline in value below their cost.

An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset’s
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash
generating units). Assets that suffered impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

In the Bank’s financial statements, impairment testing of the investment in
a subsidiary is also required upon receiving dividend from that entity if the
dividend exceeds the total comprehensive income of that entity concerned
in the period the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of that entity
in the Bank's statement of financial position exceeds the carrying amount
of that entity's net assets including goodwill in its consolidated statement
of financial position.

2.15 Investment properties

Properties that are held for long-term rental yields or for capital
appreciation or both, and that are not occupied by the companies in the
Group, are classified as investment properties. Properties leased out
within Group companies are classified as investment properties in
individual companies’ financial statements and as premises in
consolidated financial statements. Land held under operating lease is
classified and accounted for as investment property when the rest of the
definition of investment property is met. The operating lease is accounted
for as if it is a finance lease.

Investment properties are recognised initially at cost, including related
transaction costs. After initial recognition, investment properties are
measured at fair value assessed by professional valuers on the basis of
open market value. If information of open market value is not available,
alternative valuation methods are used such as recent prices on less
active markets or discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are
performed in accordance with valuation standards on properties published
by The Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors.
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CIERY VRS CE ¢ IJE"RF i e &F J economic benefits, it is then measured at fair value. All other repairs and
I WHH o I;E_'l[. Bl e maintenance costs are expensed in the income statement during the
’EJ:,E,I P, #égy m RSt Eﬁ financial period in which they are incurred.
TR PSR A
(=1 2 fifi V@E*Jﬁ@ B s A Any changes in fair value are reported directly in the income statement.
ﬂ%
]}”‘?ﬁ’ﬁﬁi ASERE IR HTE ST B If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as
i iﬁﬁg e ﬁ[ » X EA? %9?71 =] premises, and its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost
'H* ey b JE“?WF (il ffky 5 7 2 for accounting purposes. If an item of premises becomes an investment
k'[ﬂﬁ “J:_B'Y@p £ @“Eﬁ’ﬁi R property because its use has changed, any difference resulting between
%@‘7%% SHEHT165E T Pu - Ry e the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer is
E;“ﬁﬁ J}H I"L‘ FIE Vg |1 =g fifr=e 2 recognised in other comprehensive income as a revaluation of premises
|;E| |Tr et [”1 F PUSEEE under HKAS 16 “Property, Plant and Equipment”. However, if a fair value
%E% Frf e PEE 2 (e @ﬁﬁﬁjl gain reverses a previous revaluation loss or impairment loss, the gain is
=VE |E,T§Jiﬂ/1'§y|y§]5}; Eﬂy fil A recognised in the income statement up to the amount previously debited.
Iz FEQH » ] IH(— F»f“p J}Fjﬁ};
EFEEREL o
2.16 & ~ ’ﬁﬁg’w%ﬁﬁ 2.16 Properties, plant and equipment
BT RIS T O BEN A o g Sl Properties are mainly branch and office premises. Premises are shown at
# ]Llﬁ pEFEVE YRR 'Fl” 1 fair value based on periodic, at least annually, valuations by external
@ﬁl[&r@&gﬁ& VEAFHTE R independent valuers less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
E{JE’F}@ A0 S Nl Rt |F‘ Hip1 subsequent accumulated impairment losses. Any accumulated
R B T JTif (H[fifij ;A [/L aES depreciation at the date of revaluation is eliminated against the gross
fifl Y YRR Jﬁlgs?ﬁﬁ’z—fﬂyﬁ carrying amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the
G U W‘@ ﬁ'rf!ﬁ* FIE gjgé;fﬁ revalued amount of the asset. In the intervening periods, the directors
H#’Ji B ) ﬁr]‘ T review the carrying amount of premises, by reference to the open market
fifi > q|§Jt F ik | ”F"thaj 3 F,«@ value of similar properties, and adjustments are made when there has
Q}J 1] ;ﬁl, ]‘;:Lﬁ,ﬁlfjgﬁﬁg F»’TEJKJV = been a material change. All plant and equipment are stated at historical
]jF Bl LR ﬁu;egjﬁﬁgﬂy ik fif cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment. Historical cost
SISE ?ﬂ|w¢ :pﬁ [«J‘iwgbjg,%ﬁy includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition and
NIRRT E A LRI installation of the items.
YR T RV RS L o PUE Subsequent costs are included in an asset’s carrying amount or are
PO RS R R A R recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
SV IS G R T R that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the

o DR O 2
“Ig}ﬁ,_ﬁf‘fz? ((/[Iﬁj () e AR

Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The item is
stated at cost less impairment until it begins to generate economic

ﬂﬂ" [o% Yk fif =2 1 5‘/4*— SIS = benefits, then the item is subsequently measured according to the
W Vig I[J{“i}!%aﬁ'r ﬂ measurement basis of its respective assets class. All other repairs and
WEESEE AT maintenance costs are charged to the income statement during the

ilﬁﬁﬁé‘g’é Fi ’ré/fi Enges En’f“f Fi,HF LIY financial period in which they are incurred.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.16 Properties, plant and equipment (continued)
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Increases in the carrying amount arising on revaluation of premises are
credited to the premises revaluation reserve through other comprehensive
income. Decreases that offset previous increases of the same individual
asset are charged against premises revaluation reserve through other
comprehensive income; all other decreases are expensed in the income
statement. Any subsequent increases are credited to the income
statement up to the amount previously debited, and then to the premises
revaluation reserve. Upon disposal of premises, the relevant portion of the
premises revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is
released and transferred from the premises revaluation reserve to retained
earnings.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line method to write down the
cost or revalued amount of such assets over their estimated useful lives as
follows:

* Properties

* Plant and equipment

Over the life of government land leases
3-15 years

The useful lives of assets are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, as at
the end of each reporting period.

At the end of each reporting period, both internal and external sources of
information are considered to determine whether there is any indication
that premises, equipment, fixtures and fittings are impaired. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and
where relevant, an impairment loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its
recoverable amount. Such impairment loss is recognised in the income
statement except where the asset is carried at valuation and the
impairment loss does not exceed the revaluation surplus for that same
asset, in which case it is treated as a revaluation decrease. The
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s fair value less costs to sell
and value in use. Impairment loss is reversed through the premises
revaluation reserve or income statement as appropriate.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds
with carrying amount, relevant taxes and expenses. These are included in
the income statement.
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Chiyu Banking @eorporation Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.17 Leases
(1) Operating leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of
ownership are retained by the lessor are classified as operating
leases. The total payments made under operating leases (net of any
incentives received from the lessor) are charged to the income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

When an operating lease is terminated before the lease period has
expired, any payment required to be made to the lessor by way of
penalty is recognised as an expense in the period in which termination
takes place. Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

(2) Finance leases

Leases of assets where lessee have obtained substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases.
Government land leases in Hong Kong are classified as finance
leases as market anticipates that the leases can be extended for a
nominal amount, the risks and rewards of leasehold land would have
already been substantially transferred to the lessee as if it were
freehold.

Finance leases are capitalised at the lease’s commencement at the
lower of the fair value of the leased asset and the present value of the
minimum lease payments. Each lease payment is allocated between
the liability and finance charges so as to achieve a constant rate on
the finance balance outstanding. The corresponding rental
obligations, net of finance charges, are included in other liabilities.
Investment properties acquired under finance leases are carried at
their fair value.

When assets are leased out under a finance lease, the present value
of the lease payments is recognised as a receivable. Lease income is
recognised over the term of the lease using net investment method,
which reflects a constant periodic rate of return.

2.18 Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with original maturity less than three
months from the date of acquisition, including cash, balances with banks
and other financial institutions, short-term bills and notes classified as
investment securities and certificates of deposit.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.19 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to
settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation
can be made.

2.20 Employee benefits
(1) Retirement benefit costs

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement schemes
under either recognised ORSO schemes or MPF schemes that are
available to the Group’s employees. Contributions to the schemes by
the Group and employees are calculated as a percentage of
employees’ basic salaries for the ORSO schemes and in accordance
with the MPF rules for MPF schemes. The retirement benefit scheme
costs are charged to the income statement as incurred and represent
contributions payable by the Group to the schemes. Contributions
made by the Group that are forfeited by those employees who leave
the ORSO scheme prior to the full vesting of their entitlement to the
contributions are used by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contributions or to meet its expenses under the trust deed of the
ORSO schemes.

The assets of the schemes are held in independently-administered
funds separate from those of the Group.

(2) Leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and sick leave are recognised
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated
liability for unused annual leave and the amount of sick leave
expected to be paid as a result of services rendered by employees up
to the end of the reporting period.

Compensated absences other than sick leave and special approved
annual leaves are non-accumulating; they lapse if the current period’s
entitlement is not used in full. Except unexpired annual leaves, they do
not entitle employees to a cash payment for unused entitlement on
leaving the Group. Such compensated absences are recognised
when the absences occur.

(3) Bonus plans

The expected cost of bonus payments are recognised as a liability
when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a
result of services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of
the obligation can be made. Liabilities for bonus plans are expected to
be settled longer than twelve months will be recognised using
discounted cash flow method if the amounts are significant.
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.21 Current and deferred income taxes
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Tax expenses for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is
recognised in the income statement, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised directly in other comprehensive income. In this case, the
tax is also recognised in other comprehensive income within the
corresponding item.

Income tax payable on profits, based on the applicable tax law enacted or
substantially enacted at the end of the reporting period in each jurisdiction
where the Bank and the subsidiaries operate and generate taxable
income, is recognised as a current income tax expense in the period in
which profits arise.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the balance sheet liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws
that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the
reporting period and are expected to apply when the related deferred
income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The principal temporary differences arise from asset impairment
provisions, depreciation of property and equipment, revaluation of certain
assets including available-for-sale securities and properties, and tax
losses carried forward. However, the deferred income tax is not
recognised if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction other than a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred income tax liabilities are provided in full on all taxable temporary
differences and deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is charged or credited in the income statement except
for deferred income tax relating to fair value re-measurement of
available-for-sale securities and revaluation of premises which are
charged or credited to other comprehensive income, in which case the
deferred income tax is also credited or charged to other comprehensive
income and is subsequently recognised in the income statement together
with the realisation of the deferred gain and loss.

Deferred tax liability or deferred tax asset arising from investment property
is determined based on the presumption that the revaluation amount of
such investment property will be recovered through sale with the relevant
tax rate applied.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2. Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

2.22 Repossessed assets

Repossessed assets are initially recognised at the lower of their fair value
less costs to sell and the amortised cost of the related outstanding loans
on the date of repossession, and the related loans and advances together
with the related impairment allowances are derecognised from the balance
sheet. Subsequently, repossessed assets are measured at the lower of
their cost and fair values less costs to sell and are reported as ‘non-current
assets held for sale’ included in ‘Other assets’.

2.23 Fiduciary activities

The Group commonly acts as a trustee, or in other fiduciary capacities,
that result in its holding or managing assets on behalf of individuals, trusts
and other institutions. These assets and any gains or losses arising
thereon are excluded from these financial statements, as they are not
assets of the Group.

2.24 Contingent liabilities and contingent assets

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that an
outflow of economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation
cannot be measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised as a provision but is disclosed in the
notes to the financial statements. When a change in the probability of an
outflow occurs so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a
provision.

A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises from past events and
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain events not wholly within the
control of the Group.

Contingent assets are not recognised but are disclosed in the notes to the
financial statements when an inflow of economic benefits is probable.
When the inflow is virtually certain, it will be recognised as an asset.

2.25 Related parties

For the purposes of these financial statements, a party is considered to be
related to the Group if that party controls, jointly controls or has significant
influence over the Group; is a member of the same financial reporting
group, such as parents, subsidiaries and fellow subsidiaries; is an
associate or a joint venture of the Group or parent reporting group; is a key
management personnel of the Group or parents, or where the Group and
the party are subject to common control. Related parties may be
individuals or entities.
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Fﬁ' Fﬁ?jﬁﬂj /gl‘k?f"l‘fﬁ,"{‘k" 3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying
accounting policies
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The Group makes estimates and assumptions that affect the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates and judgements
are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other
factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances. Areas susceptible to changes in essential
estimates and judgements, which affect the carrying amount of assets and
liabilities, are set out below. The effect of changes to either the key
assumptions or other estimation uncertainties will be presented below if it is
practicable to determine. It is possible that actual results may require material
adjustments to the estimates referred to below.

3.1

3.2

Impairment allowances on loans and advances

The Group reviews its loan portfolios to assess impairment at least on a
quarterly basis. In determining whether an impairment loss should be
recorded in the income statement, the Group makes judgements as to
whether there is any observable data indicating that there is a measurable
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a portfolio of loans and
advances before the decrease can be identified with an individual loan in
that portfolio. This evidence may include observable data indicating that
there has been an adverse change in the payment status of borrowers in a
group (e.g. payment delinquency or default), or economic conditions that
correlate with defaults on assets in the group. Management uses
estimates based on historical loss experience for assets with credit risk
characteristics and objective evidence of impairment similar to those in the
portfolio when estimating expected future cash flows. The methodology
and assumptions used for estimating both the amount and timing of future
cash flows are reviewed regularly.

Carrying amounts of loans and advances as at 31 December 2011 are
shown in Note 22 to the Financial Statements.

Impairment of held-to-maturity and available-for-sale securities

The Group reviews its held-to-maturity and available-for-sale investment
portfolios to assess impairment at least on a quarterly basis. In
determining whether any of these investments is impaired, risk
characteristics and performance such as external credit rating, market
price etc will be assessed. The Group makes estimates on the default rate
and loss severity of each investment with reference to market performance
of the portfolios, current payment status of the issuers or performance of
the underlying assets, or economic conditions that correlate with defaults
on the collateralised assets.

Carrying amounts of investment in securities as at 31 December 2011 are
shown in Note 24 to the Financial Statements.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

% 3. Critical accounting estimates and judgements in applying

accounting policies (continued)

3.3 Fair values of derivatives financial instruments

3.4

The fair values of derivatives financial instruments that are not quoted in
active markets are determined by using valuation techniques. Valuation
techniques used include discounted cash flows analysis and models with
built-in functions available in externally acquired financial analysis or risk
management systems widely used by the industry. To the extent practical,
the models use only observable data.

Carrying amounts of derivative financial instruments as at 31 December
2011 are shown in Note 21 to the Financial Statements.

Held-to-maturity Securities

The Group follows the guidance of HKAS 39 in classifying certain
non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and
fixed maturity as held-to-maturity securities. This classification requires
significant management judgement to evaluate the Group’s intention and
ability to hold such investments to maturity. If the Group fails to hold these
investments to maturity other than for specific circumstances defined in
HKAS 39, such as selling an insignificant amount, selling close to maturity
or due to significant credit deterioration of such investments, it will be
required to reclassify the entire portfolio of financial assets as
available-for-sale securities. The investments would then be measured at
fair value and not amortised cost.

Carrying amounts of Held-to-maturity securities as at 31 December 2011
are shown in Note 24 to the Financial Statements.
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Chiyu Banking @eorporation Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management

The Group is exposed to financial risks as a result of engaging in a variety of
business activities. The principal financial risks are credit risk, market risk
(including currency risk and interest rate risk) and liquidity risk. This note
summarises the Group’s exposures to these risks.

Financial risk management framework

The Group’s risk management governance structure is designed to cover all
businesses processes and ensure various risks are properly managed and
controlled in the course of conducting business. The Group has a robust risk
management organisational structure. It implements a comprehensive set of
policies and procedures to identify, measure, monitor and control various risks that
may arise. These risk management policies and procedures are regularly
reviewed and modified to reflect changes in markets and business strategies.
Various groups of risk takers assume their respective responsibilities for risk
management.

The Board of Directors, representing the interests of shareholders, is the highest
decision making authority of the Group and has the ultimate responsibility for risk
management. The Board, with the assistance of the RC, has the primary
responsibility for the formulation of risk management strategies and for ensuring
that the Group has an effective risk management system to implement these
strategies.

The RC, a standing committee established by the Board of Directors, is
responsible for overseeing the Group’s various types of risks, reviewing and
approving high-level risk-related policies and overseeing their implementation,
reviewing significant or high risk exposures or transactions and exercising its
power of veto if it considers that any transaction should not proceed. The AC
assists the Board in fulfilling its role in overseeing the internal control system.

The Chief Executive (“CE”) is responsible for managing the Group’s various types
of risks, approving detailed risk management policies, and approving material risk
exposures or transactions within his authority delegated by the Board of Directors.
The Head of SCD assists the CE in fulfilling his responsibilities for the day-to-day
management of risks. The Head of SCD is responsible for initiating new risk
management strategies, projects and measures that will enable the Group to
better monitor and manage new risk issues or areas that may arise from time to
time from new businesses, products and changes in the operating environment.
He may also take appropriate initiatives in response to regulatory changes. The
Head of SCD is also responsible for reviewing material risk exposures or
transactions within his delegated authority and exercising his power of veto if he
believes that any transaction should not proceed.

Various units of the Group have their respective risk management responsibilities.
Business units act as the first line of defence while risk management units, which
are independent from the business units, are responsible for the day-to-day
management of different kinds of risks. Risk management units have the primary
responsibilities for drafting, reviewing and updating various risk management
policies and procedures.
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Chiyu Banking @eorporation Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Financial risk management framework (continued)

The Group has put in place appropriate internal control systems, including
establishment of an organisation structure that sets adequately clear lines of
authority and responsibility for monitoring compliance with policies, procedures
and limits. Proper reporting lines also provide sufficient independence of the
control functions from the business areas, as well as adequate segregation of
duties throughout the organisation which helps to promote an appropriate internal
control environment.

Product development

To ensure effective risk assessment and monitoring, the Group developed a
comprehensive product development and management framework which clearly
defines the roles and responsibilities of all related units, and the proper risk
assessment procedures for the product development process.

In accordance with the strategic objectives set by the Board and the Management,
the respective product management units are responsible for formulating business
and product development plans, which are aligned with the Group’s overall
strategies. Units that are responsible for risk management, legal, compliance and
finance etc. are accountable for risk assessment and review.

Apart from product development, the respective business units shall work closely
with relevant risk evaluating departments to identify and assess all the related
risks. Risk evaluating departments shall conduct independent review on risk
management procedures and assessment results. Products can only be launched
after the risk management procedures are fulfiled and endorsed by all risk
evaluating departments.

4.1 Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that a customer or counterparty will be unable to
or unwilling to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk exists in the trading
book and banking book, on- and off-balance sheet exposures of a bank. It
arises principally from the lending, trade finance and treasury businesses, and
covers inter-bank transactions, foreign exchange and derivative transactions
as well as investments in bonds and securities.

Credit risk management framework

The Group has formulated a comprehensive set of credit risk management
policies and procedures, and appropriate credit risk limits to manage and
control credit risk that may arise. These policies, procedures and credit risk
limits are regularly reviewed to cope with changes in market conditions and
business strategies.

The Group’s organisation structure establishes a clear set of authority and
responsibility for monitoring compliance with policies, procedures and limits.
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Credit risk management framework (continued)

The Head of SCD is responsible for the management of credit risk and for
the formulation of all credit policies and procedures. Various units of the
Group have their respective credit risk management responsibilities.
Business units act as the first line of defense. Risk and Credit Management
Division (“CMD”), which is independent from the business units, is
responsible for the day-to-day management of credit risks and has the
primary responsibility for providing an independent due diligence through
identifying, measuring, monitoring and controlling credit risk to ensure an
effective checks and balances, as well as drafting, reviewing and updating
credit risk management policies and procedures.

The Board of Directors delegates credit approval authority to the CE. The
CE can further delegate to the subordinates within his limit authorised by
the Board of Directors. The Group sets the limits of credit approval authority
according to the business nature, rating, the level of transaction risk, and
the extent of the credit exposure.

Credit risk measurement and control

In view of the rapidly changing market conditions, the Group has been
continuously revisiting its lending strategies and conducting rigorous
reviews on the concerned portfolios.

Loans and advances

Different credit approval and control procedures are adopted according to
the level of risk associated with the customer, counterparty or transaction.
Corporate and financial institution credit applications are independently
reviewed and objectively assessed by risk management units. Obligor
ratings and facility grades are assigned to these portfolios. Retail internal
rating systems are deployed in risk assessment of retail credit transactions,
including small business retail exposures, residential mortgage loans,
personal loans and credit cards. Loan grades, obligor ratings as well as
loss estimates (if applicable) are used to support credit approval.

The Group uses loan grades, obligor ratings and loss estimates (if
applicable) to support credit monitoring, analysis and reporting. For
corporate and financial institution, more frequent rating review and closer
monitoring are required for higher risk customers. For retail exposures,
monthly updated ratings and loss estimates are used for credit monitoring
on a portfolio basis. More comprehensive review is required for obligors
being identified under high-risk pools.

The Group has established credit master scale for internal rating purpose,
which is in compliance with the Hong Kong Banking (Capital) Rules under
the Banking Ordinance on rating structure, and can be mapped to S&P
external ratings.

60



& A Ay
Chiyu Banking @eorporation Ltd.

DEHFHRUMEN A member of BOCHK Group

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Eﬁ’%%%ﬁﬁﬁ% G&)
4, é’fﬁ!{’ﬂ*ﬁﬁﬁ@ 7)) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 fé[gjizﬂ!@ (&) 4.1 Credit Risk (continued)

[FIE’FE*Fﬁ rfl‘l_‘yE:ﬁ: (&)
HEOE GE)

‘ﬁsig,féﬂ#:ﬂ R [?n‘“fﬁﬁ:&,ll
It GBI 5 Ak
R I 3P IR ) A9
HF;erj;-\ («'EJH jj/\%% |E—n|7ﬁ7j__qﬁ;) gﬂa—n
|kaap_r@f')fﬁp‘7* £ H| 17‘*[*7 f' 5
g‘%#ufﬁﬁw#* o F*[«ﬁé R

pJ UL AET’;.BF VR
4;u L;IP;1$ TJ

‘ﬁﬁ@ufﬁﬁﬁ?ﬂ&?{
?ﬂ/i’ g

%j i E’F Fuler: ?EU“
i’%ﬁv* » I AJ'“T%FE*J%%@E%%
ETE i -

WL S E“E*[‘a%
1%~ R R AR

B F‘fu*ﬁf Pl - T ph S
SRR B e b R 1 R
5y — i Eiﬁ— (5 eV fa ~ 7R
CVR I B 1 R [
=

g

“sbf} g

[

= 2011 1k & RN ifﬁﬁf E*;.}F“
ﬁ'i?#[@m S rJl [N 5 ey
EAICEF LS8

{IF(J i} ?[?—i\ '* Fﬂ—l:;‘;%lﬁ’
[ kﬂjg\;ﬁ ’ Eﬁ*@?‘l?rﬁlﬂj}iuyZD
i) e -

P ik
" i fﬁﬁﬁmwuﬁw :
H o R A TR R S‘E}
(RO P bR > e fELR
iﬁ#}gii

TR RLIR R C T PR
I T R

—

—w]

TR LTS G
BN ?[W‘Qﬁ#"ﬁ#, U B @%Whﬂ.&vp
"rﬂ?ﬁﬁvj{if*'/*/ﬂ FUB T 6

Ly E r"T‘EJ;g_ﬁE]‘ﬁ-ﬁiin
i L)
£V -

e £ ,.NH Y

Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Loans and advances (continued)

In addition to obligor ratings, the Group adopts a facility rating system (in the
case of corporate and bank exposure) and expected loss (in the case of retail
exposure) to assess the risk in the facility structure during credit approval.
This two-dimensional rating approach to evaluate credit risk complies with the
HKMA's requirements on Internal Rating-Based approach (“IRB”).

CMD provides regular credit management information reports and ad hoc
reports to the Board of Management, RC and Board of Directors to facilitate
their continuous monitoring of credit risk.

The Group identifies credit concentration risk by industry, geography,
customer and counterparty risk. The Group monitors changes to
counterparties credit risk, quality of the credit portfolio and risk concentrations,
and reports regularly to the Group’s management.

As of 31 December 2011, the Group continues to adopt loan grading criteria
which divide credit assets into 5 categories with reference to HKMA's
guidelines as below:

“Pass” represents loans where the borrower is current in meeting its
repayment obligations and full repayment of interest and principal is not in
doubt.

“Special Mention” represents loans where the borrower is experiencing
difficulties which may threaten the Group’s position. Ultimate loss is not
expected at this stage but could occur if adverse conditions persist.

“Substandard” represents loans where the borrower displays a definable
weakness that is likely to jeopardise repayment.

“Doubtful” represents loans where collection in full is improbable and the
Group expects to sustain a loss of principal and/or interest, taking into account
the net realisable value of the collateral.

“Loss” represents loans which are considered uncollectible after all collection
options (such as the realisation of collateral or the institution of legal
proceedings) have been exhausted.
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Credit risk measurement and control (continued)

Debt securities and derivatives

For investments in debt securities, the obligor ratings or external credit
ratings, assessment of the underlying assets and credit limits setting on
customer/security issuer basis are used for managing credit risk associated
with the investment. For derivatives, the Group sets customer limits to
manage the credit risk involved and follows the same approval and control
processes as applied for loans and advances. Ongoing monitoring and
stop-loss procedures are established.

Settlement risk arises mainly from foreign exchange transactions with
counterparties and also from derivatives in any situation where a payment in
cash, securities or equities is made in the expectation of a corresponding
receipt in cash, securities or equities. Daily settlement limits are established
for each counterparty or customer to cover all settlement risk arising from the
Group’s market transactions on any single day.

Collateral held as security and other credit enhancements

The valuation and management of collateral have been documented in the
credit risk management policies and procedures which cover acceptance
criteria, validity of collateral, loan-to-value ratio, haircut ratio, valuation and
insurance, etc. The collateral is revalued on a regular basis, though the
frequency and the method used varies with the type of collateral involved and
the nature and the risk of the underlying credit. The Group has established a
mechanism to update the value of its main type of collateral, real estate
properties with the use of public indices on a portfolio basis. Collateral is
insured with the Group as the beneficiary. In the personal sector, the main
types of collateral are real estate properties, cash deposits and securities. In
the commercial and industrial sector, the main types of collateral are real
estate properties, securities, receivables, cash deposits and machinery.

For loans guaranteed by a third party, the Group will assess the guarantor’s
financial condition, credit history and ability to meet obligations.

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, the Group did not hold any collateral that
it was permitted to sell or re-pledge in the absence of default by the borrower.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit Risk (continued)

A. Credit exposures

The maximum exposure is a worst case scenario of credit risk exposure to the
Group without taking account of any collateral held or other credit enhancements.
For on-balance sheet assets, the maximum exposure to credit risk equals their
carrying amount. For letters of guarantee issued, the maximum exposure to credit
risk is the maximum amount that the Group could be required to pay if the
guarantees are called upon. For loan commitment and other credit related
liabilities, the maximum exposure to credit risk is the full amount of the committed
facilities.

The nature of the collateral held and other credit enhancements and their
financial effect to the different classes of the Group’s financial assets are as
follows.

Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions

These exposures are generally considered to be low risk due to the nature of the
counterparties. Collateral is generally not sought on these assets.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and investment in securities

Collateral is generally not sought on debt securities.

Derivative financial instruments

The International Swaps and Derivatives Association Master Agreement is the
preferred agreement for documenting derivatives activities of the Group. It
provides the contractual framework within which dealing activities across a full
range of OTC products are conducted, and contractually bind both parties to
apply close-out netting across all outstanding transactions covered by an
agreement if either party defaults or another pre-agreed termination event occurs.

Advances and other accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments

The general types of collateral are disclosed on page 62. Advances and other
accounts, contingent liabilities and commitments are collateralised to the extent
considered appropriate by the Group taking account of the risk assessment of
individual exposures. The collateral coverage of advances to customers is
analysed on pages 73 to 74. The components and nature of contingent liabilities
and commitments is disclosed in Note 35. Regarding the commitments that are
unconditionally cancellable without prior notice, the Group would assess the
necessity to withdraw the credit line in case where the credit quality of a borrower
deteriorates. Accordingly, these commitments do not expose the Group to
significant credit risk.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit Risk (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts

Gross advances and other accounts before loan impairment allowances are

summarised by product type as follows:

2011 2010
il i
HK$'000 HK$’000
Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages 3,124,845 3,434,478
- Others 2,725,069 2,269,967
Corporate
- Commercial loans 15,805,726 14,589,932
- Trade finance 1,272,166 1,363,422
22,927,806 21,657,799
Trade bills 2,376,141 1,191,252
Total 25,303,947 22,849,051
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit Risk (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

Advances with a specific repayment date are classified as overdue when the
principal or interest is past due and remains unpaid. Advances repayable by regular
instalments are classified as overdue when an instalment payment is past due and
remains unpaid. Advances repayable on demand are classified as overdue either
when a demand for repayment has been served on the borrower but repayment has
not been made in accordance with the instruction or when the advances have
remained continuously outside the approved limit that was advised to the borrower.

A financial asset is impaired and impairment losses are incurred if, and only if, there
is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred
and that loss event(s) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset that can be reliably estimated.

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans has been incurred,
the amount of loss is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows generated by the financial asset.
Obijective evidence that a financial asset is impaired includes observable data that
comes to the attention of the holder of the asset about the loss events.

The criteria that the Group uses to determine that there is objective evidence of an
impairment loss include:

- Significant financial difficulty incurred by the borrower;

+ A breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal
payment;

+ For economic or legal reasons related to the borrower’s financial difficulty, the

Group has granted to the borrower a concession that it would not otherwise
consider;

- Probable that the borrower will become bankrupt or undergo other financial
reorganisation; or

- Other observable data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the
estimated future cash flows from such loans and advances.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit Risk (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(a) Advances neither overdue nor impaired

Advances that were neither overdue nor impaired are analysed by internal credit

grades as follows:

2011
At TR I TRARE T Rt
P ?Ipe?fial Substaﬂdard
Pass mention or below Total
AT AT 7 T 7 T 7
HIH;’OOO HI%’OOO HK$'000 HI@’OOO
Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages 3,090,767 17,315 563 3,108,645
- Others 2,615,398 93,971 271 2,709,640
Corporate
- Commercial loans 15,635,164 74,564 - 15,709,728
- Trade finance 1,270,641 842 - 1,271,483
22,611,970 186,692 834 22,799,496
Trade bills 2,265,141 111,000 - 2,376,141
Total 24,877,111 297,692 834 25,175,637
2010
pecial Substandard
Pass mention or below Total
%ﬁff’.ﬁ” T %ﬁff’.ﬁ” T ?%Ff[’éu' T ?%Ff[’éu' T
HK§S’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
Advances to customers
Personal
- Mortgages 3,383,609 17,871 637 3,402,117
- Others 2,235,735 14,341 - 2,250,076
Corporate
- Commercial loans 14,331,453 170,416 - 14,501,869
- Trade finance 1,301,807 59,337 - 1,361,144
21,252,604 261,965 637 21,515,206
Trade bills 1,191,252 - - 1,191,252
Total 22,443,856 261,965 637 22,706,458

The occurrence of loss event(s) may not necessarily result in impairment loss
where the loans are fully collateralised. While such loans are of “substandard” or
lower grades, they are regarded as not being impaired and have been included in

the above table.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit Risk (continued)

(b) Advances overdue but not impaired

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

The gross amount of advances overdue but not impaired is analysed as follows:

2011
WG aEEE
a3 (] 3MEIET 6 EIET S
R LS T EE et
Overdue for Overdue
Overdue 6 months for 1 year
for or less or less Overdue
3 months but over but over for
or less 3 months 6 months  over 1 year Total
WA T AT S AT S AT S WA S
HIHS’OOO HI&‘OOO HI&’OOO HI&’OOO HI&‘OOO
FTER Advances to customers
it * Personal
- i - Mortgages 16,200 - - - 16,200
- Y - Others 13,571 - 1,297 561 15,429
2l Corporate
- f&ﬁf ETH -Commercial loans 92,674 - - 3,324 95,998
- B BLEIEY -Trade finance - - - - -
Sk Total 122,445 - 1,297 3,885 127,627
2010
] 3 il k] 3T 6 eI {7 e
s ‘E@’@G M 2] %’;@1 = i1 = AFE
Overdue for Overdue
Overdue 6 months for 1 year
for or less or less Overdue
3 months or but over but over for
less 3 months 6 months  over 1 year Total
P&ff’.ﬂ T %ff’,ﬁu’ T %ff’,ﬁu’ T %EU?W T %EU?W T
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TETHE Advances to customers
M~ Personal
- e - Mortgages 29,200 - 2,161 - 31,361
- - Others 20,097 571 197 - 20,865
o ’pj Corporate
- TR -Commercial loans 82,474 - - 3,953 86,427
- B AR -Trade finance - - - - -
A Total 131,771 571 2,358 3,953 138,653
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Eﬂ"‘%ﬁﬁ*f‘ﬁﬁ% (78) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. EpleEtE (GB) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
41 ['F=',E.’i‘?f‘|‘ﬁ G#) 4.1 Credit Risk (continued)
B. MEFH Y H FIECH () B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(c) Yl €Ty (c) Impaired advances
ST RR R Advances individually identified to be impaired are analysed by product type as
PR3 AT follows:
2011 2010
RLETE  ERLT MR AEE LU
Igl#a{riet Eﬁa[rket
Gross value of Gross value of
advances collateral advances collateral
AT S WA S HMBT T %Ffwvm
HI'{%'OOO HI'{%'OOO HI£ 000 000
O e Advances to customers
fiit * Personal
- Hil - Mortgages - - - i
- B Py - Others 1 - 26 -
2l Corporate
- T evE - Commercial loans - - 1,636 846
P ﬁi i
- BT RARRY - Trade finance 682 - 2,278 -
S Total 683 - 3,940 846
i E Ffﬁ?‘?\ [ EV TR Loan impairment
|'i;£u— 'TFJ allowances made in
respect of such advances 237 2,605
E\ﬁﬁ& @?‘*ﬁﬁ’ HE =T H The loan impairment allowances were made after taking into account the value of
ot E TJ R g#lm}l [%} collateral in respect of impaired advances.
2011 2010
e A
HK$'000 HK$°000
[l Eai #?ié'rﬁ & Current market value of collateral held
g lE\ﬁ Ugss against the covered portion of such
advances to customers - 846
AP R Covered portion of such advances to
Eﬁfﬁ customers - 615
I P R Uncovered portion of such advances to
ETER) customers 683 3,325
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Eﬂ"‘%ﬁﬁ*f‘ﬁﬁ% (78) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. EpleEtE (GB) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
4.1 [’F=’,E,‘j~?f‘|!ﬁ Ga) 4.1 Credit Risk (continued)
B. MEFH Y H FIECH () B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(c) WRiBETH () (c) Impaired advances (continued)
ST TR e Classified or impaired advances to customers are analysed as follows:
Rt
2011 2010
e HHTE R
HK$'000 HK$°000
B D K e Gross classified or impaired advances to
e customers 6,810 10,889
{F&Hﬁ LTI Gross classified or impaired advances to
ENREREE e PR customers as a percentage of gross
advances to customers 0.03% 0.05%
ﬁ}i?\fﬁ& ErRy f'EI'[E'ﬁJHFI fifi Individually assessed loan impairment
CrR allowances made in respect of such
advances 237 2,605
B Lo B e Classified or impaired advances to customers follow the definitions set out in the
ol (ELEg (e Banking (Disclosure) Rules and represent advances which are either classified as
HID i w4 “substandard”, “doubtful” or “loss” under the Group’s classification of loan quality,
B ERE TR T MRS T or individually assessed to be impaired.

PN Fﬁ\[fﬂ*‘u F\/} FE}F}J
ETF = RL I ff Foi
v -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit Risk (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(d) Advances overdue for more than 3 months

The gross amount of advances overdue for more than 3 months of the Group is

analysed as follows:

Gross advances to
customers which have
been overdue for:

- six months or less but
over three months

- one year or less but
over six months

- over one year

Advances overdue for over
three months

Individually assessed loan
impairment allowances
made in respect of such
advances

70

2011 2010
el fré ik
& HEF 157 &¥ AEFIE
% of gross % of gross
advances to advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
i Fu HMBET L
HK$'000 HK$’000
- 0.00% 571 0.00%
1,297 0.01% 2,993 0.02%
4,568 0.02% 7,258 0.03%
5,865 0.03% 10,822 0.05%
237 2,592
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Eﬂ"‘%ﬁﬁ*f‘ﬁﬁ% (78) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
4. ERRlEE G 4. Financial risk management (continued)
41 fREVER (R 4.1 Credit Risk (continued)
B. MEFH Y H FIECH () B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
(d) ﬁﬁﬁﬁjﬁ 3 E] 55 (d) Advances overdue for more than 3 months (continued)
(78)
2011 2010
R g
HK$'000 HK$’000
Hif B E R #[? %F & Current market value of collateral held
ETENE £ # against the covered portion of such
advances to customers 10,272 17,368
Bt ﬁ#'ﬁl}? W A Covered portion of such advances to
Efﬁ customers 5,182 7,496
BrgE }%#[Fﬁ#[?ﬁ% V& Uncovered portion of such advances to
- g\ﬁ customers 683 3,326
A €T {I‘f?'ﬁffl;ﬂ_'l ?“ﬁﬁ‘lﬁ Collateral held against overdue or impaired loans is principally represented by
#”fﬁ 1= R E'Ji} AL charges over business assets such as commercial and residential premises for
EAN IR i 2L f’p‘rji * corporate loans and mortgages over residential properties for personal loans.

R "}ylgi ,fgm

ERIEcE £ S

2011 F 12 [ 31 [ As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, there were no advances to banks and other
2010 # 12 5] 311 4 & financial institutions overdue for more than three months.

ENZE qﬁ*fq’_} 3 fWF

AR E P& ﬁjﬂ]/},—?ﬂﬁ TR
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit Risk (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(e) Rescheduled advances

2011 2010
[k e (ke
=3 Eﬁﬁ 153 & e AEEF 153 B
% of gross % of gross
advances to advances to
Amount customers Amount customers
il WP
HI&’OOO HK$’000
Rescheduled advances
to customers net of
amounts included in
advances overdue for
more than 3 months - 0.00% - 0.00%

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, there were no rescheduled advances to banks
and other financial institutions for the Group.

Rescheduled advances are those advances that have been restructured or
renegotiated because of deterioration in the financial position of the borrower or of the
inability of the borrower to meet the original repayment schedule. Rescheduled
advances, which have been overdue for more than three months under the revised
repayment terms, are included in overdue advances.

72



4 & a4y

SHEBRMER A member of BOCHK Group

Chiyu Banking @eorporation Ltd.

PRI (D

4 SWRGTE (B)  4.Fin

4.1 fﬁ%‘iﬁ?l‘ﬁ &)
B. AT W H PIERE GB)
(f) HEIETRRAE

() fEE Y E e
A

U R
IR e TR

ancial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit Risk (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The information concerning gross advances to customers has been analysed into
loans used inside or outside Hong Kong by industry sectors of the borrowers as

TR & follows:
EVEURE Y R
2011
BPRREY  HEH FHETY ROFR
HEIH FIvE PO AR RIS T Eﬁﬁ
% Covered Individually Collectively
by collateral  Classified assessed assessed
Gross or other or impairment impairment
advances security impaired Overdue* allowances _allowances
%f“ T %E»fﬂ 7 %f“ Fu %f“ T 23 - St
H 5{5’000 H J%‘OOO H %’OOO H 5{5’000 HI&’OOO
&Fﬁiﬁi@ﬂjd/ ET Loans for use in Hong Kong
Industrial, commercial and
financial
- Property development 1,029,951 2.37% - - - 2,232
- Property investment 3,705,937 94.86% - 45,209 - 13,158
- Financial concerns 119,570 99.81% - R R 440
- Stockbrokers - - - R - _
- Wholesale and retail
trade 1,889,120 91.84% - 22 - 4,987
- ﬁ? - Manufacturing 955,115 60.47% - 5,027 - 3,264
- SETT SR - Transport and transport
! Lﬁ?ﬁ% equipment 1,074,551 72.53% - - - 3,156
- PHREEY - Recreational activities 9,011 100.00% - - - 22
- B[ - Information technology 5,281 100.00% R _ _ 13
- Hp - Others 1,374,373 92.16% - 32,346 - 3,033
i * Individuals
- Eéfglﬂ?[ﬁ? RS - Loans for the purchase of
£ “Jf;f@blrzg'ﬁ flats in Hgme
Izl | Ownership Scheme,
I.P FAlE .
R e Private Sector
oo Participation Scheme
and Tenants Purchase
Scheme 75,718 99.89% 674 1,639 - 57
- Loans for purchase of
other residential
properties 2,948,969 99.99% - 14,561 - 1,995
- Others 1,507,420 88.31% 272 12,515 - 983
&%ﬁ?ﬁiﬁl”u/ ETFAE Total loans for use in Hong
Kong 14,695,016 84.30% 946 111,319 - 33,340
AR Y Trade finance 1,272,166 52.08% 682 682 237 4,185
TP IR LY e Loans for use outside Hong
Kong 6,960,624 72.55% 5,182 16,309 - 22,390
o Gross advances to
AT customers 22,927,806 78.95% 6,810 128,310 237 59,915

73



4 & a4y

SHEBRMER A member of BOCHK Group

Chiyu Banking @eorporation Ltd.

PRI (D

4. EFRETE GB)
4.1 fﬁ%‘iﬁ?l‘ﬁ G#)
B. AT W H PIERE GB)
() HEETRB IR (@)

() ¥ 5% 558V % Eigr
FAT GR)

4.1 Credit Risk (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

2010
H#Irﬁlllf‘ %;I/ qﬂjqcﬁ;g 3 B Aﬁ“ﬂ’y
HIETH Fove FOT S ORI TR
Individually ~ Collectively
% Covered by Classified d d
Gross collateral or or impairment  impairment
advances other security impaired Overdue*  allowances  allowances
iZUfW T iw(’,ﬁr T iﬁiﬁﬂ b i&ff’.ﬁ" b iivf*é“’ T
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKé’OOO
Loans for use in Hong Kong
DR 4 Industrial, commercial and
financial
- P - Property development 1,197,300 1.58% - - - 2,237
- PRy - Property investment 3,617,253 99.97% - 46,413 - 12,610
- EH - Financial concerns 455,047 36.92% - - - 1,164
- - Stockbrokers 1,622 99.94% - - - 4
- ﬁﬁ“%ﬁ%é}f - Wholesale and retail
trade 826,019 81.39% - 5,775 - 2,466
- @xﬁ 4 - Manufacturing 1,156,416 63.73% 16 2,148 16 4,260
- 3 'ﬁ“ﬁ’ﬁﬁﬁ - Transport and transport
equipment 1,075,061 78.84% - 16,369 - 2,841
- ﬁ*rq‘ﬁﬁgﬁ - Recreational activities 9,928 100.00% - - - 24
- ?ﬁ*;lﬁ - Information technology 5,817 100.00% - - - 25
- - Others 962,141 87.91% 10 12,081 9 1,631
Individuals
- Loans for the purchase of
flats in Home
Ownership Scheme,
Private Sector
Participation Scheme
and Tenants Purchase
Scheme 96,118 99.88% 637 997 - 70
- Loans for purchase of
other residential
properties 3,135,542 99.96% 2,161 29,031 - 1,986
- Others 1,412,773 86.08% 214 15,304 17 921
&Fﬁ?ﬁfgﬁg'ﬂ/ EVRE Total loans for use in Hong
Kong 13,951,037 81.50% 3,038 128,118 42 30,239
B BT Trade finance 1,363,422 34,12% 2,278 2,278 1,834 3,233
Ti?‘,izw‘[f/} = ey Loans for use outside Hong
Kong 6,343,340 64.02% 5,573 12,197 729 21,135
Gross advances to
KRR customers 21,657,799 73.87% 10,889 142,593 2,605 54,607

* e e
HoE H R AR

AT e R PN

Ereifar

remains unpaid.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit Risk (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

SR o) T TR (£

oy

AT L £
BEIcd

- PR
- PR
- SR
- q;}% Ese
AR

- LY
ik

- TR
- Efy

il >
- B EE R
fg” ~EL S J“fg;«:}j:iful
SRR

SR

- W PP
- Hpy

e M LY e
BB

ffﬁ?ﬁ'\l‘h‘ [N

Loans for use in Hong Kong

Industrial, commercial and
financial
- Property development
- Property investment
- Financial concerns
- Stockbrokers
- Wholesale and retail trade
- Manufacturing
- Transport and transport

equipment

- Recreational activities
- Information technology
- Others

Individuals
- Loans for the purchase of flats

in Home Ownership Scheme,

Private Sector Participation
Scheme and Tenants
Purchase Scheme

- Loans for purchase of other
residential properties

- Others

Total loans for use in Hong Kong
Trade finance

Loans for use outside Hong Kong
Gross advances to customers

(i) Sectoral analysis of gross advances to customers (continued)

The amount of new impairment allowances charged to the income statement, and
classified or impaired loans written off during the year are shown below:

2011 2010
ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ;ﬁ ] Wﬁy@@
Frify I PR e P il OV [
New Classified or New Classified or
impairment impaired loans impairment impaired loans
allowances written off allowances written off
i i PR HhpET 7
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK%’OOO
198 - 328 -
1,170 - 1,849 -
39 - 170 -
R - 1 -
443 - 549 -
290 - 1,645 13
281 - 417 -
2 - 4 -
1 - 4 -
270 - 239 -
5 - 10 -
177 - 291 -
87 - 135 -
2,963 - 5,642 13
422 - 474 -
2,110 2,408 3,099 78
5,495 2,408 9,215 91
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Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ*f‘ﬁﬁ% (#)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4 &R

4.1 ['F=‘}

B.

®

BIREE () 4. Fin

ancial risk management (continued)

EVE PR (GGED 4.1 Credit Risk (continued)

MLETE w3 PYERCH ) B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

HETERR R GRY)

(il) FHRWET RV E
£ ETRT A % o
ﬁ»

RN L Talay
142 Gt dk 55 T RLAE
D PV B
G R i RS [
oo RUIE 19K
FTEEL D iR
B E T HG
R VY

ks .

TR

i
B
H

HE A1 ETRORRAE (R
G O
o

i
FIBS
H

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

(ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers and overdue
advances

The following geographical analysis of gross advances to customers and overdue
advances is based on the location of the counterparties, after taking into account
the transfer of risk. In general, such transfer of risk takes place if the advances to
customers are guaranteed by a party in a country which is different from that of the
customer.

Gross advances to customers

2011 2010

e e

HK$'000 HK$'000

Hong Kong 16,636,357 15,974,478
Mainland China 5,279,125 4,606,107
Others 1,012,324 1,077,214
22,927,806 21,657,799

Collectively assessed loan impairment allowances in respect of the gross
advances to customers

2011 2010

i Fu &Wéﬁ’ o

HK$'000 HK$’000

Hong Kong 41,028 37,862
Mainland China 16,459 14,377
Others 2,428 2,368
59,915 54,607
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Chiyu Banking @eorporation Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 Credit Risk (continued)

B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)

(f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)

(ii) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers and overdue

advances (continued)

# )

A ey Overdue advances
2011 2010
e Wi
HK$'000 HK$’000
F“,EF Hong Kong 122,454 103,196
FIB |3 Mainland China 5,856 39,397
iy Others - -
128,310 142,593
AT ETR (=PI Individually assessed loan impairment allowances in respect of the overdue

ffﬁ;‘/ ETRUIA ) advances

2011 2010
5 R
HK$'000 HK$°000
F‘,ﬂ?‘r Hong Kong 237 293
Pl |3 Mainland China - 2,299
sy Others - -
237 2,592

RS R 5

Collectively assessed loan impairment allowances in respect of the overdue

'rFﬁ;V ETRI 20 advances
2011 2010
f Fu HET L
HK$'000 HK$'000
F‘,ﬂ?‘r Hong Kong 281 239
FlBSI |2 Mainland China 21 73
i Others - -
302 312
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Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ*f‘ﬁﬁ% (#)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

4, ﬁﬁﬂ@?ﬁ@*ﬁ@ G&) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

41 fREVER (R 4.1 Credit Risk (continued)
B. METH Y FIECH () B. Gross advances and other accounts (continued)
() HETETRENR @) (f) Concentration of advances to customers (continued)
(i) HHREEBESEYE (i) Geographical analysis of gross advances to customers and overdue
VT ETE R A € advances (continued)
# )
ﬁ%ﬁ?t’éﬁ?i’ﬁﬁ@ ETR Classified or impaired advances
2011 2010
AT 5 ﬂw;crﬁ
Hllé'OOO HK$ 000
fi Hong Kong 1,628 4,883
FIB |3 Mainland China 5,182 6,006
Rl Others - -
6,810 10,889
Td*ﬁ LT IR E € Individually assessed loan impairment allowances in respect of the classified
A EM T (D € or impaired advances
I
2011 2010
f&fﬂr—"i W
H é’OOO HK$'000
7 Hong Kong 237 294
Pl |3 Mainland China - 2,311
R} Others - -
237 2,605
d}-ﬁ 53 ﬁ‘/ fily €3 Collectively assessed loan impairment allowances in respect of the classified
= AE“ b Er or impaired advances
?e‘u»a e %
2011 2010
VAT 7 T
I£$’000 HK$'000
Fope:S Hong Kong 1 5
FBSI [ 3 Mainland China 17 14
Rl Others - -
18 19
P R R RLE During the year, the basis of the above analyses has been refined and the
et st » P comparative amounts have been reclassified accordingly.

PAEEE 757 -
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PRI (D

4. SRR GB)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 fﬁ%‘iﬁ?l‘ﬁ G#)
C. IsTpiey:

4.1 Credit Risk (continued)

C. Repossessed assets

4 B RS 2011 F 12 K]
31 FI % 2010 & 12 k|
31 [IE R
B o5 W S IR
LRAPIEY 3 2V 1 R 42
il CLp Rk AR Y

(2 PR PR R
HEIVHE D) SEHE Y
(955 7 2 Ry il 53

There were no repossessed assets held by the Group as at 31 December 2011 and
2010. They comprise properties in respect of which the Group has acquired access or
control (e.g. through court proceedings or voluntary actions by the borrowers
concerned) for release in full or in part of the obligations of the borrowers.

HA Y i R

TERYRH > F R B

N s
- iﬁ?&t[ | %[ Eﬂ&l
o
L2 Y

- b

When the repossessed assets are not readily convertible into cash, the Group may
consider the following alternatives:

- adjusting the selling prices
- selling the loans together with the assets

- arranging loan restructuring
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Notes to the Financial Information (continued)

FIETeyRIfE: D

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4. SRURRTE GB)

4.1 [%Ef‘r’g?liﬁ G&) 4.1 Credit Risk (continued)

D. 5T W H 1 2 PSR
AUsEER R T E

D. Balances and placements with banks and other financial institutions

ARSI ME The following table presents an analysis of balances and placements with banks and

VAR 2 i 5 S other financial institutions that are neither overdue nor impaired as at 31 December by
THER B T EAT 12 £ 31 rating agency designation.
FI H?;B%dﬁ& Fir;& 73
o
2011
Aaa = A3 A3 JJ™ #“?IE& AT
Lower than
Aaato A3 A3 Unrated Total
BT R wwj T ?ﬁ*ﬂ’“’] T ﬁfﬂ’—' Fu
HK$'000 HL$’OOO HL$’OOO H 43’000
RIS Central banks 607,687 - - 607,687
SEL 00 BP9 R Banks and other
financial institutions 10,983,744 452,783 - 11,436,527
11,591,431 452,783 - 12,044,214
2010
Aaa = A3 A3 T~ B ST
Lower than
Aaa to A3 A3 Unrated Total
HRAET S HAET S HRAET S HAET
HK$000  HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000
FlIega= Central banks 1,106,162 - - 1,106,162
52 S| I“jé*fiﬂl%‘}‘?f‘ﬁ Banks and other
financial institutions 9,233,748 334,080 491,577 10,059,406
10,339,910 334,080 491,577 11,165,568

2011 =F 12 ] 31 F!
k2010 =+ 12 F| 31 F 1>
T g L
R 2 R

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, there were no overdue or impaired balances and
placements with banks and other financial institutions.

80



& A Ay
Chiyu Banking @eorporation Ltd.

SHEBRMER A member of BOCHK Group

AR5 eR( I ﬁ%t (#)  Notes to the Financial Information (continued)

4, fjﬁﬂfsﬂﬁ*ﬁ@ &) 4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.1 [F:’,E}?T‘Fﬁ &) 4.1 Credit Risk (continued)
E. fimsEs E. Debt securities
Th AR R TR I'ﬁ The tables below represent an analysis of the carrying value of debt securities by issue
TR g (VT AT rating and credit risk characteristic.

5 IR -

2011
Aal = Aa3 Al = A3 A3 [J™ R F
Lower
Aal to Aa3 Alto A3 Than A3 Unrated Total

S A R o A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

ey Available-for-sale

T
f securities 156,644 125,200 398,012 1,046,987 1,726,843
HEER Held-to-maturity securities 656,052 663,942 - 623502 1,943,496
EVE P TR Loans and receivables . . . 157,389 157,389
2 R Financial assets at fair
&R value through profit
or loss - 842,569 - - 842,569
At Total 812,696 1,631,711 398,012 1,827,878 4,670,297
2010
Aal = Aa3 A1 = A3 A3 I]™ EI?T?& S
Lower
Aa1to Aa3 A1to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
BT R HMBET R EET R ?i?rff’ﬁf" T HMEET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
B %?ﬁi’? Available-for-sale
securities 391,491 571,176 - 1,168,325 2,130,992
I EE L ClaE o Held-to-maturity securities 660,194 515,538 - 798,449 1,974,181
ETR M R Loans and receivables i, ; i, 13 13
A (= s ?gjﬁj/ Financial assets at fair
ﬁﬁg@»@ value through profit
or loss 41,287 948,860 - - 990,147
A Total 1,092,972 2,035,574 - 1,966,787 5,095,333
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Notes to the Financial Information (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4. SRURRTE GB)

41 FEERIG ()
E. RS ()

4.1 Credit Risk (continued)

E. Debt securities (continued)

ikl F Q?ﬁ Akl JIEJHJ For the above debt securities with no issue rating, their issuer ratings are analysed as
R L AN F%nt& follows:
73 T’Tij[ﬂ :
2011
Aal = Aa3 Al = A3 A3 I+ = M
Lower
Aalto Aa3 Alto A3 than A3 Unrated Total
O R O R s
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
fr i Fé“% Available-for-sale
securities 936,456 - 110,531 - 1,046,987
;Ffjf EJ}?H&E FIs54% Held-to-maturity securities 333,135 290,367 N N 623,502
EVE P TR Loans and receivables 157,389 . . _ 157,389
S At E %}ﬁ;f/ Financial assets at fair
fﬁ{ﬂ?}@ value through profit
or loss - - - - -
At Total 1,426,980 290,367 110,531 - 1,827,878
2010
Aal = Aa3 A1 = A3 A3 I'J™ EI?T?& AFE
Lower
Aa1to Aa3 A1to A3 than A3 Unrated Total
L O O O O e
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
T 'f EFES Available-for-sale
securities 606,100 299,681 262,544 - 1,168,325
}SF? =ZIH IS Held-to-maturity securities 798,449 - - - 798,449
g\dﬁ WElEE Loans and receivables - - - 13 13
A e E jcgjzéj/ Financial assets at fair
& ik value through profit
or loss - - - - -
A Total 1,404,549 299681 262,544 13 1,966,787
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Notes to the Financial Information (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market Risk

Market risk refers to the risk of losses arising from adverse movements in the value
of foreign exchange and commodity positions and the trading book interest rate and
equity positions held by the Group due to the volatility of financial market price (debt
security price/interest rate, foreign exchange rate, equity price, commodity price).
The Group adopts robust market risk appetite to achieve balance between risk and
return. The Group’s objective in managing market risk is to secure healthy growth of
treasury business, by effective management of potential market risk in the Group’s
business, according to the Group’s overall risk appetite and strategy of treasury
business and based on well established risk management regime and measures.

According to corporate governance in risk management, the Board of Directors and
RC, senior management and functional departments/units perform their duties and
responsibilities to manage the Group’s market risk. Finance Division is mainly
responsible for managing market risk, assisting senior management to perform their
day-to-day duties, independently monitoring the market risk profile and compliance
of management policies and limits of the Group, ensuring the aggregate and
individual market risk are within acceptable level.

The Group sets up market risk indicators and limits to identify, measure, monitor and
control market risk. Major risk indicators and limits include but are not limited to open
positions and / or risk factor sensitivities etc. To meet management requirements,
major risk indicators and limits are classified into three levels, and approved by RC,
ALCO and CE respectively. Business units are required to conduct their business
within approved market risk indicators and limits.

A. Currency risk

The Group’s assets and liabilities are denominated in major currencies,
particularly the Hong Kong dollar and the US dollar. To ensure the currency risk
exposure of the Group is kept to an acceptable level, risk limits (e.g. Position
limit) are used to serve as a monitoring tool. Moreover, the Group seeks to
minimise the gap between asset and liability in the same currency. Foreign
exchange contracts (e.g. FX swap) are usually used to manage FX risk
associated with foreign currency-denominated assets and liabilities.
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4.2 Market Risk (continued)

A. Currency risk (continued)
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AR 02 1

Assets

Cash and balances with
banks and other financial
institutions

Placements with banks and
other financial institutions
maturing between one and
twelve months

Financial assets designated
at fair value through profit
or loss

Derivative financial
instruments

Advances and other accounts

Investment in securities

- Available-for-sale securities

- Held-to-maturity securities

- Loans and receivables

Investment properties

Properties, plant and
equipment

Other assets (including
deferred tax assets)

Total assets

Liabilities

Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions

Derivative financial
instruments

Deposits from customers

Other accounts and
provisions (including
current and deferred tax
liabilities)

Total liabilities
Net on-balance sheet position

Off-balance sheet net notional
position*

Contingent liabilities and
commitments

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Information (continued)

The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate
risk as 31 December. Included in the tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying
amounts in HK$ equivalent, categorised by the original currency.

2011

i & 7 i 5et FIE g 3P AT

us HK Japanese Pound
Renminbi Dollars Dollars Euro Yen Sterling Others Total
AR F i O TOWETR AR
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000
3,330,632 951,225 1,837,743 415,502 16,908 231,259 330,680 7,113,949
585,449 2,118,209 1,674,713 - 713,198 5,091,569
842,569 842,569
- 4 425,763 - - 425,767
3,175,593 6,938,988 15,047,309 9,222 72,683 - - 25,243,795
767,639 628,957 43,872 203 - 330,246 1,770,917
666,786 1,121,964 154,746 1,943,496
- 157,389 157,389
- 165,170 165,170
10,365 - 964,540 974,905
24,441 62 351,900 6,273 6 382,682
7,894,119 12,146,800 21,632,974 424,927 95,864 231,259 1,686,265 44,112,208
(516,111)  (433,762) (19,254) (1,465) (58,429) (1,029,021)
(46,417)  (229,570) - - - (275,987)
(6,715,217) (4,539,370) (22,308,259)  (373,643) (44,040)  (227,480) (1,824,360) (36,032,369)
(62,298)  (210,601) (1,147,193) (5,188) (5,895) (41,000) (1,472,175)
(7,293,626) (5,230,150) (23,704,276)  (378,831) (45,505)  (233,375) (1,923,789)(38,809,552)
600,493 6,916,650 (2,071,302) 46,096 50,359 (2,116)  (237,524) 5,302,656
(5,352) (6,937,488) 6,992,966 (46,094) (50,416) 2,299 242,069 197,984
202,697 1,692,255 3,757,153 47,639 169,327 1,150 5,870,221
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4.2 Market Risk (continued)

A. Currency risk (continued)

Assets

Cash and balances with
banks and other financial
institutions

Placements with banks and
other financial institutions
maturing between one and
twelve months

Financial assets designated
at fair value through profit
or loss

Derivative financial
instruments

Advances and other accounts

Investment in securities

- Available-for-sale securities

- Held-to-maturity securities

- Loans and receivables

Investment properties

Properties, plant and
equipment

Other assets (including
deferred tax assets)

Total assets

Liabilities

Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions

Derivative financial
instruments

Deposits from customers

Other accounts and
provisions (including
current and deferred tax
liabilities)

Total liabilities

Net on-balance sheet position

Off-balance sheet net notional
position*

Contingent liabilities and
commitments

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Information (continued)

2010

i 3 R i e FIEY Jui £ AT

us HK Japanese Pound
Renminbi Dollars Dollars Euro Yen  Sterling Others Total
?{Fff’,ﬂ T ﬁpf’.ﬁr T ﬁpf’.ﬁr T ﬁ}lf’?u’ 7 ﬁpf’.ﬁr T rﬁlfw T rﬁf’?‘r P ﬁwf’.ﬁ" T
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000
3,187,086 1,103,378 1,314,323 135,857 8,219 213,824 320,949 6,283,636
71,116 3,838,309 483,147 - - 144,440 493,178 5,030,190
- 990,147 - - - - - 990,147
- 73 397,873 - - - - 397,946
1,838,791 7,431,613 13,384,562 36,766 19,068 - 81,039 22,791,839
349,014 606,962 499,847 209 - 719,366 2,175,398
- 658,166 1,157,261 - - - 158,754 1,974,181
- 4 9 - - - - 13
- - 124,070 - - - - 124,070
12,456 - 736,664 - - - - 749,120
1,742 4,135 541,950 1 2,256 - - 550,084
5,460,205 14,632,787 18,639,706 172,833 29,543 358,264 1,773,286 41,066,624
(118,568)  (75,074)  (18,299) - (48,421) - (92,243) (352,605)
- (36,691) (216,814) - - - - (253,505)
(4,788,711) (5,073,440) (22,069,473)  (400,708)  (33,240)  (357,660) (1,854,356)(34,577,588)
(42,107)  (213,784)  (844,588) (6,827) - (5,909)  (39,734) (1,152,949)
(4,949,386) (5,398,989) (23,149,174)  (407,535)  (81,661)  (363,569) (1,986,333) (36,336,647)
510,819 9,233,798 (4,509,468)  (234,702) (52,118) (5,305)  (213,047) 4,729,977
6,782 (8,970,932) 8,642,784 233,724 50,439 5,772 214,937 183,506
228,303 2,042,709 3,591,281 61,619 176,509 - - 6,100,421

* AR PP ¢ Off-balance sheet net notional position represents the net notional amounts of foreign currency derivative financial
g instruments, which are principally used to reduce the Group’s exposure to currency movements.

ot Meted ST S
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3 S . . . .
P13 ﬂfgﬁﬁﬂ (#81) Notes to the Financial Information (continued)
4. ERRleEtE (R 4. Financial risk management (continued)
42 TipRRie (&) 4.2 Market Risk (continued)
B. Flakt® B. Interest rate risk
(=5 P LA P A=~ Y Interest rate risk means the risks to a bank’s earnings and economic value
Fgﬁ ] iqﬁﬁ fol s 58 F T all 7@;1’1 arising from adverse movements in interest rate and term structures of the
SALFEELIS TR S A AR bank’s asset and liability positions. The Group’s interest rate risk exposures
o7 =
|%”j|;a_’|7§y £ Zt [EAfSF| 2 P are mainly structural. The major types of interest rate risk from structural
R prelE R F”'ﬂ% = positions are:
rb A Iiﬁ SESARIER ]
ﬁ( B
- Al EF R 3 3 S F”[ I?J A4 - Repricing risk — mismatches in the maturity or repricing periods of assets
I Wf, T IEHR LR e 5 and liabilities that may affect net interest income;
el 3 HJ Yglﬂjgquﬁ
- A }\EL{"—*’FW@ 7 [l vt - Basis risk — different pricing basis for different transactions so that the
I%HU*T fil o AyEr FUJJS‘E&} al yield on assets and cost of liabilities may change by different amounts
F lﬁgi][u'?y A F“ g .ﬂ Flﬂ |%? within the same repricing period,;
AR IR im@I
- J{Izﬁ&} ;H[“&Jﬁ @ - [HF"LITE&EI'«‘ - Yield curve risk — non-parallel shifts in the yield curve that may have an

FIED 53 h%gbpl SRR F| ELE adverse impact on net interest income or economic value;

|

3 m?'f[;g_’”:}i [La[mj/ﬁg“

- HIERERE - PR - - Option risk — exercise of the options embedded in assets, liabilities or
@g&% 9t EIEIHT%“E WA - FJ[HF off-balance sheet items that can cause a change in the cash flows of
B T F“c'f@ﬁf%{ DY I assets and liabilities.

[ERE AR A
BBV EE Y [ AU TR The Group’s risk management framework applies also to interest rate risk
HEF] A e i - ’r‘@%gf“l’ua g management. ALCO exercises its oversight of interest rate risk in
Z Ve EERY (Fl JE“l’ “FT“%H accordance with “Interest Rate Risk Management Policy” as approved by the
790 > w i RS S RC. Finance Division is the unit responsible for interest rate risk
i HVELE B F R ’FL i Ui?&* uEd management. With the cooperation of Treasury Division, Finance Division
HplF e ‘Fﬂ,i%“:' fo= ‘Fﬁ Fﬂ oo assists the ALCO to manage day-to-day interest rate risk positions. Its roles
USRS €2 iR E R =/ I v A Fi include, but are not limited to, formulation of management policies, selection
ffiprEsd F'I'Ff ’%F' [HEEIU?IH”E? of methodologies, setting risk indicators and limits, assessment of target
I’aaﬁ'ﬁ4 = E (T B%?@E’lﬁ? balance sheet, monitoring the compliance with policies and limits, and
“p‘lféf'*]‘, SERATEI R S R submission of interest rate risk management reports to the RC and senior
ﬁ#ﬁf 15 {ga,zf [l R || ;4 management, etc.

i E?E"HE% rwaw@wﬁ@m

AR AP - (ECR

N KHBW%E ifi L | JE*l’

ﬂﬁvﬁf °
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Notes to the Financial Information (continued)

FRFEVRINR: ()

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4. ERRIRTE ()
4.2 miﬂ@ﬂ;@ E5) 4.2 Market Risk (continued)

B. Flul& ()

B. Interest rate risk (continued)
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The Group set out interest rate risk indicators and limits to identify, measure,
monitor and control interest rate risk. The indicators and limits include, but
are not limited to, re-pricing gap limits, basis risk, net interest income
sensitivity ratio, economic value sensitivity ratio (including sub-limit for AFS
securities), etc. The indicators and limits are classified into two levels, which
are approved by the RC and ALCO respectively. Risk-taking business units
are required to conduct their business within the boundary of the interest rate
risk limits. Before launching a new product or business in the banking book,
relevant departments are required to go through a risk assessment process,
which includes assessment of underlying interest rate risk and consideration
of the adequacy of current risk monitoring mechanism. Any material impact
on interest rate risk noted during the risk assessment process will be
reported to the Head of SCD and submitted to the RC for approval.

Net interest income sensitivity ratio (NII) and economic value sensitivity ratio
(EV) assess the impact of interest rate movement on the Group’s net interest
income and capital base. They are the Group’s key interest rate risk
indicators. The former assesses the impact of interest rate movement on net
interest income as a percentage to projected net interest income for the year.
The latter assesses the impact of interest rate movement on economic value
(i.e. the present value of cash-flows of assets, liabilites and
off-balance-sheet items discounted using market interest rate) as a
percentage to the latest capital base. Limits are set by RC on these two
indicators to monitor and control the Group’s banking book interest rate risk.

The Group uses scenario analysis and stress test to assess the banking
book interest rate risk the Group would face under adverse circumstances.
Scenario analysis and stress test are also devised to assess the impact on
net interest income and economic value as well as capital base arising from
the optionality of demand and savings deposits and the prepayment of
mortgage loans.
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175 Notes to the Financial Information (continued)

FEVRINRE ()

4. SRURRTE GB)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 mﬁb@f«p@ &) 4.2 Market Risk (continued)

B. F=HI& GR)

B. Interest rate risk (continued)

TN AT A B R 12 The tables below summarise the Group’s exposure to interest rate risk as at 31

El 31 EIF,J;” R e s December. Included in the tables are the assets and liabilities at carrying amounts,
categorised by the earlier of contractual repricing or maturity dates.
o AP E"F Il;Fj 5[ ¢} y p g y
E 3430 ? P EIERIE
FUSRSEISIF T (1)ieh ¥
ER¥E) SYA -
2011
- fREIP ZHE O AZHRE -E2DEFE LEIE TR R
Non-
Uptol 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over 5 interest
month months months years years bearing Total
R 7 f&fﬂ‘ Fu AT 5 ﬁfﬁr 7 f&fﬂ‘ Fu
ll '000 HH&’OOO H i’OOO HIHE’OOO ll ‘000 H é’OOO H i’OOO
BYE Assets
& i g5 2 B Cash and balances with
fﬁﬂlﬁ&};ﬁf’y B2 banks and other financial
institutions 6,657,585 - - - 456,364 7,113,949
G Eiw o ﬂﬁﬁwigMT Placements with banks and
= 2 REPIERY & other financial institutions
W maturing between one and
twelve months - 3,397,130 1,694,439 - - - 5,091,569
Pl REEL ) 2 i (=5 ® Financial assets designated
TERED & R at fair value through profit
or loss - - 842,569 - - 842,569
e & 5! Derivative financial
) instruments - - - - - 425,767 425,767
ETE Advances and other accounts 17,838,332 4,568,737 2,715,575 121,151 - - 25,243,795
ST Investment in securities
- ﬁﬁﬂf,.%n - Available-for-sale securities - 410,195 828,846 487,802 - 44,074 1,770,917
= - Held-to-maturity securities 601,303 753,798 314,326 274,069 - - 1,943,496
- Loans and receivables 157,389 - - - - 157,389
n‘#@\ Investment properties - - - - 165,170 165,170
Pog - ‘ﬁ?ﬁrjb%ﬁﬁj Properties, plant and
equipment - - - - 974,905 974,905
Pk ( cu}“l' FEFLEEY  Other assets (including
F%‘_ ) deferred tax assets) _ _ _ _ 382,682 382,682
E’*@;&g Total assets 25,254,609 9,129,860 5,553,186 1,725,591 2,448,962 44,112,208
2l Liabilities
FHERE ME ”E{y&%dﬁ % Deposits and balances from
FS QT banks and other financial
institutions (836,157) - - - (192,864) (1,029,021)
frd ST L Derivative financial
instruments - - - - - (275,987) (275,987)
EOEE Deposits from customers (23,231,761) (5,217,579) (5,913,515)  (117,933) - (1,551,581) (36,032,369)
H i”jE»i*"kﬁépﬁj cu?'h&*” Other accounts and
WIRHRE ﬁ provisions (including
current and deferred tax
liabilities) (345,448) - - - (1,126,727) (1,472,175)
Fi ffitdE Total liabilities (24,413,366)  (5,217,579) (5,913,515)  (117,933) - (3,147,159) (38,809,552)
| S i Interest sensitivity gap 841,243 3912281  (360,329) 1,607,658 (698,197) 5,302,656
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4.2 Market Risk (continued)

B. Interest rate risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Information (continued)

2010
= WP = fiF] I R = S TEIE TaEHEL U
Non-
Upto1 1-3 3-12 1-5 Over 5 interest
month months months years years bearing Total
i#fﬁiu’ 7o ﬁMﬁﬁr T ?#JF?U T ?#Jffﬂ T HT L ?%p?’?’u’ T PR L
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Assets
Cash and balances with
banks and other financial
institutions 5,385,316 - - - - 898,320 6,283,636
Placements with banks and
other financial institutions
maturing between one and
twelve months - 2,393,090 2,637,100 - - - 5,030,190
Financial assets designated
at fair value through profit
or loss - - 138,680 574,030 277,437 - 990,147
Derivative financial
instruments - - - - - 397,946 397,946
Advances and other accounts 16,812,169 3,395,786 2,248,303 328,769 6,812 - 22,791,839
Investment in securities
- Available-for-sale securities 284,009 973,580 96,947 776,456 - 44,406 2,175,398
- Held-to-maturity securities 501,441 954,510 - 518,230 - - 1,974,181
- Loans and receivables - - 4 - - 9 13
Investment properties - - - - 124,070 124,070
Properties, plant and
equipment - - - - - 749,120 749,120
Other assets (including
deferred tax ts) - - - - - 550,084 550,084
Total assets 22,982,935 7,716,966 5,121,034 2,197,485 284,249 2,763,955 41,066,624
Liabilities
Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions (228,092) - - - - (124,513)  (352,605)
Derivative financial
instruments - - - - - (253,505) (253,505)
Deposits from customers (24,559,366) (4,143,288)  (4,258,902)  (136,447) - (1,479,585) (34,577,588)
Other accounts and
provisions (including
current and deferred tax
liabilities) (429,633) - - - - (723,316) (1,152,949)
Total liabilities (25,217,091)  (4,143,288)  (4,258,902)  (136,447) - (2,580,919) (36,336,647)
Interest sensitivity gap (2,234,156) 3,573,678 862,132 2,061,038 284,249 183,036 4,729,977
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P35 ﬂfgﬁﬁﬂ (78) Notes to the Financial Information (continued)
4. SR Fﬁﬁ@ &) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
42 TipRRie (&) 4.2 Market Risk (continued)
74: 8B R e gl SRR Sensitivity analysis to market risk exposure of the Group
[J” I F 1SR 7 0 57 F 5 The Group is principally exposed to HKD and USD in terms of interest rate risk. At
TE'[]'{EB o 2011 F 12 K] 31 |1 » 31 December 2011, if HKD and USD market interest rates had a 100 basis point
# biﬁﬁ HFE A 100 parallel upwarfi shift of the yield curve in relevant currency with other variables held_
EL 10 [*Wiﬁ\@‘ﬁb?w constant, profit b_efore tax for the year would he_lve_ _b_een HK$29,500,0Q0 (2010:
P ‘ ] 4 . M HK$4,000,000) hlglf\er' by HKD and USD 'a.s'sets I|ab|||.t|es structure. The !mpact on
J i 7l A er F % reserves would be insignificant. The sensitivity analysis set out above is illustrative
29,500,000 7 (2 10 iS¢ ’5‘ only.
4,000,000 7 ) ° 3535 '%ﬁﬁﬁu%iéé}
(R tge S AP 55 i i
B IE
L IR IR Interest rate exposures in banking book
N T IR ) ;:'ifgL The following is a summary of possible effects of market interest rates shocks on the
R EI E"f@;ﬁ}?”} I ]]EE e Group’s interest rate exposure for major currencies in its banking book. Subsidiaries
syg | #ﬁ EHT {T’E’i}’, are excluded from the analysis below:
12 E| 31 FIRYE
Impact on positions
at 31 December
2011 2010
ZrHIEB Earnings perspective %Bf”’v‘v ?ﬁfﬁﬂﬁ
HEHE Scenarios 000 HK$'000
W B RLIRRCT 5 S 100 LRI Up 100 basis points parallel shift in HK
dollar yield curves 47,000 32,500
T B RLIRRLT 7 FF2 100 LR Up 100 basis points parallel shift in US
dollar yield curves (17,500) (28,500)
Fiﬁﬁ NHIEEE PR 5 - f The stress tests set out above are illustrative only. The projections illustrate that
i J?W%EF'F NI E R = stressful changes in market interest rates in response to exceptional but plausible
H; EEF e 5@ & HJJi [EF37%-3 events would have adverse effects both on earnings over the next twelve months.
fﬁ = @*‘J@[ F ([ The stress tests measure the possible effect of interest rates shock on earnings is
ﬂé 12 it %] f ’J?[H” 1 YRy assessed by changes in net interest income. To construct stressful scenarios,
R | ﬁﬂ RIS 7 A severe assumptions are made, including a change in the correlation between HK
f E LSy ’E'ﬂj 4?55 # B R dollar and US dollar interest rates, parallel movement of interest rates for the
UE{ i J A @%‘&[:U]EQ banking book positions of all repricing or maturity dates. In the absence of actions
E v 2RI %‘“cu}f[ﬂ}n RLT =5 that would be taken to mitigate the impact of interest rates shock, all positions are
7o ELF AR Iiﬁﬁ‘ﬂ S FjFT .ﬂ»’ assumed to run to maturity and reprice or mature simultaneously within a given time
B~ TR PRIV [ IF (2 band. As the risk is complicated by having optionality embedded in certain products,
FE R ﬁ’ﬂ*ﬁ ZIHH RS (-7 behavioural assumptions are made to reflect more accurately the interest rate risk
F# ZE TR {:l?ﬂ E]'FS',U exposures.

] o Hij/waﬂ[%ﬁ F[fj ﬁﬁﬂﬂﬁﬂrﬁ“
rﬂa i if”%‘ e )
J R PR S

7J~<ﬁ .
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Notes to the Financial Information (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.2 Market Risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis to market risk exposure of the Group (continued)

Foreign exchange risk

At 31 December 2011, if HKD had weakened/strengthened by 1% against USD with
all other variable held constant, the profit before taxation for the year would have
been HK$208,000 lower/higher, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gain/loss on
translation of USD denominated financial assets larger than foreign exchange
loss/gain on translation of USD denominated financial liabilities. If HKD had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against CNY with all other variable held constant,
the profit before taxation for the year would have been HK$29,757,000 higher/lower,
mainly as a result of foreign exchange gain/loss on translation of CNY denominated
financial assets larger than foreign exchange loss/gain on translation of CNY
denominated financial liabilities (not include the effect of net investment hedge).

At 31 December 2010, if HKD had weakened/strengthened by 1% against USD with
all other variable held constant, the profit before taxation for the year would have
been HK$2,629,000 higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange gain/loss
on translation of USD denominated financial assets larger than foreign exchange
loss/gain on translation of USD denominated financial liabilities. If HKD had
weakened/strengthened by 5% against CNY with all other variable held constant,
the profit before taxation for the year would have been HK$25,880,000 higher/lower,
mainly as a result of foreign exchange gain/loss on translation of CNY denominated
financial assets larger than foreign exchange loss/gain on translation of CNY
denominated financial liabilities (not include the effect of net investment hedge).
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Notes to the Financial Information (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that banks fail to provide sufficient funds to grow
assets or pay the due obligations, and need to bear an unacceptable loss.
The Group follows the sound liquidity risk appetite, to provide stable, reliable
and adequate sources of cash to meet liquidity needs under normal
circumstances or stressed scenarios; and survive with net positive
cumulative cash flow in extreme scenarios, without requesting HKMA to act
as a lender of last resort.

The Group's liquidity risk management objective is to effectively manage the
liquidity of on-balance sheet and off-balance sheet items with reasonable
cost based on the liquidity risk appetite to achieve sound operation and
sustainable profitability. Customer deposits are the Group’s primary source
of funds. To ensure stable and sufficient source of funds are in place, the
Group actively attracts new deposits, keeps the core deposit and obtains
supplementary funding from interbank market. According to different term
maturities and the results of funding needs estimated from stressed
scenarios, the Group adjusts its asset structure (including loans, bonds
investment, interbank placement, etc.) to maintain sufficient liquid assets in
support of normal business needs and ensure its ability to raise enough
funds at a reasonable cost to serve external claims in case of emergency.
The Group is committed to diversify the source of funds and the use of funds
to avoid excessive concentration of assets and liabilities and prevent
triggering liquidity risk due to the break of funding strand when problem
occurred in one concentrated funding source. The Group also pays attention
to manage liquidity risk created by off-balance sheet activities, such as loan
commitments, derivatives, options and other complex structured products.
The Group has overall liquidity risk management strategy to cover the
liquidity management of foreign currency assets and liabilities, intra-day
liquidity, intra-group liquidity, the liquidity risk arising from other risks, etc.,
and has formulated corresponding funding contingency plan.

RC, a standing committee established by the Board of Directors, is the
decision making authority of liquidity risk management, and assumes the
ultimate responsibility of liquidity risk management. As authorised by the RC,
ALCO exercises its oversight of liquidity risk and ensures the daily
operations of the Group are conducted on the basis of the risk appetite and
policies as set by the RC. Finance Division is the unit responsible for
overseeing the Group’s liquidity risk. It cooperates with Treasury Division to
assist ALCO to perform liquidity management functions according to their
specific responsibilities.
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Notes to the Financial Information (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity Risk (continued)

Liquidity risk management framework (continued)

The Group established liquidity risk management indicators and limits to identify,
measure, monitor and control liquidity risk. Such indicators and limits include (but
are not limited to) liquidity ratio, loan-to-deposit ratio and 1-month mismatch ratio.
The Group applies cash flow analysis (under normal and stress conditions) and
liquidity stress test (including institution specific and worldwide crisis) to assess
the Group’s capability to withstand various severe liquidity crises. Also, Assets
and Liabilities Management System (“ALM”) is developed to provide data support
for facilitating the liquidity risk management duties.

The Group’s liquidity risk management also covers new product or business
development. Before launching a new product or business, the relevant
departments are required to go through a risk assessment process, which
includes the assessment of underlying liquidity risk and consideration of the
adequacy of the current risk management mechanism. Any material impact on
liquidity risk noted during the risk assessment process will be reported to RC for
approval.

A. Liquidity ratio

2011 2010

Average liquidity ratio 42.14% 41.68%

The average liquidity ratio is calculated as the simple average of each calendar
month’s average liquidity ratio of local offices of the Bank for the year.

The liquidity ratio is computed on the solo basis (the Hong Kong offices only)
and is in accordance with the Fourth Schedule of the Banking Ordinance.

B. Maturity analysis

Tables below analyse assets and liabilities of the Group as at 31 December
2011 and 31 December 2010 into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date.
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Notes to the Financial Information (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity Risk (continued)

B. Z[HAFIS54T GE) B. Maturity analysis (continued)
2011
e - AP - 22 WE ZfWE -E2DE DEME OPMEENEH AEE
Uptol 3-12 1-5 Over 5
On demand month 1- 3 months months years years Indefinite Total
= = — = =
HKﬁlu'OOO HK$'000 HK% '000 HK%’OOO HK% 000 HK%‘OOO HK%’OOO HK% '000
wYE Assets
%T;,-Ifl ERWGAEREH f%@ﬂfﬁ Cash and balances with
4"”% SE3 banks and other financial
institutions 3,599,860 3,514,089 - - - - - 7,113,949
TEELE R ]Jj @Eﬂ;} Placements with banks and
E | other financial institutions
EFJ, ? ¢ maturing between one and
AR twelve months - - 3,397,130 1,694,439 - - - 5,091,569
T ;Fjéj/ £J¥ Financial assets at fair value
A through profit or loss
- W A2 @R T 4f - debt securities
W designated at fair value
El RS through profit or loss
~ — others - 760 10,868 1,960 828,981 - - 842,569
e fﬁﬂ[j = Derivative financial
instruments 385,360 13,277 11,390 14,370 1,370 - - 425,767
Advances and other accounts
V — advances to customers 1,251,611 1,144,796 2,235,793 5,500,758 6,074,514 6,654,119 6,063 22,867,654
-7 MFIJ%« — trade bills - 633557 1,320,102 422,482 - - - 2,376,141
Emtiay Investment in securities
- RSB SES — debt securities held for
I available-for-sale
- ﬁ Vi — certificates of deposit
held - - 179,249 - - - - 179,249
— —others - 1,525 6,559 1,059,192 480,318 - - 1,547,594
_ #I Eslis I/@,M], — debt securities held for
held-to-maturity
-t JJ/E’M% — certificates of deposit
held - - 190,448 - 333,056 - - 523,504
- Hp — others - 101,304 9,055 311,749 997,884 - - 1,419,992
- EE D @ﬁjﬁﬁ — debt securities held for
loans and receivables - 157,389 - - - - - 157,389
- B — equity securities - - - - - - 44,074 44,074
ez SE ¢ Investment properties . R R R R . 165,170 165,170
ECE ’r”"i”fﬁ Properties, plant and
equipment - - - - - - 974,905 974,905
E vk ( :[J SRR ) Other assets (including
deferred tax ts) 5,213 375,449 - 1,444 31 - 545 382,682
Tl Total assets 5,242,044 5,942,146 7,360,594 9,006,394 8,716,154 6,654,119 1,190,757 44,112,208
f1 Liabilities
S EH fr“!@ﬂﬁ{ﬁﬂ%j/ﬁ’ Deposits and balances from
e banks and other financial
' institutions (236,992)  (792,029) - - - - - (1,029,021)
e fﬁﬂ[j = Derivative financial
instruments (202,876) (5,586) (8,197)  (11,709)  (47,619) - - (275,987)
HOER Deposits from customers 17 433 911) (7,749,431) (5,217,579) (5,913,515)  (117,933) ; - (36,032,369)
A P’JE%’U‘L‘%F :}J}“ﬁff Other accounts and
WL i flfl provisions (including
current and deferred tax
liabilities) (409,174)  (260,377) (527,093) (142,088)  (133,443) - - (1,472,175)
Fi R Total liabilities (17,882,953) (8,807,423) (5,752,869) (6,067,312)  (298,995) - - (38,809,552)
ﬁugﬁ ARG Net liquidity gap (12,640,909) (2,865,277) 1,607,725 2,939,082 8,417,159 6,654,119 1,190,757 5,302,656
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Assets
Cash and balances with banks
and other financial institutions

Placements with banks and
other financial institutions
maturing between one and
twelve months

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss

— debt securities designated at
fair value through profit or
loss
— others

Derivative financial instruments
Advances and other accounts
— advances to customers
— trade bills
Investment in securities
— debt securities held for
available-for-sale
— certificates of deposit held
— others
— debt securities held for
held-to-maturity
— certificates of deposit held
— others
— debt securities held for loans
and receivables
— equity securities
Investment properties
Properties, plant and equipment

Other assets (including deferred
tax assets)

Total assets

Liabilities

Deposits and balances from
banks and other financial
institutions

Derivative financial instruments

Deposits from customers

Other accounts and provisions
(including current and
deferred tax liabilities)

Total liabilities

Net liquidity gap

4.3 Liquidity Risk (continued)

B. Maturity analysis (continued)

Financial risk management (continued)

Notes to the Financial Information (continued)

2010
I o TEE .
e - wEP ZEE A - E2SE e SEr [ i AT
On Upto1 3-12 1-5 Over 5
demand month 1-3 months months years years _Indefinite Total
f’*—r F f’*—r e f’*—r Fe f’*—r F f’*—r Fe f’*—r F f’*—r Fe ?%T"P*r T
HKé ‘000 HKé ‘000 HKé ’000 HKé ’000 HKé '000 HK$ '000 HK$ '000 HK$’000
3,651,580 2,632,056 - - - - - 6,283,636
- - 2,393,090 2,637,100 - - - 5,030,190
- - - 138,680 574,030 277,437 - 990,147
360,691 9,153 4,457 17,393 6,252 - - 397,946
1,115,603 1,081,961 1,747,683 4,453,096 6,904,695 6,289,714 7,835 21,600,587
- 319,206 235,951 636,095 - - - 1,191,252
- 284,009 283,630 455,651 - - - 1,023,290
- - - 96,947 1,010,755 - - 1,107,702
- - - 156,061 - - - 156,061
- - 798,449 - 1,019,671 - - 1,818,120
- - - 4 - - 9 13
- - - - - - 44,406 44,406
- - - - - - 124,070 124,070
- - - - - - 749,120 749,120
4,635 542,073 - 2,772 68 - 536 550,084
5,132,509 4,868,458 5,463,260 8,593,799 9,515,471 6,567,151 925,976 41,066,624
(124,512)  (228,093) - - - - - (352,605)
(167,736)  (21,844)  (11,333)  (19,576)  (20,630)  (12,386) - (253,505)
(19,513,102) (6,525,849) (4,143,288) (4,258,902) (136,447) - - (34,577,588)
(480,047) (441,519)  (25,736) (110,237)  (95,410) - - (1,152,949)
(20,285,397) (7,217,305) (4,180,357) (4,388,715) (252,487)  (12,386) - (36,336,647)
(15,152,888) (2,348,847) 1,282,903 4,205,084 9,262,984 6,554,765 925,976 4,729,977
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Notes to the Financial Information (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity Risk (continued)
B. Maturity analysis (continued)

The above maturity classifications have been prepared in accordance with relevant
provisions under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The Group has reported assets
such as advances and debt securities which have been overdue for not more than
one month as “Repayable on demand”. In the case of an asset that is repayable by
different payments or instalments, only that portion of the asset that is actually
overdue is reported as overdue. Any part of the asset that is not due is reported
according to the residual maturity unless the repayment of the asset is in doubt in
which case the amount is reported as “Indefinite”. The above assets are stated after
deduction of provisions, if any.

The analysis of debt securities by remaining period to maturity is disclosed in order
to comply with relevant provisions under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules. The
disclosure does not imply that the securities will be held to maturity.
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4.3 Liquidity Risk (continued)

C. Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

4. Financial risk management (continued)

(a) Non-derivative cash flows

Notes to the Financial Information (continued)

The table below presents the cash flows of the Group as at 31 December
for non-derivative financial liabilities by remaining contractual maturities.

VHEWR -
2011
= MEIP = fWE = WA - EIE ZEr R ARE
Up to 1 month 1-3 months 3-12 months -5 years Over 5 years Total
A A ﬁf“' 7o ﬁf“' e A A ﬁf“' e WA A
HIHS’OOO H SL‘OOO H SL‘OOO HIHS’OOO H SL‘OOO HIHS’OOO
B3l Financial liabilities
SL= e &5k Deposits and balances
;fﬁj/ B8 @23 of banks and other
financial institutions (1,029,214) - - - - (1,029,214)
BRI Deposits from customers (24,788,094)  (5,231,200) (5,977,709) (122,117) - (36,119,120)
P E R |§j Other financial
liabilities (660,062) - (30,662) (4,459) - (695,183)
SR Fp?&i@ Total financial liabilities (26,477,370)  (5,231,200) (6,008,371) (126,576) - (37,843,517)
2010
| =l 1= R - EE SEN - A
Up to 1 month  1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
HMEET R W S W S HMEET W S HMPET
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
SRER Financial liabilities
Sl R &2 5k Deposits and balances
*ﬁy.@ﬁuﬁg@ of banks and other
financial institutions (352,696) - - - - (352,696)
& ETER Deposits from customers (26,041,257) (4,150,578) (4,293,863) (142,343) - (34,628,041)
&R I'?l Other financial
liabilities (903,910) - (34,605) (4,570) - (943,085)
£330 f?i»?ﬁﬁ Total financial liabilities (27,297,863)  (4,150,578) (4,328,468) (146,913) - (35,923,822)
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3 S . . . .
P35 ﬂfgﬁﬁﬂ (78) Notes to the Financial Information (continued)
4. SRE & Erﬂl, Ga) 4. Financial risk management (continued)
A3WERYERIE () 4.3 Liquidity Risk (continued)
C. jﬂr’ﬁ%ﬁl?ﬂﬁﬂ'ﬂ/ﬁ‘?’%ﬁ?ﬁ!ﬁ C. Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities
FhRoIFT () (continued)
(b) % = S VHER (b) Derivative cash flows
(i) Hga Rl yERh gl et = (i) Derivatives settled on a net basis
BB AR YERS BT The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a net basis include:
D g
- JipERTE T e - Foreign exchange derivatives: non-deliverable OTC currency options,
VHEI E“Jﬁﬂ’ﬂ@ j L«L non-deliverable currency forwards;
B SR
- %H“ BT Z0 o FHr - Interest rate derivatives: interest rate swaps; and
®

) EJ s%j:”fji: = FJS - Bullion derivatives: bullion margin contracts.
gﬁ"“‘ﬁﬁﬂb‘ °
AR AR
FEETY Gt SRS 12
FI 31 IR T
FEACEETEIRY - E RS
?L}TUH} E' 19 5] 85 1 L5
=i Pl 2 fill £

The table below analyses the Group’s derivative financial instruments as at
31 December that will be settled on a net basis into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the net
contractual undiscounted cash flows of derivatives with net negative fair

e value.
£ i L l/ ur; g EREEE
PG E
2011
- AP = ek 12 fwE - EFDEF LEMF At
Up to 1 month 1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
O AR e BfETR BT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
JtREfE T 5! Foreign exchange
- derivatives (206,655) (12,090) (23,857) (1,562) - (244,164)
Fja it 7 & Interest rate derivatives 423 (9,051) (7,343) (39,876) - (55,847)
Fl&mtt T 2 Bullion derivatives (1,668) - - - - (1,668)
(207,900) (21,141) (31,200) (41,438) - (301,679)
2010
| = 4= fF] - EIE SEIE A
Up to 1 month  1-3 months 3-12 months 1-5 years Over 5 years Total
S T R o WL
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$000 HK$°000
JHREfE T 5! Foreign exchange
derivatives (166,994) (2,319) (27,387) (178) - (196,878)
IE R EE I Interest rate derivatives 277 (9,077) (10,807) (57,159) (4,865) (81,631)
Fl& gt 5 Bullion derivatives (1,202) - - - - (1,202)
(167,919) (11,396) (38,194) (57,337) (4,865)  (279,711)
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Notes to the Financial Information (continued)

4.3 Liquidity Risk (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

C. Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities

(continued)

(b) Derivative cash flows

(ii) Derivatives settled on a gross basis

The Group’s derivatives that will be settled on a gross basis include OTC
currency options, currency forwards and OTC equity options.

The tables below analyse the Group’s derivative financial instruments as at
31 December that will be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity
groupings based on the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the gross
contractual undiscounted cash flows for all derivatives that are settled on a

B o F PRI AR gross basis.
FLE T T 2 ﬁ
AP E W
2011
- fREIP = A 42 W= - EIF LEMF ARt
Up to 1 month 1-3 months 3-12 months  1-5 years Over 5 years Total
AT W{ TFu W{ TFu Wri T W{ TFu Wr% T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Gk T 5 Foreign exchange
derivatives:
- PR - Outflow (6,986,235)  (1,558,352) (513) - - (8,545,100)
- - Inflow 6,993,362 1,560,271 520 - - 8,554,153
Jepa R T S Equity derivatives:
- - Outflow - - - - - -
- R - Inflow - - - - - -
AL Total outflow (6,986,235)  (1,558,352) (513) - - (8,545,100)
b b Total inflow 6,993,362 1,560,271 520 - - 8,554,153
2010
| =l 1= R - EE SEN - A
Up to 1 month  1-3 months 3-12months  1-5 years Over 5 years Total
W L PR L PR L ?{Uf’,ﬂ Tu ﬁ,’F}fPJ T HET L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
JHhEE TS Foreign exchange
derivatives:
- - Outflow (7,682,206) (3,898,669) (10,708) - - (11,591,583)
- R - Inflow 7,666,675 3,900,787 10,470 - - 11,577,932
e T 2 Equity derivatives:
- - Outflow - - - - - -
- - Inflow - - - - - -
SR Total outflow (7,682,206)  (3,898,669) (10,708) - - (11,591,583)
Ak 7 Total inflow 7,666,675 3,900,787 10,470 - - 11,577,932
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Notes to the Financial Information (continued)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.3 Liquidity Risk (continued)

C. Analysis of undiscounted cash flows by contractual maturities
(continued)

(c) Off-balance sheet items

Loan commitments

The contractual amounts of the Group’s off-balance sheet financial
instruments as at 31 December 2011 that the Group commits to extend
credit to customers and other facilities amounting to HK$4,302,774,000
(2010: HK$4,384,408,000). Those loan commitments can be drawn within
1 year.

Financial guarantees and other financial facilities

Financial guarantees and other financial facilities of the Group as at 31
December 2011 amounting to HK$1,567,447,000 (2010:
HK$1,716,013,000) are maturing no later than 1 year.
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Notes to the Financial Information (continued)

PRI (D

4. Financial risk management (continued)
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The major objective of the Bank’s capital management is to maximise total
shareholders’ return while maintaining a capital adequacy position in relation
to the Bank’s overall risk profile. The Bank periodically reviews its capital
structure and adjusts the capital mix where appropriate to achieve the
required rate of return on capital.

The Bank has developed and maintained a sound framework of policies and
controls on capital management to support the development of the Bank’s
business and to meet the statutory capital adequacy ratio. ALCO monitors
the Bank’s capital adequacy. The Bank has complied with all the statutory
capital requirements of the HKMA for the reported periods.

In prior years, the Bank adopted the standardised (credit risk) (“STC”)
approach to calculate credit risk capital charge.

With the HKMA approval, from 1 January 2011 the Bank has migrated to the
foundation internal ratings-based (“FIRB”) approach to calculate the credit
risk capital charge for the majority of its credit risk exposures A small residual
credit exposures was approved by HKMA to be exempted from FIRB
approach while remained under STC approach.

The Bank continues to adopt the standardised (market risk) (“STM”)
approach to calculate the market risk capital charge in year 2011.

The Bank continues to adopt standardised (operational risk) ("STO")
approach to calculate the minimum capital requirement for operational risk in
year 2011.

In compliance with the Banking (Capital) Rules, this regulatory capital
framework aligns regulatory capital requirements more closely with the
inherent risks. Following announcement of the Basel Il regulations by Basel
Committee, the Bank has conducted a detailed impact analysis on the
expected new capital rules, and participated in the “Implementation
Monitoring Process” organised by the Basel Committee on Banking
Supervision, and well prepared for the future implementation of the new
regulatory requirements.
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(#81) Notes to the Financial Information (continued)

R A

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4. SRRIRIEE (B)

4.4 Capital Management (continued)

4.4 W¥HFE GO)

i 201 Efﬁ*m R (el
FELE R fl WA R Rl
TR R T R

The Bank has continued to adopt an internal capital adequacy assessment
process (“ICAAP”) in capital management in 2011. Through this process, each
material risk associated with the Bank’s main activities is assessed by pre-defined
scorecard methods, and a comprehensive judgment of the overall risk profile is
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made subsequently with consideration of the Bank’s governance structure, risk
management quality, internal control environment and capital strength. As a result,
the minimum CAR is derived and aims to cover the various material risks
undertaken by the Bank. The Bank considers this ICAAP process as an on-going
process for capital management and periodically reviews and adjusts its capital
structure in relation to the overall risk profile.

In addition, the capital plan of the Bank is drawn up annually and then submitted to
the board for approval after endorsement of ALCO. The plan is built up by
assessing the implications of various factors upon capital adequacy such as the
business strategies, return on equity, risk appetite, credit rating, as well as
regulatory requirements. Hence, the future capital requirement is determined and
capital sources are identified also. The plan is to ensure the Bank’s capital
adequacy and achieve optimal capital structure in order to align with its business
development needs and risk profile.

As a result of the change in the bases of regulatory capital calculation, the

Iu]—/\z{. ETE:'E'«J}YI: B | F,LJEL

/‘* EJ"”%'Y@ PPN pogedE T amounts shown below are not directly comparable.
IS ISTIE T
(@) ¥4 % pl=gk (a) Capital adequacy ratio
2011 2010
AT el Capital adequacy ratio 19.36% 15.91%
(NS A Core capital ratio 18.80% 14.99%
Y P S (LS The capital ratios are computed on the combined basis that comprises the

positions of Bank’s local offices and overseas branches specified by the HKMA
for its regulatory purposes and in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules.
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@ EE 2 EATRCT R The differences between the basis of consolidation for accounting and
T [%Jﬁ/ﬁ’ ORLEE  BEE regulatory purposes are described in Note 25.
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(#81) Notes to the Financial Information (continued)

R A

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4. SRRIRIEE (B)

4.4 Capital Management (continued)

4.4 W¥HFE GO)

(b) W BepYH SRS [

(b) Components of capital base after deductions

BIRERRIT) - 2011 F 12
E[ 31 FIV a4 plisgke
i ’F"TE“ VA
(1Y R R

The combined capital base after deductions used in the calculation of the above
capital adequacy ratio as at 31 December 2011 and reported to the HKMA is

analysed as follows:

2011 2010
i Fu %ﬂ[’.ﬂ T
HK$'000 HK$’000
SEYE Core capital:
ﬂiﬂi&ﬁ i JL,@’JQ‘@QZ& Paid up ordinary share capital 300,000 300,000
(w0 Reserves 3,559,254 3,107,253
HHRH= Profit and loss account 279,919 491,495
4,139,173 3,898,748
Fjp-ow¥d VA Deductions from core capital (7,666) (12,262)
Fowyd Core capital 4,131,507 3,886,486
BFfapey Supplementary capital:
S LAt KE St I'F‘, f%]’fﬁ Reserves on revaluation of premises
and investment properties 224 224
Erffp At ﬁ?ﬁ R Fair value gain arising from holdings of
152 available-for-sale securities 1,149 3,242
Fi |f{ P EED ;1'?113[ i Fair value gains arising from holdings of
?FJE%J/.:@ 5T securities designated at fair value
{Elllfﬁ through profit or loss 10,493 7,647
T fA' =0 [F‘[,_/ e Collective loan impairment
i allowances 2,487 54,607
BRI Regulatory reserve 9,717 183,221
Ifé'}ffhﬂﬁﬁ [’;’EJ Surplus provisions 108,477 -
132,547 248,941
I aprey 4 410 Deductions from supplementary capital (7,666) (12,262)
By 4 Supplementary capital 124,881 236,679
R ey A FLAGHEE Total capital base after deductions 4,256,388 4,123,165

iR HE:'E‘*%W*%;T‘»
F e RLES VIR
o4 Wu‘ﬁﬁm
25 - f% Mg I/éf@“ﬂ‘?
S g‘ YA %i??&hﬂ'
¥ o

Subsidiaries which are not included in the consolidation for regulatory purposes
in respect of the calculation of capital adequacy ratio are denoted in Note 25 to

the Financial Statements in this Annual Report.

subsidiaries are deducted from the capital base.
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Notes to the Financial Information (continued)

4. EREWIRE GB)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities

45 ERRAIREY ST
(@) ZH| AT F RS R £

(a) Financial instruments not measured at fair value

Fair value estimates are made at a specific point in time based on
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relevant market information and information about various financial
instruments. The following methods and assumptions have been used to
estimate the fair value of each class of financial instrument as far as
practicable.

Balances with banks and other financial institutions and trade bills

The maturities of these financial assets and liabilities are within one year
and the carrying value approximates fair value.

Advances to customers, banks and other financial institutions

Substantially all the advances to customers, banks and other financial
institutions are on floating rate terms, bear interest at prevailing market
interest rates and their carrying value approximates fair value.

Held-to-maturity securities

Fair value for held-to-maturity securities is based on market prices or
broker/dealer price quotations. Where this information is not available, fair
value has been estimated using quoted market prices for securities with
similar credit, maturity and yield characteristics.

Loans and receivables

A discounted cash flow model is used based on a current yield curve
appropriate for the remaining term to maturity and their carrying value
approximates fair value.

Deposits from customers
Substantially all the deposits from customers mature within one year from
balance sheet date and their carrying value approximates fair value.
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Notes to the Financial Information (continued)
4. ERpRleEzE ()

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.5 EREYRE AL f?jpj el E )
(b) )22 FEFFEIpVE BT 5

4.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

(b) Financial instruments measured at fair value
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Financial instruments measured at fair value are classified into the
following three levels:

— Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities including spot derivative contracts.

— Level 2: Valuation technique using inputs other than quoted prices
included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either
directly or indirectly. This level includes the majority of the OTC
derivative contracts and issued structured deposit.

— Level 3: Valuation technique using inputs for the asset or liability that is
not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs). This level
includes equity investment and debt instruments with significant
unobservable components.

The Group use valuation techniques or broker/dealer quotations to
determine the fair value of financial instruments when unable to obtain the
open market quotation in active markets.

The main parameters used in valuation techniques for financial
instruments held by the Group include bond prices, interest rates, foreign
exchange rates, equity and stock prices, volatilities, counterparty credit
spreads and others, which are all observable and obtainable from open
market.

For certain illiquid debt securities and unlisted private equity held by the
Group, management obtains valuation quotations from counterparties.
The fair value of these financial instruments may be based on
unobservable inputs which may have significant impact on the valuation
of these financial instruments, and therefore, these instruments have
been classified by the Group as level 3. The Group has established
internal procedures to control and limit the Group’s exposure to such
financial instruments.

There have been no significant transfers between level 1 and 2 during the
year 2011 and 2010.
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Notes to the Financial Information (continued)

PRI (D

4. SRR GB)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

4.5 SRHRYEAEIFION 20 GR)
(b) Ff~2 @EEPVEHT 5 GB)

(b) Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(i) F MpoERe (i) Fair value hierarchy

2011
51 Wi 51 ERE 1= ERE NS
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
T iiEJr“Fr Foo HMPETA iiEJr“éU Fu
Hllé’OOO HK$'000 Hllé’OOO HK$'000
EREYR Financial assets
Y R e EE A Financial assets
i & R designated at fair value
through profit or loss
- [?i?%?ﬁ% - Debt securities - 842,569 - 842,569
Rt ST 2 Derivative financial
instruments 385,359 40,408 - 425,767
e E, B Available-for-sale
securities
- (RS - Debt securities - 1,547,594 179,249 1,726,843
0] - Equity securities - - 44,074 44,074
385,359 2,430,571 223,323 3,039,253
LRI Financial liabilities
Rt EgT 5 Derivative financial
instruments (202,876)  (73,111) - (275,987)
(202,876)  (73,111) - (275,987)
2010
5y e BT ghRE BT ek AT
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
WRET R HEETOL TR T
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EREYR Financial assets
R L s R Financial assets
iV & R designated at fair value
through profit or loss
- RS - Debt securities - 990,147 - 990,147
(PSR N Derivative financial
instruments 361,133 36,813 - 397,946
i Eé, ot Available-for-sale
securities
- ['Fﬁ%‘ﬁ??ﬁ'é’j - Debt securities - 1,107,702 1,023,290 2,130,992
- RS - Equity securities - - 44,406 44,406
361,133 2,134,662 1,067,696 3,563,491
LRI Financial liabilities
Rt BT 5 Derivative financial
instruments (167,839)  (85,666) - (253,505)
(167,839)  (85,666) - (253,505)
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(ii) Reconciliation of Level 3 items

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

Notes to the Financial Information (continued)

(b) Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

2011
Financial assets
RS TN
> Rt
T E
BiEYE e ES
Financial
assets
designated
at fair value
through profit Available-for-sale
or loss securities
Toms  foas  Ehes e
Debt securities Debt Equity Total
securities  securities
ﬁfﬁu Fu ﬁfﬁu Fu fﬁf‘—' Fu fﬁf‘—' Fu
H JS’OOO H 45’000 H é‘OOO H é‘OOO
At 1 January 2011 1,023,290 44,406 1,067,696
Total gains/(losses)
— Profit or loss -
— Other comprehensive
income - 8,977 8,977
Purchases 179,249 - 179,249
Sales (1,023,290) (9,309) (1,032,599)
At 31 December 2011 179,249 44,074 223,323

Total gains/(losses) for the
year included in profit or
loss for assets held as at
31 December 2011
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Notes to the Financial Information (continued)

4. SRR GB)

4. Financial risk management (continued)

4.5 Fair values of financial assets and liabilities (continued)

4.5 SRHRYEAEIFION 20 GR)
(b) Ff~2 @EEPVEHT 5 GB)

(b) Financial instruments measured at fair value (continued)

(i) 53= WRECHIE VR () (i) Reconciliation of Level 3 items (continued)
2010

Financial assets

PRI

I fifeh [~ FF
Tl E
Y% i L1

Financial assets

designated

at fair value

through profit Available-for-sale
or loss securities
s s R AR
Debt Equity
Debt securities securities securities Total
ﬁpf’.%r J ﬁwf’.%r o ﬁwﬁﬁ" T ﬁ&ﬂﬁﬁ" Fu
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
#2010 F 1 F] 1 | At 1 January 2010 - 580,775 45352 626,127
54 1 () Total gains/(losses)
i — Profit or loss - - - -
=Py = — Other comprehensive

income - 592 (946) (354)
Fi Purchases - 867,295 - 867,295
Tl Sales - (425,372) - (425372)
#2010 & 12 5] 31 1 At 31 December 2010 - 1,023,290 44,406 1,067,696

#2010 & 12 F] 31 [ E
[ i Pl O
Dt

i PIE SR D /
PRl WA S T
e 5 B e ﬁl%ﬁﬁiﬂl
S RT3
BT 5 T A |

TR L] 2T g
sy ST 59 CBED /
W5 | {9 TR YE S CIRf)
HEI -

Total gains/(losses) for the
year included in profit or
loss for assets held as at
31 December 2010

(Losses)/gains included in profit or loss for the year as well as losses relating to
assets held as at year end are presented in “Net trading gain”, “Net (loss)/gain
on financial instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss” or “Net
(charge)/reversal of impairment allowances” depending on the nature or the

category of the related financial instruments.
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(#) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

5. Net interest income

2011 2010
i AR
HK$'000 HK$’000
Interest income
Cash and due from banks and other financial
institutions 280,701 165,057
Advances to customers 719,531 585,934
Listed investments 97,712 68,337
Unlisted investments 38,513 61,947
Others 9,717 8,295
1,146,174 889,570
Interest expense
Due to banks and other financial institutions
(4,838) (3,180)
Deposits from customers (235,504) (140,252)
Others (2,119) (2,144)
(242,461) (145,576)
Net interest income 903,713 743,994

Included within interest income is HK$178,000 (2010: HK$369,000) of interest with respect to
income recognised on advances classified as impaired for the year ended 31 December
2011.

Included within interest income and interest expense are HK$1,111,234,000 (2010:
HK$854,719,000) and HK$242,461,000 (2010: HK$145,576,000) for financial assets and
financial liabilities that are not recognised at fair value through profit or loss respectively.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

6. Net fees and commission income

2011 2010
F&f’—' T HAET 7L
H é’OOO PE ’000
Fees and commission income
Securities brokerage
- Stockbroking 129,121 153,306
- Bonds 388 518
Bills commissions 52,930 44,783
Loan commissions 26,692 24,688
Insurance 33,560 28,360
Payment services 27,462 26,567
Safe deposit box 10,942 10,564
Funds distribution 5,825 4,332
Information search 2,347 2,310
Others 11,799 10,425
301,066 305,853
Fees and commission expenses
Securities brokerage (21,151) (24,808)
Payment services (2,362) (2,866)
Others (8,858) (12,249)
(32,371) (39,923)
Net fees and commission income 268,695 265,930
Of which arise from
- financial assets or financial liabilities not at fair value
through profit or loss
- Fees and commission income 46,660 37,856
- Fees and commission expenses - (23)
46,660 37,833
- trust and other fiduciary activities
- Fees and commission income 8,289 8,338
- Fees and commission expenses (2,898) (2,906)
5,391 5,432

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s

presentation.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

7. Net trading gain/ (loss)

Net gain/ (loss) from:
- foreign exchange and foreign exchange
products
- interest rate instruments

8. Other operating income

Dividend income from investment in securities

- unlisted investments
Gross rental income from investment properties
Less: Outgoings in respect of investment properties
Others

2011 2010
e
HK$'000 HK$'000
58,373 33,851
(30,716) (44,444)
27,657 (10,593)
2011 2010

5 HAET
HK$'000 HK$'000
6,030 4,775
5,804 4,472
(67) -

21 56
11,788 9,303

There are no direct operating expenses related to investment properties that were not let

during 2011 and 2010.
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9. Net (charge)/ reversal of impairment allowances

Advances to customers
Individually assessed
- new allowances
- releases
- recoveries

Net reversal of individually assessed loan
impairment allowances

Collectively assessed
- new allowances

- releases

Net (charge) of collectively assessed loan
impairment allowances

Net (charge)/ reversal of loan impairment
allowances

Others

Net (charge)/ reversal of impairment allowances

112

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2011 2010
wﬁffa M
HK$'000 HK$'000
(170) (1,209)
113 4,924
1,157 4,956
1,100 8,671
(5,325) (8,008)
(5,325) (8,006)
(4,225) 665
(6) (58)
(4,231) 607
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10. Operating expenses

Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments)
- salaries and other costs
- pension cost

Premises and equipment expenses
(excluding depreciation)

- rental of premises
- information technology
- others

Depreciation
Auditor’s remuneration

- audit services

- non-audit services
Other operating expenses

Lehman Brothers related products expenses recovery*

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

2011 2010
W T
HK$ 000 HK$'000

170,706 161,617
14,874 13,713
185,580 175,330
23,716 22,722
30,256 29,395
5,351 5,067
59,323 57,184
16,199 14,226
2,665 2,570
95 95
66,723 49,369
330,585 298,774
(215,715) -
114,870 298,774

* The final resolution of certain series of Lehman Brothers minibonds was announced on 15 June

2011. The net amount recovered by the Group from the underlying collateral of the Lehman

Brothers minibonds, after deducting the ex gratia payments and provision for trustee expenses,

was credited to operating expenses.

11. #=vps B/ 22 il 11. Net gain from disposal of/ fair value adjustments on investment

Y S

FETPIE 2T
il (17 26)

properties

Net gain from fair value adjustments on investment

properties (Note 26)

113

2011 2010
i,
HK$'000 HK$'000

35,771 20,770
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

13.

F%ﬁﬁ 12. Net (loss)/ gain from disposal of properties, plant and equipment

Net gain from disposal of premises
Net (loss)/ gain from disposal of other
fixed assets

Taxation

Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:

Hong Kong profits tax

- current period taxation

- over-provision in prior years
Deferred tax (credit)/ charge

Hong Kong profits tax
Overseas taxation

2011 2010
FE«‘F’]“ 7 HET S
HK$'000 HK$'000

- 237
(1,343) 12
(1,343) 249

2011 2010
W 7 HAET
HK$'000 HK$'000

146,238 99,500
- (500)
(1,703) 3,349
144,535 102,349
49,367 25,996
193,902 128,345

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% on the estimated assessable
profits arising in Hong Kong during the year. Taxation on overseas profits has been
calculated on the estimated assessable profits for the year at the rates of taxation prevailing

in the countries in which the Group operates.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

13. Taxation (continued)

The taxation on the Group’s profit before taxation that differs from the theoretical amount
that would arise using the taxation rate of Hong Kong is as follows:

Profit before taxation

Calculated at a taxation rate of 16.5%

Effect of different taxation rates in another country
Income not subject to taxation

Expenses not deductible for taxation purposes
Over-provision in prior years

Taxation charge

Effective tax rate

2011 2010
wpR
HK$'000 HK$'000

1,165,929 751,957

192,377 124,073
15,446 8,255
(17,074) (4,549)
3,153 1,066

- (500)
193,902 128,345
16.63% 17.07%

14. Profit attributable to equity holders of the Bank

The profit of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2011 attributable to equity holders of
the Bank and dealt with in the financial statements of the Bank amounted to

HK$948,798,000 (2010: HK$669,236,000).

15. Dividends
2011 2010
e AFE = AE
Per share Total Per share Total
WA
HK$ HK$'000 HK$ HK$’000
First Interim dividend paid 39.00 117,000 39.50 118,500
Second Interim dividend
declared 171.00 513,000 6.00 18,000
210.00 630,000 45.50 136,500
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

15.

16.

Dividends (continued)

At a meeting held on 20 May 2011, the Board declared a first interim dividend of
HK$39 per ordinary share, totalling HK$117,000,000.

At a meeting held on 29 December 2011, the Board declared a second interim
dividend of HK$171 per ordinary share, totalling HK$513,000,000.

Retirement benefit costs

The principal defined contribution schemes for the Group’s employees are ORSO
schemes exempted under the MPF Schemes Ordinance and the BOC-Prudential
Easy Choice MPF Scheme. Under the ORSO schemes, employees make monthly
contributions to the ORSO schemes equal to 5% of their basic salaries, while the
employer makes monthly contributions equal to 5% to 15% of the employees’ monthly
basic salaries, depending on years of service. The employees are entitled to receive
100% of the employer’s contributions upon termination of employment after
completing 10 years of service, or at a scale ranging from 30% to 90% for employees
who have completed between 3 to 10 years of service, on conditions of retirement,
early retirement, permanent incapacity and ill-health or termination of employment
other than summary dismissal.

With the implementation of the MPF Schemes Ordinance on 1 December 2000, the
Group also participates in the BOC-Prudential Easy Choice MPF Scheme, of which
the trustee is BOCI-Prudential Trustee and the investment manager is
BOCI-Prudential Manager, which are related parties of the Bank.

The Group’s total contributions made to the ORSO schemes for the year ended 31
December 2011 amounted to approximately HK$10,580,000 (2010: approximately
HK$10,079,000), after a deduction of forfeited contributions of approximately
HK$172,000 (2010: approximately HK$788,000). For the MPF Scheme, the Group
contributed approximately HK$1,843,000 for the year ended 31 December 2011
(2010: approximately HK$1,615,000).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

17. Share option schemes

(@) Share Option Scheme and Sharesave Plan

(b)

The principal terms of the Share Option Scheme and the Sharesave Plan were
approved and adopted by written resolutions of all the shareholders of the
Bank’s intermediate holding company, BOCHKHL, dated 10 July 2002.

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the participants with the
opportunity to acquire proprietary interests in BOCHKHL. The Board of
BOCHKHL (the “BOCHKHL Board”) may, in its absolute discretion, offer to
grant options under the Share Option Scheme to any person as the BOCHKHL
Board may select. The subscription price for the shares shall be determined on
the date of grant by the BOCHKHL Board as an amount per share calculated
on the basis of established rules. An option may be exercised in whole or in part
at any time after the date prescribed by the BOCHKHL Board and from time to
time as specified in the offer and on or before the termination date prescribed
by the BOCHKHL Board.

The purpose of the Sharesave Plan is to encourage broad-based employee
ownership of the shares of BOCHKHL. The amount of the monthly contribution
under the savings contract to be made in connection with an option shall be the
amount which the relevant eligible employee is willing to contribute, which
amount shall not be less than 1% and not more than 10% of the eligible
employee’s monthly salary as at the date of application or such other maximum
or minimum amounts as permitted by the BOCHKHL Board. When an option is
exercised during an exercise period, it may be exercised in whole or in part.

No options were granted pursuant to the Share Option Scheme or the
Sharesave Plan during the year 2011 (2010: Nil).

Pre-Listing Share Option Scheme

On 5 July 2002, several directors of the Group were granted options by BOC
Hong Kong (BVI) Limited (“BOC (BVI)”), the immediate holding company of
BOCHKHL, pursuant to a Pre-Listing Share Option Scheme to purchase from
BOC (BVI) an aggregate of 3,652,800 existing issued shares of BOCHKHL.
The Group has taken advantage of the transitional provisions set out in
paragraph 53 of HKFRS 2 under which the new recognition and measurement
policies have not been applied to all options granted to employees on or
before 7 November 2002.
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17. Share option schemes (continued)

17. A (6

(b) J—mﬁr]]%ﬁ&@;;{%[] &) (b) Pre-Listing Share Option Scheme (continued)

= 20117+ 12 £] 31 E'LPFQTZ% Details of the share options outstanding as at 31 December 2011 are
@%‘Iﬁ?ﬁiﬁ‘ﬁﬂ b disclosed as follows:
FRBELY B
RS (:ﬂ-}%ﬁ)
Total number of
share options to Average

directors of the Exercise price
Group (HK$ per share)

#2011 8 1 F[ 1[I

At 1 January 2011 55,900
il E l/g“‘j&“@ Less : Share options exercised during
the year - 8.5
2011 & 12 5] 31 | At 31 December 2011 55,900
52011 F 12 5] 31 PR =l Exercisable at 31 December 2011
F,J{l&‘@ 55,900
FREE DY TS
AT (= ?%Jﬁ‘)
Totarnumber of
share options to Average

directors of the Exercise price
Group (HK$ per share)

#2010 F 1 F[ 1 [! At 1 January 2010 55,900
e gl ]EIJ/F?:%‘@ Less : Share options exercised during
the year - 8.5
#2010 F 12 5] 31 |1 At 31 December 2010 55,900
52010 F 12 5] 31 PR =l Exercisable at 31 December 2010
]?i%“@ 55,900

J2E FHQQ‘@F‘ 2011 =% 2010
E ‘%E(|‘I E{ )

RUSI=FE [ R o e
St jq&«zzws 0%
T‘E'bf VgJﬁW@I‘FJ%&Ff’I 1.00

8 i g L A5
ﬁ:ﬂ\*’frﬁxjafl'g B IEEEY 4

[ 5];'%’;}” 3 j."S!‘m[E[HFﬁ 10
Fo I[ﬂ?ﬂﬁ&% (73 RFI g jﬂ\
*’TTFF BV P E }{"{ FH— 58
é%& T 'JFH%&@% [J?s‘« HES
F

No share options have been exercised in 2011 and 2010.

The options granted under this scheme can be exercised at HK$8.50 per share
in respect of the option price of HK$1.00. These options have a vesting period
of four years from the date on which dealings in the shares commenced on the
Stock Exchange with a valid exercise period of ten years. No offer to grant any
options under the Pre-Listing Share Option Scheme will be made on or after
the date on which dealings in the shares commenced on the Stock Exchange.
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Eﬂ"‘%ﬁﬁ*f‘ﬁﬁf (#81) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)
18. fijﬂvﬁ,' “&Fﬁ{l F 18. Directors’ and senior management’s emolument
'JA}
(a) BEIM& (a) Directors’ emoluments
dEE AR RS Q‘LW g Details of the emoluments paid to or receivable by the directors of the Bank in
F LS e EERIN R plR L respect of their services rendered for the Bank and managing the subsidiaries
Teags iy =1 Iﬂ e E el % IEA within the Group during the year are as follows:
SR
2011 2010
wE
HK$'000 HK$'000
K2 Fees 1,860 1,800
H s Other emoluments
- SRR M HR - basic salaries and allowances 5143 3.202
o B A - discretionary bonuses 1,996 978
- P (S R - others (including pension contributions) 968 737
9,967 6,717
FF A [ SR RS Fees of HK$510,000 (2010: HK$450,000) were paid to the Independent
&P & GRS £ 510,000 7 Non-Executive Directors during the year.
(2010: Fia50, 0005) -
20025 75| o A S In July 2002, options were granted to several Directors of the Group by BOC
AT (BVE) AUSEiAe 2 (BVI), the immediate holding company of BOCHKHL under the Pre-Listing Share
17(b) BV T 'jg'i’i&’@“f F Option Scheme as set out in Note 17(b). Full details of the scheme are stated in
T B g%ﬁ [ﬁ‘l’[T Note 17. During the year, certain options were exercised, but no benefits arising
ﬁ:l_:wf F I qu“’i[“ Pl [E‘ ’ from the granting of these share options were included in the Directors’
[ 1 e 1] N L emoluments disclosed above or recognised in the income statement.
A P SR AN & 2
5 ) q;ﬁiw S
o
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

18. Directors’ and senior management’s emolument

(b) Remuneration for the Senior Management and Key Personnel

Pursuant to CG-5 Guideline on a Sound Remuneration System issued by the
HKMA, details of the remuneration for the Senior Management and Key Personnel
of the Group during the year are as follows:

2011 2010
BETECE SRR el SR

Senior Key Senior Key

Management  Personnel Management Personnel
WHEET R T R
Hllé’OOO Hlli’OOO HIL ’000 HPL '000
Fixed remuneration

- cash 8,373 4,962 5,965 4,844

Variable remuneration
- cash 2,511 1,158 1,361 683
10,884 6,120 7,326 5,527

The remuneration above includes 4 (2010: 3) members of Senior Management
and 4 (2010: 4) members of Key Personnel.

During 2011 and 2010, there was no deferred remuneration awarded to Senior
Management and Key Personnel.

For the purpose of disclosure, Senior Management and Key Personnel mentioned
in this section are defined according to the HKMA's Guideline on a Sound
Remuneration System:

Senior Management: The senior executives designated by the Board who are
responsible for oversight of the firm-wide strategy or material business lines,
including Chief Executive and Deputy General Manager.

Key Personnel: The employees whose individual business activities involve the
assumption of material risk which may have significant impact on risk exposure, or
whose individual responsibilities are directly and materially linked to the risk
management, or those who have direct influence to the profit, including Head of
material business line, Head of Trading, as well as Head of risk control functions.
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19. BiEHERFHHIER 19, Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions

20.

31 1 & R O

FEERRES
The Group and the Bank
2011 2010
ﬁs’i‘-ﬁ‘ri BT L
HK$'000 HK$’'000
P& Cash 161,304 148,258
T PR P AR Balances with central banks 607,687 1,106,162
TEE R E P E Eﬂlﬁﬂﬁ fi Balances with banks and other financial
iR institutions 2,830,869 2,397,160
LS f‘ﬁf»fiﬂlﬁ?%* Placements with banks and other financial
I E I 28 R institutions maturing within one month 3,514,089 2,632,056
7,113,949 6,283,636
FiEERS ) 2 i@ {™  20. Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
77 26 & RS
R R RES
The Group and the Bank
2011 2010
itk w7
HK$'000 HK%'OOO
e At fair value
s Debt securities
- fz?ﬁ T - Listed in Hong Kong 528,331 577,034
- R - Listed outside Hong Kong 314,238 413,113
842,569 990,147
Pl kL) 2 e Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss are analysed by type of issuer
eNUE A T Ol e as follows:
STERS -
F R E A LS
The Group and the Bank
2011 2010
BT R ?%Uf’ﬁu' T
Hllé'OOO HK$’000
= Ay Sovereigns - 41,287
SLUF R EH fi’:ﬁﬁiﬁ}ﬁ%ﬁ Banks and other financial institutions 155,120 155,520
BTN Corporate entities 687,449 793,340
842,569 990,147
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Chiyu Banking @eorporation Ltd.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

The Group enters into the following equity, foreign exchange, interest rate and
bullion related derivative financial instruments for trading and risk management
purposes:

Currency forwards represent commitments to purchase and sell foreign currency
on a future date.

Currency and interest rate swaps are commitments to exchange one set of cash
flows for another. Swaps result in an exchange of currencies or interest rates (for
example, fixed rate for floating rate) or a combination of all these (i.e.
cross-currency interest rate swaps). Except for certain currency swap contracts,
no exchange of principal takes place.

Foreign currency and equity options are contractual agreements under which the
seller (writer) grants the purchaser (holder) the right, but not the obligation, either
to buy (a call option) or sell (a put option) at or by a set date or during a set
period, a specific amount of the financial instrument at a predetermined price. In
consideration for the assumption of foreign exchange and interest rate risk, the
seller receives a premium from the purchaser. Options are negotiated
over-the-counter (“OTC”) between the Group and its counterparty or traded
through the stock exchange (for example, exchange-traded stock option).

The contract/notional amounts and fair values of derivative financial instruments
held by the Group are set out in the following tables. The contract/notional
amounts of these instruments indicate the volume of transactions outstanding at
the balance sheet dates and certain of them provide a basis for comparison with
fair value instruments recognised on the consolidated balance sheet. However,
they do not necessarily indicate the amounts of future cash flows involved or the
current fair values of the instruments and, therefore, do not indicate the Group’s
exposure to credit or market risks. The derivative financial instruments become
favourable (assets) or unfavourable (liabilities) as a result of fluctuations in
market interest rates, foreign exchange rates or equity and metal prices relative
to their terms. The aggregate fair values of derivative financial instruments
assets and liabilities can fluctuate significantly from time to time.

The Group trades derivative products (both exchange-traded or OTC) mainly for
customer business. The Group strictly follows risk management policies in
providing derivative products to our customers and in trading of derivative
products in the interbank market.

Derivatives are also used to manage the interest rate risk of the banking book. A
derivative instrument must be included in the approved product list before any
transactions for that instrument can be made. There are limits to control the
notional amount of exposure arising from derivative transactions, and the
maximum tenor of the deal is set. Every derivative transaction must be input into
the relevant system for settlement, mark to market revaluation, reporting and
control.
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. ERIT S ERAN 21, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
F’?*’r € ))
(@) h= SR &

(a) Derivative financial instruments

RS S IR 2 The following tables summarise the contract/notional amounts of each significant type

L '15” 2*]31 Frov of derivative financial instrument as at 31 December:
fias /B3 AR
’V}nggl :
TRERHES
The Group and the Bank
2011
ERe]
Erey SR HF
Not qualified
for hedge
Trading accounting Total
ll 000 lg 000 l£ OOO
[zrt} b Exchange rate contracts
EB 1w Spot and forwards 7,424,234 - 7,424,234
?ﬁ‘ Swaps 8,081,358 8,081,358
It D Htﬂﬁf Foreign currency option
contracts
{F A - Options purchased 1,190 1,190
- - Options written 1,190 1,190
15,507,972 15,507,972
alES ﬁ b Interest rate contracts
Hireq Swaps 777,811 777,811
EJ & FET}“[ e Bullion contracts 261,582 261,582
175 ﬂ!@ﬁf Equity contracts
At Total 15,769,554 777,811 16,547,365

i G
B By Bt %
P 7 e
B & F“ JrH Y
o ()
i -
OEY TR
PG SR 5 -

* Derivative transactions which do not qualify as hedges for accounting purposes but are
managed in conjunction with the financial instruments designated at fair value through
profit or loss are separately disclosed in compliance with the requirements set out in

the Banking (Disclosure) Rules.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

(a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

Exchange rate contracts
Spot and forwards
Swaps
Foreign currency option

contracts
- Options purchased
- Options written

Interest rate contracts
Swaps

Bullion contracts
Equity contracts

Total

124

7+ & i L
The Group and the Bank
2010
%:m
Fi% #H ll"if G
Not quallfled
for hedge
Trading accounting® Total
AT VLT 7 AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
6,756,170 - 6,756,170
10,587,358 - 10,587,358
3,362 - 3,362
3,362 - 3,362
17,350,252 - 17,350,252
- 911,878 911,878
74,579 - 74,579
17,424,831 911,878 18,336,709
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21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)

(a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

The following tables summarise the fair values of each class of derivative financial
instrument as at 31 December :

Exchange rate contracts
Spot and forwards
Swaps
Foreign currency

option contracts
- Options purchased
- Options written

Interest rate contracts
Swaps

Bullion contracts
Equity contracts

Total

T RENEAS
The Group and the Bank
2011
BN 2 g
Fair value assets Fair value liabilities

—1\ 'v_'j- I?;FI j —1\ ﬁ-c j{f;y:n j
T T O SRR e

Not Not

qualified qualified

for hedge for hedge
Trading accounting Total Trading accounting Total

17 DSOSy W B o1/ BSOS vy
000 HKJS’OOO ‘000 H J.B’OOO H 4;‘000 HKJJOOO
414,463 - 414,463 227,397 - 227,397
9,548 - 9,548 505 - 505
4 - 4 - - -
- - - 4 - 4
424,015 - 424,015 227,906 - 227,906
- - - - 46,413 46,413
1,752 - 1,752 1,668 - 1,668
425,767 - 425,767 229,574 46,413 275,987
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e ST SR 21, Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting (continued)
fE G
(@) FWEEHT 3! (@) (a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)
F R RS LS
The Group and the Bank
2010
Sl S
Fair value assets Fair value liabilities
- ”TT{[T”‘ o o TEpEE o
Biew SRl f{“ﬁ* A Biew Sy “thhi A
Not Not
qualified qualified
for hedge for hedge
Trading accounting Total Trading accounting Total
WRETR TR TR BAETR EAETR TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
==l ’]1“‘1 Exchange rate contracts
AN m i Spot and forwards 387,313 - 387,313 194,055 - 194,055
}ﬁfﬁ; Swaps 9,882 - 9,882 21,556 - 21,556
I pLIIRE R Foreign currency
option contracts
- i A - Options purchased 73 - 73 - - -
- T - Options written - - - 74 - 74
397,268 - 397,268 215,685 - 215,685
Fllsk Ai Interest rate contracts
kA Swaps - - - - 36,618 36,618
FlE F?}}’f, W Bullion contracts 678 - 678 1,202 - 1,202
TGt f b Equity contracts - - - - - -
AT Total 397,946 - 397,946 216,887 36,618 253,505
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21. = T SR ER
ﬁa‘f (&)

(@)

(b)

e 2R 5 G

gt &w* SRy
e I URRRI AET

[ £ A LA
(EL=H (G4 ) B F7F
B AT St Vi
ﬁdb ;ip /\I'TJ" I # S \L,‘ﬁ{;r
F!TEJ
FELEHT2011 5 12531 !
mm E_Lﬁft ij’ﬂ «E,EL E{-
ETﬁ;’r,ETl nﬁuaw’:—f i
#2010#12f 31f U%’U'
feve (IF“ ) FRENE
EIMJ‘”?” B pJﬁL/‘* £l By
g > R FIJ@’“[’BBJI@Q(
A

RS ST SV R gy
{E EVRC e R BRI E

I R BT #Eﬂ’rﬂa
%Er,‘l} °

EanilaE

Y91 3B (ISR
1;”2011#12F |31F1 > 4 &
Jﬁ * ’«Jf”f‘ =l

RN s
568,939, 0007’L (2010 : 74
ﬁj‘543,760,0007L ) b RS
9 L g S
HJ °

AR DR
U e
7 (20105 : )

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

21. Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting
(continued)

(a) Derivative financial instruments (continued)

The credit risk weighted amounts of the above derivative financial instruments are

as follows:
# & [0 A ST
The Group and the Bank
2011 2010
u &Uﬁf Tu
HK$'000 HK$'000
Exchange rate contracts
Forwards 62,043 63,304
Swaps 23,019 57,878
Interest rate contracts
Swaps 889 3,209
85,951 124,391

The credit risk weighted amounts are calculated in accordance with the Banking
(Capital) Rules. The amounts are dependent upon the status of the counterparty
and the maturity characteristics of each type of contract.

The Bank adopted the FIRB approach to calculate credit risk exposures as at 31
December 2011, as opposed to the STC approach that was used as at 31
December 2010. As a result of the change in the basis used, the risk weighted
amounts shown above are not directly comparable.

There is no effect of valid bilateral netting agreement on the fair values or the credit
risk weighted amounts of the derivative financial instruments.

(b) Hedge accounting

Hedges of net investments in foreign operation

As at 31 December 2011, a proportion of the Group’s RMB-denominated deposits
from customers of HK$568,939,000 (2010: HK$543,760,000) are designated as a
hedge of net investments in foreign operations.

There are no gains or losses on ineffective portion recognised in the income
statements during the year (2010: Nil).
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

22. Advances and other accounts

it * e
S RleH

g v

CHEI
- FIHHIE B
- A

N
A

H2011F 125 31F 1 » H e
H AR ORI L
76,125,000+ (2010F : %
Jfﬁ‘49,489,00071 )e
#20117F 125311 %2010
EA2E[BU[1 s S LR
2 (RS 7 R s

"R K TR
14,835,282,0007 (ZOH
=& ?%Ffi‘13,442,455,000
) WEF KT
HE fﬁf 5,423,588,000
( 2010 =+ : ¥# ff’?j
6,339,932,0007+ ) -

BRI L
The Group and the Bank

2011 2010

i R

HK$'000 HK$’000

Personal loans and advances 5,849,914 5,704,446

Corporate loans and advances 17,077,892 15,953,353

Advances to customers* 22,927,806 21,657,799
Loan impairment allowances

- Individually assessed (237) (2,605)

- Collectively assessed (59,915) (54,607)

22,867,654 21,600,587

Trade bills 2,376,141 1,191,252

Total 25,243,795 22,791,839

As at 31 December 2011, advances to customers included accrued interest on gross
advances of HK$76,125,000 (2010: HK$49,489,000).

As at 31 December 2011 and 2010, no impairment allowance was made in respect of trade
bills and advances to banks and other financial institutions.

* Included advances to customers denominated in HK dollars of HK$14,835,282,000 (2010:
HK$13,442,455,000) and US dollars equivalent to HK$5,423,588,000 (2010:
HK$6,339,932,000).
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2011 & 4 F] 1 I
Bl A (3 9)
5 Y T
YT A
S

e 57

#2011 = 12 F] 31 !

72011 = 1 F[ 1 FI

Tl ar il (I 9)
e S A

72011 & 12 F] 31 !

23. Loan impairment allowances

At 1 January 2011

Credited to income statement (Note 9)

Loans written off during the year as
uncollectible

Recoveries

Unwind of discount on allowance

Translation difference

At 31 December 2011

At 1 January 2011

Charged to income statement (Note 9)
Translation difference

At 31 December 2011
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

T REYHES
The Group and the Bank
2011
¥ TR

Individual assessment
T - 2 st
Personal Corporate Total
iﬁ‘fﬁf‘f T AT AT
HK%’OOO HIHS’OOO H}ESL’OOO
26 2,579 2,605
(223) (877) (1,100)
- (2,408) (2,408)
197 960 1,157
- (7) a7
- 237 237

TEBIYEES
The Group and the Bank
2011
BEAE

Collective assessment
T - 2l et
Personal Corporate Total
WA %E»f“v‘n WA
HII '000 H é’OOO HII '000
3,631 50,976 54,607
672 4,653 5,325
- (17) a7)
4,303 55,612 59,915
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PRI (D

23. E}ﬁ?ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁﬁ (&) 23. Loan impairment allowances (continued)

7+ 8 [ 4 42
The Group and the Bank
2010
F I

Individual assessment

ffi 2l A

Personal Corporate Total

?%F?.”Lr Tu ﬁpﬁ’;" Tu iﬁfﬁﬁr L

HK$’000 HK$’'000 HK$'000

#2010 F 1 F[ 1 F! At 1 January 2010 81 6,315 6,396

Fesgngipt (i 9) Credited to income statement (Note 9) (734) (7,937) (8,671)
G F ISR Loans written off during the year as

Uncollectible - (91) (91)

NI e ] e Recoveries 679 4,277 4,956

PR [ Unwind of discount on allowance - - -

e T FE Translation difference - 15 15

2010 # 12 5] 31 [ At 31 December 2010 26 2,579 2,605

RS LSS
The Group and the Bank
2010
e
Collective assessment

fi ~ 2l AT

Personal Corporate Total

BE A W WA

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

¥ 2010 F 1 5[ 1 ! At 1 January 2010 3,005 43,561 46,566

KU AR ([ 45) Charged!/ (credited) to income

(I 9) statement (Note 9) 626 7,380 8,006

METES o) Translation difference - 35 35

#2010 F 12 £] 31 | At 31 December 2010 3,631 50,976 54,607
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PO AT R

- 2L

(b) Ht = EHEES
Iy S R

iR
- WA Jﬂﬁj

Al HH R 4

(©) £ B
Al R I
et

T 2 0 Y @S

24. Investment in securities

(a) Available-for-sale securities

Debt securities, at fair value
- Listed outside Hong Kong
- Unlisted

Equity securities, at fair value
- Unlisted

(b) Held-to-maturity securities
Listed, at amortised cost

- in Hong Kong
- outside Hong Kong

Unlisted, at amortised cost

(c) Loans and receivables

Unlisted, at amortised cost

Total

Market value of listed held-to-maturity securities

131

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

TER

The Group
2011 2010
BECR
HK$'000 HK$'000
549,009 524,389
1,177,834 1,606,603
1,726,843 2,130,992
44,074 44,406
1,770,917 2,175,398
243,157 160,196
345,238 358,034
588,395 518,230
1,355,101 1,455,951
1,943,496 1,974,181
157,389 13
3,871,802 4,149,592
586,089 520,815




4 & a4y

Chiyu Banking @eorporation Ltd.

SHEBRMER A member of BOCHK Group

PRI (D

24. Y ()

OREHIEE 2
s WA i R

- W)
-]

PO AT R

- 2L

(b) Ht = EHEES
Iy S R

iR
- WA Jﬂﬁj

Al HH R 4

(©) £ B
Al R I
et

T 2 0 Y @S

24. Investment in securities (continued)

(a) Available-for-sale securities

Debt securities, at fair value
- Listed outside Hong Kong
- Unlisted

Equity securities, at fair value
- Unlisted

(b) Held-to-maturity securities
Listed, at amortised cost

- in Hong Kong
- outside Hong Kong

Unlisted, at amortised cost

(c) Loans and receivables

Unlisted, at amortised cost

Total

Market value of listed held-to-maturity securities
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

FEUS
The Bank

2011 2010
i AR
HK$'000 HK$’000
549,009 524,389
1,177,834 1,606,603
1,726,843 2,130,992
2,834 2,438
1,729,677 2,133,430
243,157 160,196
345,238 358,034
588,395 518,230
1,355,101 1,455,951
1,943,496 1,974,181
157,389 13
3,830,562 4,107,624
586,089 520,815
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24. Investment in securities (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Investment in securities is analysed by type of issuer as follows:

Sovereigns

Banks and other
financial institutions

Corporate entities

Sovereigns

Banks and other
financial institutions

Corporate entities

TER
The Group
2011
t I ES
THUE RS EHAEIGES  ETEYRISE A
Availabre-for- Held-to-
sale maturity Loans and
securities securities  receivables Total
W" o T Fu iiEJF’u' Fu iiEJF’u' Tu
HK%’OOO HK$'000 HK31>’000 HK31>’000
- 99,998 - 99,998
1,616,311 1,438,358 157,389 3,212,058
154,606 405,140 - 559,746
1,770,917 1,943,496 157,389 3,871,802
FERE
The Group
2010
ILES
FEIEES O EIIEES RO sz
Available-for- Held-to-
sale maturity Loans and
securities securities receivables Total
HAFET WM 7 HHFET T T
HK%’OOO HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$’000
- 499,760 - 499,760
2,024,418 1,144,464 13 3,168,895
150,980 329,957 - 480,937
2,175,398 1,974,181 13 4,149,592
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

24. Investment in securities (continued)

Investment in securities is analysed by type of issuer as follows:

Sovereigns

Banks and other
financial institutions

Corporate entities

Sovereigns

Banks and other
financial institutions

Corporate entities

TS
The Bank
2011
t I ES
THUE RS EHAEIGES  ETEYRISE A
Availabre-for- Held-to-
sale maturity Loans and
securities securities  receivables Total
WOETR T WRECR MR e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- 99,998 - 99,998
1,616,311 1,438,358 157,389 3,212,058
113,366 405,140 - 518,506
1,729,677 1,943,496 157,389 3,830,562
FEAE
The Bank
2010
HE
P E RS LIPS e IR AT
Available-for- Held-to- Loans
sale maturity and
securities securities receivables Total
W T ?ﬁjf’éu’ T W 7L W 7L
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
- 499,760 - 499,760
2,024,419 1,144,464 13 3,168,896
109,011 329,957 - 438,968
2,133,430 1,974,181 13 4,107,624
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24. Y ()

24. Investment in securities (continued)

R U/ I The movements in investment in securities are summarised as follows:

TR
The Group
2011
N
T B E[HIFIESS ETR T TSR
Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity Loans and
securities securities receivables
wfﬂa AT 5 WP 7
H i’OOO H}I '000 H}I '000
2011 F 1 5[ 1 a At 1 January 2011 2,175,398 1,974,181 13
s Additions 2,691,997 4,638,276 779,739
@iﬁ{ ~ R 23 Disposals, redemptions

and maturity (3,140,512) (4,655,168) (604,827)
e Amortisation 8,594 (12,554) 6,906
2 il Change in fair value 39621 . _
el Exchange differences (4,181) (1,239) (24,442)
#2011 = 12 5] 31 a At 31 December 2011 1,770,917 1,943,496 157,389

FERE

The Group
2010

[ S

P
B =

SIS

VU TR

Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity Loans and

securities securities receivables

?ﬁff’.ﬂ T %EUFPU T iﬁffiﬁr T

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

#2010 F 1 5[ 1 [! At 1 January 2010 1,133,754 3,930,474 9

s Additions 3,991,396 9,347,453 306,231
&“E;ﬁg[’ ~ @ pi e =] Disposals, redemptions

and maturity (2,966,016) (11,317,453) (308,562)

Lzl Amortisation 8,577 (666) 2,335

2 e Change in fair value 5,023 - -

R b 5% Exchange differences 2,664 14,373 -

#2010 F 12 5] 31 F! At 31 December 2010 2,175,398 1,974,181 13
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24. Investment in securities (continued)

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The movements in investment in securities are summarised as follows:

At 1 January 2011
Additions

Disposals, redemptions
and maturity
Amortisation

Change in fair value
Exchange differences

At 31 December 2011

At 1 January 2010
Additions

Disposals, redemptions
and maturity
Amortisation

Change in fair value
Exchange differences

At 31 December 2010

FELS
The Bank

2011
T B E[BALTESS SR ISR
Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity Loans and
securities securities receivables
u u iﬁ}’ﬁ‘—" Fu
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2,133,430 1,974,181 13
2,691,997 4,638,276 779,739
(3,095,512) (4,655,168) (604,827)
8,594 (12,554) 6,906
(4,651) - -
(4,181) (1,239) (24,442)
1,729,677 1,943,496 157,389

FELE

The Bank
2010
FE =

TR S IS ET s
Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity Loans and
securities securities receivables
e e e
HK$ 000 HK$'000 HK$'000
1,090,576 3,930,474 9
3,991,396 9,347,453 306,231
(2,966,016) (11,317,453) (308,562)
8,577 (666) 2,335
6,232 - -
2,665 14,373 -
2,133,430 1,974,181 13
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24. FEHY () 24. Investment in securities (continued)
FrHLE R = A Available-for-sale and held-to-maturity securities are analysed as follows:
FEE
The Group
i HH RS B = AR
Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity
Securities Securities
2011 2010 2011 2010
i HEE T i HEE T
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
’Elé’j Treasury bills } . 99,098 499,760
ﬁj? |VERE Certificates of
deposit held 179,249 1,023,290 523,504 156,061
H Others 1,591,668 1,152,108 1,319,994 1,318,360
1,770,917 2,175,398 1,943,496 1,974,181
T
The Bank
A E S = EII RS
Available-for-sale Held-to-maturity
Securities Securities
2011 2010 2011 2010
g g
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
?_‘I%j Treasury bills ) _ 99,998 499,760
ﬁf |V EHE Certificates of
deposit held 179,249 1,023,290 523,504 156,061
H Others 1,550,428 1,110,140 1,319,994 1,318,360
1,729,677 2,133,430 1,943,496 1,974,181
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Note:

Chiyu Banking @eorporation Ltd.

25. Investment in subsidiaries

Unlisted shares, at cost
Amount due from subsidiaries (Note)
Amount due to subsidiaries (Note)

terms of repayment.

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

FELE
The Bank

2011 2010
WEER g
HK$'000 HK$’000
3,913 3,913
11,169 35,232
(24,202) (1,901)
(9,120) 37,244

The following is a list of subsidiaries as at 31 December 2011:

Amounts due from/ to subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and have no fixed

£ Al R 2 RN
lace o Particulars of issued Interest
Name incorporation share capital held Principal activities
B RS (PO ) L fi 1,000 JEE 6l 100% REEE AT At
100 ¥
Chiyu Banking Corporation Hong Kong 1,000 shares 100% Nominee service and
(Nominees) Limited of HK$100 each investment holding
FEEIFE IR % 2,800 & JETEfifi 100% HE IR & IR Po
PP f f -
1,000 k7 I
Seng Sun Development Company Hong Kong 2,800 shares 100% Investment holding and
Limited of HK$1,000 each leasing of properties to
group companies
LY i 2 HEE 100%* e
1 o
Grace Charter Limited Hong Kong 2 shares 100%* Investment holding

USRI

1622011 &F 1 F] 7 B DR I
T »z]éﬁ'r .
2. # 2011

18 El ,zt & Dlm

3. #2011 & 9 £] 12 [ I » Pacific
Trend Profits Corporation =t

el -

of HK$1 each

* Shares held indirectly by the Bank

1. Glory Cardinal Limited had been dissolved on 7 January 2011.

2. The Group disposed of its entire interests in Glister Company Limited to
independent third parties on 18 March 2011.

3. Pacific Trend Profits Corporation had been dissolved on 12 September 2011.

138



4 & a4y

Chiyu Banking @eorporation Ltd.

DEHFHRUMEN A member of BOCHK Group

PRI (D

25. FEfRE Il ()

”FJF
L e S| SRl &
‘H'E?Fh .+ﬁ§:m¢34 Li}\
F"rfz,lj< ] Hit;u?g
= IVK%EFE g s kA /]l 73
I?H&fg, anF[ EALE (L
F VAR 3255 7 L
- g#%ﬁﬂw’mﬁ
E'l P TR pE o
fi > F‘Eff*lr*‘* 755 “}‘rﬁr
S M (R
I}} LTS IRl i

8A H Ffm‘flvrv [t e

26. Ry

W1 R

2 i (R 11)

FURT5 M PR~ g
i (i 27)

H12 5] 31 |1

FETYPIR I R R
BREIEGT AT

‘;m _m%

A
S 4(4@@50#)

LW
e

Lh A

SERIEE

11

iy

T
279 (10 F %= 50 &)

—

H 2011 =F 12 F] 31 1
F"ﬁf R A F[ﬁ;ﬁ% l/}%g‘}
{%i s 7% PH%QEW ﬁxp
gy N HE ‘éé‘ﬂ IIEI’VEJ
Fays i 201

12 5] 3 N R ELYE
s = l/‘TJ; lﬁ'[ﬁj

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

25. Investment in subsidiaries (continued)

Remarks:

All the subsidiaries listed in the above table are not included in the combined basis for
regulatory purposes in respect of capital adequacy. The Bank’s Hong Kong Offices and
overseas branches specified by the HKMA form the combined basis for its regulatory
purposes in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules. For accounting purposes,
subsidiaries are consolidated in accordance with the accounting standards issued by the
HKICPA pursuant to section 18A of the Professional Accountant Ordinance.

26. Investment properties

7+ &R ELE
The Group and the Bank
2011 2010
e 7
HK$'000 HK$'000
At 1 January 124,070 78,800
Fair value gains (Note 11) 35,771 20,770
Reclassification from properties, plant and
equipment (Note 27) 5,329 24,500
At 31 December 165,170 124,070

The carrying value of investment properties is analysed based on the remaining terms of
the leases as follows:

ER L
The Group and the Bank
2011 2010
R
HK$’000 HK$’000
Held in Hong Kong
On long-term lease (over 50 years) 158,670 118,700
Held outside Hong Kong
On medium-term lease (10 — 50 years) 6,500 5,370
165,170 124,070

As at 31 December 2011, investment properties are included in the consolidated balance
sheet at valuation carried out at 31 December 2011 on the basis of their fair value by an
independent firm of chartered surveyors, Savills Valuation and Professional Services
Limited.
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

27. Properties, plant and equipment

21. P~ R YRR

TRE
The Group
AT
o st
guipment,
fixtures and
Premises fittings Total
e i e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
¥ 2011 = 1 EJ1 Il Net book value at
== fifi 1 January 2011 721,440 27,680 749,120
Lere Additions 2,818 4,842 7,660
H%‘Fé, Disposals - (1,350) (1,350)
Fiff Revaluation 240,498 - 240,498
T (Wﬁ%t 10) Depreciation for the year (Note 10) (9,727) (6,472) (16,199)
PSRRI LIS R SCE Reclassification to investment
(I3 26) properties (Note 26) (5,329) - (5,329)
s 0 A 4 Exchange difference - 505 505
K 2011 F 12 5] 31 (1 Net book value at
] 31 December 2011 949,700 25,205 974,905
#2011 # 12 5] 31 | At 31 December 2011
75 [ Cost or valuation 949,700 107,161 1,056,861
E{%ﬁﬁ%"s’/ﬁiﬁﬁ Accumulated depreciation and
impairment - (81,956) (81,956)
K201 F 12 5[ 31 1Y Net book value at
FRE A fifi 31 December 2011 949,700 25,205 974,905
#2010 F 1 E[ 1 fI 1 Net book value at
] 1 January 2010 627,550 29,913 657,463
fﬁfgl’ Additions - 4,654 4,654
g Disposals (996) 9) (1,005)
El [F‘[ Revaluation 126,399 - 126,399
F TR ( Bﬁ[% 10) Depreciation for the year (Note 10) (7,398) (6,828) (14,226)
EUFT) R = v Reclassification to investment
( ].SH'FE} 26) properties (Note 26) (24,500) - (24,500)
U155 Transfer 385 (385) -
[ T FE Exchange difference - 335 335
#2010 F 12 5] 31 |1V Net book value at
FEE NS fifi 31 December 2010 721,440 27,680 749,120
#2010 F 12 ] 31 |! At 31 December 2010
754 J i Cost or valuation 721,440 108,233 829,673
AR YR Accumulated depreciation and
impairment - (80,553) (80,553)
¥2010 F 12 F] 31 [ 1.1 Net book value at
FRE N9 fifi 31 December 2010 721,440 27,680 749,120
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27, PIY ~ R
) P
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prgp

72011 = 12 £ 31 |!
F
H i

#2010 &F 12 £] 31 [!
H
 {f

The analysis of cost or valuation of
the above assets is as follows:

At 31 December 2011
At cost
At valuation

At 31 December 2010
At cost
At valuation
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27. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

TER
The Group
Bl
B et
guipment,
fixtures and
Premises fittings Total
AR e e
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
- 107,161 107,161
949,700 - 949,700
949,700 107,161 1,056,861
- 108,233 108,233
721,440 - 721,440
721,440 108,233 829,673
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FIETeyRIfE: D

27. PIE  HeE
)

2011 & 4 F[ Iy
LSRR
r%l'
L[IEI
Fifh
SR
Ll ES R
(Fff 26)
E%ﬁ%i%?f

2011 =F 12 £ 31 F1 .V
R

#2011 F 12 5 31 |!
5
BFHTE

#2011 = 12 5| 31 [V
K

¥2010 F 1 F[ 1 I
ol

I

=
Eﬂ%l

zﬁt

I

e

1) K= R
CPRF=E E 26)

AR

NS ]

Tl iy

#2010 F 12 7| 31 |1V
A

#2010 F 12 F] 31 |!
54 55
R

#2010 & 12 5] 31 [ 1V
BRI

Net book value at
1 January 2011
Additions

Disposals

Revaluation

Depreciation for the year
Reclassification to investment

properties (Note 26)
Exchange difference

Net book value at
31 December 2011

At 31 December 2011
Cost or valuation

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

Net book value at
31 December 2011

Net book value at
1 January 2010
Additions
Disposals
Revaluation
Depreciation for the year
Reclassification to investment
properties (Note 26)
Transfer
Exchange difference

Net book value at
31 December 2010

At 31 December 2010

Cost or valuation

Accumulated depreciation and
impairment

Net book value at
31 December 2010
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Notes to the Financial Information (continued)

LS
The Ban k
[ir.H—
PP il st
qument
fixtures and
Premises fittings Total
il il i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
713,440 27,680 741,120
2,818 4,842 7,660
- (1,350) (1,350)
236,445 - 236,445
(9,474) (6,472) (15,946)
(5,329) - (5,329)
- 505 505
937,900 25,205 963,105
937,900 107,161 1,045,061
- (81,956) (81,956)
937,900 25,205 963,105
621,150 29,913 651,063
- 4,654 4,654
(996) (9) (1,005)
124,620 - 124,620
(7,219) (6,828) (14,047)
(24,500) - (24,500)
385 (385) -
- 335 335
713,440 27,680 741,120
713,440 108,233 821,673
- (80,553) (80,553)
713,440 27,680 741,120
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The analysis of cost or valuation of
the above assets is as follows:

At 31 December 2011
At cost
At valuation

At 31 December 2010
At cost
At valuation
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27. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

Notes to the Financial Information (continued)

HES
The Bank

N
B et

gquipment,

fixtures and
Premises fittings Total
il i i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
- 107,161 107,161
937,900 - 937,900
937,900 107,161 1,045,061
- 108,233 108,233
713,440 - 713,440
713,440 108,233 821,673
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Notes to the Financial Information (continued)

27. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)

The carrying value of premises is analysed based on the remaining terms of the leases as
follows:

TRE
The Group
2011 2010
e
HK$’000 HK$'000
Held in Hong Kong
On long-term lease (over 50 years) 614,100 488,840
On medium-term lease (10 — 50 years) 306,100 205,000
Held outside Hong Kong
On long-term lease (over 50 years) 27,000 24,980
On medium-term lease (10 — 50 years) 2,500 2,620
949,700 721,440
L
The Bank
2011 2010
BT HEET
HK$'000 HK$'000
Held in Hong Kong
On long-term lease (over 50 years) 614,100 488,840
On medium-term lease (10 — 50 years) 294,300 197,000
Held outside Hong Kong
On long-term lease (over 50 years) 27,000 24,980
On medium-term lease (10 — 50 years) 2,500 2,620
937,900 713,440

As at 31 December 2011, premises are included in the consolidated balance sheet at
valuation carried out at 31 December 2011 on the basis of their fair value by an
independent firm of chartered surveyors, Savills Valuation and Professional Services
Limited. The fair value represents the estimated amount at which the asset should be
exchanged on the date of valuation between a willing buyer and a willing seller in an
arm’s length transaction after proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted
knowledgeably, prudently and without compulsion.
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Notes to the Financial Information (continued)

27. Yo ~ ’ﬁ(r*;g'br%ﬁﬁ 27. Properties, plant and equipment (continued)
€ 1))

PY AV E iﬁﬁﬁ)\’ R & As a result of the above-mentioned revaluations, changes in value of the Group’s and the
B A S8LE T ik I"Fﬁ fifi ey Bank’s premises were recognised in the Group’s and the Bank’s premises revaluation
ST A B B A LS reserve respectively as follows:

T IR

F &Rl
The Group
2011 2010
A
HK$'000 HK$'000
?'\?'%‘ﬁhﬁ fﬁlfu%*ﬁ’ﬁj;'/ Increase in valuation credited to premises
Fi I"ﬁﬁﬁl’?ﬁ revaluation reserve 240,498 126,399
A=
The Bank
2011 2010
ﬁfﬁ’j‘-" 7 iﬁff’rﬁr T
HK$'000 HK%'OOO
ﬁ'%’%‘%é I,ﬁl %l’fﬁj;‘/ Increase in valuation credited to premises
£ fﬁ,ig@ revaluation reserve 236,445 124,620

F2011 F 12 5[ 31 |1 8 As at 31 December 2011, the net book value of premises that would have been included
T RS F AT R in the Group’s consolidated balance sheet had the assets been carried at cost less
EIRELRIE > 2R accumulated depreciation and impairment losses was HK$ 148,668,000 (2010:
REFaias a1 ENSNAL HK$147,610,000).

VR g K
148,668,000 7+ (2010 = :

%Erfﬁﬁj‘147,610,000 T )e
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28. Other assets

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

29.

el 1)

o

= 3
AT i)
PIcE
SRR
- 2l
-
%?,’t‘ﬁ
Dl

.
=

-

£ e R O
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+ LT
The Bank
2011 2010 2011 2010
o WO R
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000
Accounts receivable and
prepayments 382,682 550,084 382,974 550,362
29. Deposits from customers
R
The Group
2011 2010
i
HK$'000 HK$'000
Current, savings and other deposit accounts (per
consolidated balance sheet) 36,032,369 34,577,588
Analysed by:
Demand deposits and current accounts
- corporate 1,739,702 1,962,869
- individual 439,528 451,353
2,179,230 2,414,222
Savings deposits
- corporate 3,351,000 3,456,076
- individual 11,492,174 13,626,665
14,843,174 17,082,741
Time, call and notice deposits
- corporate 7,888,153 5,294,768
- individual 11,121,812 9,785,857
19,009,965 15,080,625
36,032,369 34,577,588
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Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ*f‘ﬁﬁ% (#) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

29. HETHE GB) 29. Deposits from customers (continued)
ESa0
The Bank
2011 2010
i
HK$'000 HK$’000
e~ [ W B PR (S Current, savings and other deposit accounts (per
O FIffAO balance sheet) 36,053,847 34,612,582
AR Analysed by:
AEAEEO =R Demand deposits and current accounts
- 2l - corporate 1,759,358 1,981,654
- - individual 439,528 451,353
2,198,886 2,433,007
%‘?ﬁ—r?—\ Savings deposits
- 2l - corporate 3,352,822 3,472,285
- - individual 11,492,174 13,626,665
14,844,996 17,098,950
T~ I R E Time, call and notice deposits
- 2l - corporate 7,888,153 5,294,768
- it * - individual 11,121,812 9,785,857
19,009,965 15,080,625
36,053,847 34,612,582
30. & PHB?JEBi‘?ﬁFJ 30. Other accounts and provisions
F R R4 LT
The Group and the Bank
2011 2010
o T
HK$'000 HK$'000
sl ARl Dividend payable 513,404 18,404
H Py =R Other accounts payable 719,235 977,616
HE Provisions 25,966 14,390
1,258,605 1,010,410
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31. JEHHTE

AL RS A
YEQ T8 TR F
P 1 VR RE
S T RS
Py A A A

R Rl (ENUR AT o
B (VR ) 1 IR A
ERNEE NN T

31. Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of the temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial information in
accordance with HKAS 12 “Income Taxes”.

The major components of deferred tax (assets)/ liabilities recorded in the consolidated
balance sheet, and the movements during the year are as follows:

b

K 2011 F 1 F[ 1|1

A (D
/33 (I 13)

lﬁi‘{ﬁ( RrOLSSEIN

#2011 F 12 5] 31 |!

#2010 5 1 F[ 1]
R

RIS e
Y12 3 (32 ,F?

#2010 F 1 F[ 1 !
VI

ST AURE D
/2 (it 13)

EICEIE:

H}

i

Iy

72010 =+ 12 £ 31 [!

+8E
The Group
2011
R B e §
wEE  PEE Eif R Firtesde At
Accelerated Other
tax Property Impairment temporary
depreciation revaluation Losses allowance (differences Total
WJ 7 WJ 7 i3 - St WJ 7 WJ 7 AT 7
HKJ%’OOO HK%‘OOO HKrJi’OOO HK%‘OOO HK%‘OOO HKFJQ’OOO
At 1 January 2011 6,023 92,049 (417) (6,816) (1,493) 89,346
(Credited)/ charged to
income statement
(Note 13) 552 273 51 (669) (1,910) (1,703)
Charged/ (credited) to other
Comprehensive income - 37,937 - - (834) 37,103
At 31 December 2011 6,575 130,259 (366) (7,485) (4,237) 124,746
FEE
The Group
2010
PR Hy
e PR W e e
Accelerated ) Other
tax Property Impairment temporary
depreciation _ revaluation Losses allowance (ifferences Total
HAET S WAECA MR WA W HET S
HK$000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
At 1 January 2010, as
previously reported 6,052 85,305 (385) (6,318) (6,339) 78,315
Effect of early adoption of
HKAS 12 (Amendment)
- (10,535) - - - (10,535)
At 1 January 2010, as
Restated 6,052 74,770 (385) (6,318) (6,339) 67,780
(Credited)/ charged to
income statement
(Note 13) (29) 44 (32) (498) 3,864 3,349
Charged to other
comprehensive Income - 17,235 - - 982 18,217
At 31 December 2010 6,023 92,049 (417) (6,816) (1,493) 89,346
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31. ¥EIHTE GR)

#2011 # 4 K] 1 [

ST AURE D
/| 3

I (0 2

72011 F 12 5] 31 |

#2010 5 1 F[ 1 |1
L RSIRE
HRFRAI v
BY 12 0 GRifsy
Yy
Sl

A ()
1Y
A P2 e

#2010 F 12 F] 31 [!

31. Deferred taxation (continued)

At 1 January 2011

(Credited)/ charged to
income statement

Charged / (credited) to other
comprehensive income

At 31 December 2011

At 1 January 2010, as
previously reported

Effect of early adoption of
HKAS 12 (Amendment)

At 1 January 2010, as
Restated

(Credited)/ charged to
income statement
Charged to other
comprehensive Income

At 31 December 2010

L
The Bank
2011
Jpﬁgﬁ‘ PR eli by P*i{ gg A
B = 4 TE Hikt [ ‘_‘% &l 5
Accelerated rff ﬁFJ Erﬁﬁj Other
tax Property Impairment temporary
depreciation revaluation allowance _ differences Total
i BT i AT AT
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
5,846 91,148 (6,816) (1,493) 88,685
558 274 (669) (1,910) (1,747)
- 37,298 - (834) 36,464
6,404 128,720 (7,485) (4,237) 123,402
F L
The Bank
2010
pRATES KLy
e PIEEI W v g st
Accelerated " FL ?ﬁj f ﬁOther
tax Property Impairment temporary
depreciation revaluation allowance differences Total
BRI WA R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$'000
5,872 84,679 (6,318) (6,339) 77,894
- (10,535) - - (10,535)
5,872 74,144 (6,318) (6,339) 67,359
(26) 44 (498) 3,864 3,384
- 16,960 - 982 17,942
5,846 91,148 (6,816) (1,493) 88,685
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Elvﬁ‘jyg“’“ﬁ]a[[iﬁﬁ;} (&) Notes to the Financial Information (continued)

31. PFE (@) 31. Deferred taxation (continued)
HEE AR TR R E Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset on an individual entity basis when there is a
PR RS B £ R legal right to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the deferred
o T BRI [l taxation relates to the same authority. The following amounts, determined after appropriate
EASI > PITFA TR IIE o offsetting, are shown in the consolidated balance sheet:

SR T R
[ RS S
Dk R PTIRD &
1 IR I

F R E FELE
The Group The Bank
2011 2010 2011 2010
?ﬁ}'ﬁj"" 7 ?’Effw T HT ?ﬁffw T
HK$'000 HKé’OOO HK$'000 HKé’OOO
PRI Deferred tax assets - - - -
PEGFRT [?1 Deferred tax liabilities 124,746 89,346 123,402 88,685
124,746 89,346 123,402 88,685
+ g
The Group
2011 2010
Fu HST U
HK$’000 HK$'000
PP Y (t’ﬁ;ﬁ} 12 Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than
FlEdfspt) twelve months - -
PEIHLT F‘T{ |”Eﬁ (?F,’;F_.j 12 fft Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after more than
Flegd 1) twelve months 128,984 90,840
128,984 90,840
FELE
The Bank
2011 2010
ﬁ‘fﬁ*‘ T iﬁfﬁt" T
HK%’OOO HK$'000
WL (iﬂp’;{ﬁ} 12 it Deferred tax assets to be recovered after more than
FlEEpD) twelve months - -
PRIFFIE fﬁ (‘{’F,’;{ﬁj 12 {d Deferred tax liabilities to be settled after more than
Flid ) twelve months 127,640 90,179
127,640 90,179
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31. ¥EIHTE GR)
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FHA
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Agh |
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31. Deferred taxation (continued)

The deferred tax charged for each component of other comprehensive income during the

year is as follows:

Fair value changes of available-for-sale securities

Revaluation of premises

Fair value changes of available-for-sale securities

Revaluation of premises

151

Xy

The Group
2011 2010
7 ?ﬁff’.ﬂ T
HKS{S’OOO HK$'000
(834) 982
37,937 17,235
37,103 18,217

Ea

The Bank
2011 2010
WA T ?%Uf.ﬂ T
K%’OOO HK$’'000
(834) 982
37,298 16,960
36,464 17,942
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32. 1

33.

B
3,000,000 853 7 i
HIAE 100 7% 2 PSR

TR TR
3,000,000 &= HE 1 fifi
E{»fﬁqoo PG F,ﬂﬁ&

&)

FRENF ARV E
0 2 5 9 R £ 4
@E*J‘[‘ﬁ W EHIHT 5722 % 23
g f’ g g v
Mg A -

32. Share capital

Authorised:

3,000,000 ordinary shares

of HK$100 each

Issued and fully paid:

3,000,000 ordinary shares

of HK$100 each

33. Reserves

2011 2010
WA Wi 7
HK$'000 HK$ 000
300,000 300,000
300,000 300,000

The Group’s and the Bank’s reserves and the movements therein for the current and prior
periods are presented in the consolidated statement of changes in equity and statement of

changes in equity respectively on page 22 to 23 of the financial statements.
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(outflow) before taxation

Operating profit

Depreciation

Net charge/ (reversal) of impairment allowances
Advances written off net of recoveries

Change in cash and balances with banks and
other financial institutions with original
maturity over three months

Change in placements with banks and other
financial institutions with original maturity over
three months

Change in financial assets designated at fair
value through profit or loss

Change in derivative financial instruments

Change in advances and other accounts

Change in investment in securities

Change in other assets

Change in deposits and balances from banks
and other financial institutions

Change in deposits from customers

Change in other accounts and provisions

Effect of changes in exchange rates

Operating cash inflow/ (outflow) before taxation
Cash flows from operating activities included:
— Interest received

— Interest paid
— Dividend received

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(@) Reconciliation of operating profit to operating cash

inflow/
2011 2010
o
HK$'000 HK$'000
1,131,501 730,938
16,199 14,226
4,225 (665)
(1,251) 4,865
43,575 667,138
795,840 (1,009,563)
147,577 (197,031)
(5,340) 41,109
(2,454,897) (4,213,721)
61,206 848,887
167,403 324,503
676,416 (116,121)
1,454,781 760,333
(246,804) (183,226)
(87,871) (154,831)
1,702,560 (2,483,159)
1,071,077 841,857
(189,161) (120,794)
6,030 4,775

Certain comparative figures have been revised to conform with the current year’s
presentation. The effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents has
also been separately presented on the consolidated cash flow statement.
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Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ*f‘ﬁﬁ% (#)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

34. ;ﬁ%&iﬁifﬁﬁiiﬁﬁ‘ﬁ% 34. Notes to consolidated cash flow statement (continued)
(A8)

(b) H& B%’*ﬁaﬁ_@rﬁﬁl (b) Analysis of the balances of cash and cash equivalents
st ST
2011 2010
mEE
HK$'000 HK$'000
T L W REHIE Cash and balances with banks and other
3 AP financial institutions with original maturity
H 2 B s aR within three months 6,835,208 5,961,320
FUEEHETE 3 (WEIP D Placements with banks and other financial
TEELE [ & RS institutions with original maturity within three
T B R months 2,195,646 1,338,425
FEHAEE 3 /AP Treasury bills with original maturity within three
H5 months 99,998 499,760
FUEEE 3 fWEI Certificate of deposit held with original maturity
}*?IE'EJ;I/ T within three months 179,248 -
9,310,100 7,799,505

154



4 & a4y

Chiyu Banking @eorporation Ltd.

DEHFHRUMEN A member of BOCHK Group

Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ*f‘ﬁﬁ% (#)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

35. ﬁ&?ﬁ;’lf?ﬁb?ﬁ}% 35. Contingent liabilities and commitments
PSR EREN S AR The following is a summary of the contractual amounts of each significant class of
KR S ARIRE M AR A contingent liability and commitment and the corresponding aggregate credit risk weighted
l'f ETe i A By AR A amount:
2011 2010
o g
HK$'000 HK$’000
@1 B iﬁ E}?ﬁ*‘fﬁﬁ ! Direct credit substitutes 18,340 12,760
=0 pE R IR FFFI Transaction-related contingencies 318,654 127,006
Ead H’Ejfﬁ%ﬂ/ﬁ?ﬂﬁéﬁ |:FFJ Trade-related contingencies 1,230,453 1,576,247
T %’ﬁ\’iiﬁl’l{'FﬁJﬂ 15 1 g Commitments that are unconditionally cancellable
& ?é“r%’, without prior notice 3,839,619 2,029,535
B RERE > RLEEE R Other commitments with an original maturity of
-1 = El/[}ﬂ\ - up to one year 420,039 1,796,314
-1 = = - over one year 43,116 558,559
5,870,221 6,100,421
]F:, EVE AT Credit risk weighted amount 441,303 930,295
fﬁ ETE i AR B FERLANET The credit risk weighted amount is calculated in accordance with the Banking (Capital)
(LSS (oA ) D) F Rules. The amount is dependent upon the status of the counterparty and the maturity
RIS e CE S AR ol ;I/FrFJ characteristics of each type of contract.
s ﬁlﬁﬁ%ﬁ/ﬁﬂl@ﬁ gl
%‘EJ .
7 B EIFT2011 5 12531 | The Group adopted the FIRB approach to calculate credit risk exposures as at 31
FRE R R FL YT BT December 2011, as opposed to the STC approach that was used as at 31 December
j}ﬁg}rl’ﬁ £ g’[“’;ﬁ}df\f% s e 2010. As a result of the change in the basis used, the risk weighted amounts shown

2010 12531 [IH[[4R 1| f above are not directly comparable.
X ([FRrE ) R -

jff\ﬁamfjﬁiﬁé‘ﬁjﬁﬁi[’ﬁ@ >

S| O bR T

et -
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36. Capital commitments

(#) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The Group and the Bank have the following outstanding capital commitments not provided
for in the financial statements:

EgEY
2011 2010
?ﬁfﬁ’j‘r% HBET
HK$'000 HK$'000
S e S HR Authorised and contracted for but not provided for 34 -
SHEEES B5Y Authorised but not contracted for 521 -
555 -
fl Py A ) R e The above capital commitments mainly relate to commitments to purchase computer
N *L—q Fi’ - "'ﬁfk ER equipment and software, and to renovate the Group’s premises.
Ly '/;ﬁj)%fl'gi P
JE -
37. R AR 37. Operating lease commitments

(a) fEERESE*

BURC] 8 0 A2 7

EEfas /Ut"¢'§

B £

7 T AR

L RA RN IETEr

(a) As lessee

The Group has commitments to make the following future minimum lease payments

under non-cancellable operating leases:

Land and buildings
- not later than one year

- later than one year but not later than five

years
- later than five years

2011 2010
sy SO
HK$'000 HK$'000

22,853 19,424
22,708 21,630

3,065 1,023
48,626 42,077

Certain non-cancellable operating leases included in the tables above were subject to
renegotiation and rent adjustment with reference to market rates prevailing at specified

agreed dates.
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Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ*l‘ﬁﬁg} (#)  Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

7. SEEVEFTEYE () 37. Operating lease commitments (continued)
(b) [EsRLF > (b) As lessor
P H The Group has contracted with tenants for the following future minimum lease

== Aot

Fl t SN

A

receivables under non-cancellable operating leases:

B P'F‘ U (SRS &
2011 2010
AT 7 M 7
HK$'000 HK$’000
A Land and buildings
- T - not later than one year 4,497 4,376
-1 E] FE2 5 - later than one year but not later than five
years 4,528 2,491
9,025 6,867
F R f The Group leases its investment properties under operating lease arrangements, with
i '.TQT‘}#’Ji RSN leases typically for a period from one to three years. The terms of the leases generally
PHEE 1 = 3 e require the tenants to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
%’QI,\?{’A L 2R according to the prevailing market conditions. None of the leases include contingent
DS W ﬂ@i{’,,ﬁ[ rentals.
ﬁd VA R o Frr
I‘” T 7 :yJ}‘Ig‘/ tJ
§ .
38. & 38. Litigation
P
F & REV S S The Group is currently being served a number of claims and counterclaims by various
R R R B N - independent parties. These claims and counterclaims are in relation to the normal
EN(] ?%f’é"“’:’i’fﬁm commercial activities of the Group.
+ & [P‘f{rﬁii,gﬁs
W
MRS VR 4 B B S No material provision was made against these claims and counterclaims because the
AL =N I RE T 2 directors believe that the Group has meritorious defences against the claimants or the
T AR A PR E amounts involved in these claims are not expected to be material.

T EHEHNO
R S R -

157



R A

39. SR,

(a) #HFH1

4 & a4y

Chiyu Banking @eorporation Ltd.

SHEBRMER A member of BOCHK Group

(#81) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

39. Segmental reporting

B ECH S PR OTE Z (W NT
B T MILRL I LS O~
R SR 4 mﬁ'E’Tﬁf A S5
73 FURLFLGS T [l & 1 Tt Ffll
i

[~ S50 AL B2 A fy
U 2 PRI W AT
ok ff S - E0F SR
F e 81 P 5 £ ~ 45
ik~ S 7 i
i~ E5LS 5 BIRLIR S T -
EIRE = €6 €7 R APIL T
LEREERARs Lo S
CEUREARE - BT R
ﬁ Elm’e A R 1o T
Ag)ﬁ“ﬁ, /Jl>'l,E ngg[\j{?&}"
FE ﬁ' JHNH T WY 7,1-,§¢’?@I
SRRy - Wi R B
ERRER R At

E- 4 -UCER AN mg 5% ] LS
o TR S 2 A
qu{yﬂ 4 Fj '?l' STy I
1?1 o [RIFETE Eﬁiiﬁ}ifglflfﬁljﬂﬂ'f‘
B R o

KR -
LAV R R L TRLELR &
J'ﬁ*ﬁfﬂ' ESFHE » 73 KR 8

EI B ’:E‘;}’jj‘f‘ﬁfj HORPVSF I |
\J ﬁ%?ﬁ”@?lﬁfﬁi;ﬁﬂwﬁfﬁ’ 5
oY £ L R ET ?w‘f
Eﬂj}?’@]#‘ﬁ‘?ﬁfuﬁ{. > & f;li_l l]
B F| 5 £ ﬁl’& W éJﬁﬂ[[”
EIER

(a) By class of business

The Group divides its businesses into three business segments. They are
Personal Banking, Corporate Banking and Treasury. The classification of
the Group’s operating segments is based on customer segment and
product type.

Both Personal Banking and Corporate Banking provide general banking
services including various deposit products, overdrafts, loans, trade related
products and other credit facilities, investment and insurance products, and
foreign currency and derivative products, etc. Personal Banking mainly
serves retail customers while Corporate Banking mainly deals with
corporate customers. Treasury manages funding and liquidity, and the
interest rate and foreign exchange positions of the Group in addition to
proprietary trades. “Others” refers to those items related to the Group as a
whole rather than directly attributable to the other three business
segments, including the Group’s holdings of premises, investment
properties and equity investments.

As the Group’s major revenue is derived from interest and the senior
management relies primarily on net interest revenue to assess the
performance of the segment, the total interest income and expense for all
reportable segments will be presented on a net basis.

Measurement of segment assets, liabilities, income, expenses, results and
capital expenditure is based on the Group’s accounting policies. The
segment information includes items directly attributable to a segment as
well as those that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Inter-segment
funding is charged according to the internal funds transfer pricing
mechanism of the Group, which is primarily based on market rates with the
consideration of specific features of the product.
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(a) By class of business

39. Segmental reporting (continued)

2011
fiit * 8L THES Evps €97 ey I& Iﬁfﬁ?ﬁﬁi =
Personal Corporate Treasury Others Subtotal  Eliminations  Consolidated
WO AR ro R R » A
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Net interest income/(expenses)
- external (3,120) 597,990 308,843 - 903,713 - 903,713
- inter-segment 177,431 (47,743)  (129,688) - - - -
174,311 550,247 179,155 - 903,713 - 903,713
Net fees and commission
income 168,844 99,034 226 591 268,695 - 268,695
Net trading gain/(loss)
56,950 5,785 (39,600) 4,522 27,657 - 27,657
Net gain on financial
instruments designated at fair
value through profit or loss - - 3,108 - 3,108 - 3,108
Net gain on disposal of
available-for-sale securities _ - _ 35,641 35,641 - 35,641
Other operating income - 622 - 32,897 33,519 (21,731) 11,788
Net operating income before
impairment allowances 400,105 655,688 142,889 73,651 1,272,333 (21,731) 1,250,602
Net charge of impairment
allowances (1,044) (3,187) - - (4,231) - (4,231)
Net operating income 399,061 652,501 142,889 73,651 1,268,102 (21,731) 1,246,371
Operating expenses (216,207) (78,726) (6,771) 165,103 (136,601) 21,731 (114,870)
Operating profit 182,854 573,775 136,118 238,754 1,131,501 - 1,131,501
Net gain from fair value
adjustments on investment
properties - - - 35,771 35,771 - 35,771
Net loss from disposal of
properties, plant and
equipment - (1,343) - - (1,343) - (1,343)
Profit before taxation 182,854 572,432 136,118 274,525 1,165,929 - 1,165,929
Assets
Segment assets 7,627,136 19,612,438 15,743,965 1,128,669 44,112,208 - 44,112,208
Liabilities
Segment liabilities 28,162,758 8,539,710 1,303,695 803,389 38,809,552 - 38,809,552
Other information
Additions of properties, plant
and equipment - 1,296 - 6,364 7,660 - 7,660
Depreciation 3,375 2,639 136 10,049 16,199 - 16,199
Amortisation of securities - - 2,946 - 2,946 - 2,946
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39. Segmental reporting (continued)

(a) By class of business (continued)

2010
5 T s ¢ H TRt AliE=el wE
Personal Corporate Treasury Others Subtotal Eliminations ~ Consolidated
PR HEr R PR W 7 P HEr
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
Net interest income/(expenses)
- external 50,070 438,499 255,425 - 743,994 - 743,994
- inter-segment 135,783 (54,401) (81,382) - - - i
185,853 384,098 174,043 - 743,994 - 743,994
Net fees and commission
income/(expenses) 184,422 83,570 (2,565) 503 265,930 - 265,930
Net trading gain/(loss)
46,794 7,845 (57,862) (7,370) (10,593) - (10,593)
Net gain on financial instruments
designated at fair value
through profit or loss - - 20,471 - 20,471 - 20,471
Other operating income - 514 - 32,129 32,643 (23,340) 9,303
Net operating income before
impairment allowances 417,069 476,027 134,087 25,262 1,052,445 (23,340) 1,029,105
Net reversal of impairment
allowances 2,005 (1,398) - - 607 - 607
Net operating income 419,074 474,629 134,087 25,262 1,053,052 (23,340) 1,029,712
Operating expenses (209,270) (68,642) (6,650) (37,552) (322,114) 23,340 (298,774)
Operating profit/(loss) 209,804 405,987 127,437 (12,290) 730,938 - 730,938
Net gain from fair value
adjustments on investment
properties - - - 20,770 20,770 - 20,770
Net gain from disposal of
properties, plant and
equipment - - - 249 249 - 249
Profit before taxation 209,804 405,987 127,437 8,729 751,957 - 751,957
Assets
Segment assets 7,461,455 17,780,595 14,962,027 862,547 41,066,624 - 41,066,624
Liabilities
Segment liabilities 28,258,160 7,362,147 487,541 228,799 36,336,647 - 36,336,647
Other information
Additions of properties, plant
and equipment - 4,063 - 591 4,654 - 4,654
Depreciation 3,559 2,425 140 8,102 14,226 - 14,226
Amortisation of securities - - 10,246 - 10,246 - 10,246

160



30. HHBE (WD)

& A Ay
Chiyu Banking @eorporation Ltd.

SHEBRMER A member of BOCHK Group

Eﬁ%ﬁﬁ*f‘ﬁﬁ% (#) Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

(b) HFETRIT ] 5T

PITNav RN R
B A

40. A BRI TR

A 2 il (5 (157 161B
[ (SR E 1 R
FHELDY ek

BEEE i R E R B
=

5058 P L R B R
s

39. Segmental reporting (continued)

(b) By geographical area

The following information is presented based on the principle places of operations:

Hong Kong
Mainland China

Total

Hong Kong
Mainland China

Total

2011 2010
R HLV TR .
P il i el
WA 1571 T &7l
Net operating Net operating )
Income before Profit Income before Profit
impairment before impairment before
allowance taxation allowance taxation
fﬁﬁﬁﬁ" Fu Fu 3{{.%@,5&!’ T HAET L
HK$'000 HKSIS’OOO HK$’000 HK$’000
1,022,011 980,112 883,426 644,206
228,591 185,817 145,679 107,751
1,250,602 1,165,929 1,029,105 751,957

2011 2010
WHE RpTE E T R T 4
Non-current Non-current
Total assets assets Total assets assets
iEEJFPU' Fu Fu iﬁffrﬁ" T HMET S
HK$'000 HK%’OOO HKJS’OOO HK$’000
37,651,467 1,129,726 35,340,830 860,777
6,460,741 10,379 5,725,794 12,481
44,112,208 1,140,105 41,066,624 873,258

. Loans to directors and officers

Particulars of advances made to directors and officers of the Bank pursuant to section
161B of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance are as follows:

Aggregate amount of relevant transactions
outstanding at year end

Maximum aggregate amount of relevant

transactions outstanding during the year

161
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i
HK$'000 HK$'000
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

41. Significant related party transactions

The Group is subject to the control of the State Council of the PRC Government
through China Investment Corporation (“CIC”), its wholly-owned subsidiary
Central Huijin Investment Ltd. (“Central Huijin”), and BOC in which Central Huijin
has controlling equity interests.

(a) Transactions with the parent companies and the other companies
controlled by the parent companies

General information of the parent companies

The Group’s immediate holding company is BOCHK, which is in turn
controlled by BOC.

Central Huijin is the controlling entity of BOC, and it is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of CIC which is a wholly state-owned company engaging in foreign
currency investment and management.

Central Huijin has controlling equity interests in certain other entities in the
PRC.

The Group enters into banking transactions with these entites in the normal
course of business, which include loans, investment securities and money
market transactions.

(b) Transactions with government authorities, agencies, affiliates and
other state controlled entities

The Group is subject to the control of the State Council of the PRC
Government through CIC and Central Huijin, which also directly and indirectly
controls a significant number of entities through its government authorities,
agencies, affiliates and other state controlled entities. The Group enters into
banking transactions with government authorities, agencies, affiliates and
other state controlled entities in the normal course of business and
commercial terms.

These transactions may include, but are not limited to, the following:

- lending, provision of credits and guarantees, and deposit taking;

- inter-bank balance taking and placing;

- sales, purchase, underwriting and redemption of bonds issued by other
state controlled entities;

- rendering of foreign exchange, remittance and investment related services;

- provision of fiduciary activities; and
- purchase of utilities, transport, telecommunication and postage services.
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Notes to Financial Information (continued)

41. Significant related party transactions (continued)

(c) Summary of transactions entered into during the ordinary course
of business with other related parties

The aggregate income and expenses arising from related party transactions
with other related parties of the Group are summarised as follows:

2011 2010
A W
HK$'000 HK$°000
Income statement items:
Interest expense (25,205) (5,888)
Administrative services fees
paid/ payable (3,678) (5,062)
Balance sheet items:
Deposits from customers (1,895,959) (1,301,893)
Off-Balance sheet items:
Contingent liabilities and
commitments (171,297) (171,410)

(d) Key management personnel

Key management are those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Group, directly or
indirectly, including directors and senior management. The Group accepts
deposits from and grants loans and credit facilities to key management
personnel in the ordinary course of business. During both the current and
prior years, no material transaction was conducted with key management
personnel of the Bank, its holding companies and parties related to them.

The key management compensation for the year ended 31 December 2011
and 2010 is detailed as follows:

2011 2010
%fﬁf‘—r Fu HMBET T
HK$'000 HK$’'000
Salaries and other short-term employee
benefits 9,967 6,717
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42. é‘jﬁﬁ{zﬂfﬁ 42. Currency concentrations

AT B
FURTE bR (T
CENEEA
R TR TR
B € Bt ) s
i T

The following is a summary of the major foreign currency exposures arising from trading,
non-trading and structural positions and is prepared with reference to the Completion
Instructions for the prudential return “Foreign Currency Position of an Authorized
Institution” issued by the HKMA.

2011
A ST
Equivalent in thousand of HK$

E SRR T P R R S i

New Others otal

us Swiss Canadian Australian  Zealand foreign foreign

Dollars Francs Dollars Dollars Dollars Renminbicurrencies currencies

FETevE Spot assets 12,391,405 1,819 17,245 1,203,083 445298 7,363,464 764,245 22,186,559

e Al [‘E‘J Spot liabilities (5,414,367)  (55,289)  (191,369) (1,216,010)  (442,316) (7,295554)  (669,891) (15,284,796)

)Eﬁ*ﬂ;'ﬁ ' Forward purchases 2,209,947 72,334 175,031 59,065 2,398 2,403,584 356,326 5,278,685

pos Sl Forward sales (9,186,081)  (18,332) (380)  (42,978) (5,068) (2,422,967)  (450,537) (12,126,343)

AR Net long position 904 532 527 3,160 312 48,527 143 54,105

i f} s Net structural position 548,676 548,676

2010
2
Equivalent in thousand of HK$

I R e nF W FI ‘?Mﬁ‘ ] f”ﬂw"ﬁ' Wﬁﬁ%ﬁ

Others Total

us Canadian Australian Japanese foreign foreign

Dollars Euro Dollars Dollars Yen Renminbi currencies currencies

ek Spot assets 16,582,777 179,090 17,319 1,102,524 28,147 5,019,995 1,011,690 23,941,542

e F’JFF‘? Spot liabilities (7,321,683)  (413,790)  (178,356) (1,180,473)  (80,265) (4,949,713)  (991,055) (15,115,335)

R Forward purchases 3574210 288938 161,105 88,131 550,905 2,100,303 122467 6,895,059

R Forward sales (12,572,289)  (55,214) (2,336) (5,936)  (500,466) (2,102,521)  (142,721) (15,381,483)
=/ (qimsE Net long/ (short)

position 263,015 (976) (2,268) 4,246 (1,679) 77,064 381 339,783

i) ﬁﬂgﬁq;g Net structural position - - - - 440528 - 440528
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43, E%@W?ﬂ@ 43. Cross-border claims
5'%[59’ AR BT B0 9t The information on cross-border claims discloses exposures to foreign counterparties on
L phE= U EAS R D Py which the ultimate risk lies, and is derived according to the location of the counterparties after
i f 'ﬂ » Eﬂl ﬁfﬂ' ph3= taking into account any transfer of risk. In general, such transfer of risk takes place if the
“r [Es *‘1 o N o (R o claims are guaranteed by a party in a country, which is different from that of the counterparty,
ze - A YL ”?”%’“ or if the claims are on an overseas branch of a bank whose head office is located in another
?%I'ﬁ' * 5’?%@?'%’?@5‘“ - country. Only regions constituting 10% or more of the aggregate cross-border claims are
TR I?ﬁ'vﬁ”;i Sl ’V?? analysed by geographical areas and disclosed as follows:
G535 (e A
wh - B g fFF“E?’”;[é&'
(R e % [
(il 10%g5 1) -V 89k
[Esj Mo PLgggi™
#= DA ey R
Public sector
Banks entities Others Total
BT T i TR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
#2011 & 12 £] 31 [ At 31 December 2011
RGN cu?,mﬁ» Asia, other than
Hong Kong
- I - Mainland China 9,891,000 28,000 3,890,000 13,809,000
- Hiy - Others 2,576,000 - 846,000 3,422,000
At Total 12,467,000 28,000 4,736,000 17,231,000
#l= T %’Fﬁ iy A
Public sector
Banks entities Others Total
%fﬁu’ Fu ?ﬁ»ﬁ.’j‘w" T ;‘%Wéju’ Fu HMEET
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
#2010 F 12 5| 31 |! At 31 December 2010
RGN cu? 0 f' Asia, other than
Hong Kong
- B Y - Mainland China 8,301,000 497,000 4,197,000 12,995,000
- H - Others 2,826,000 - 668,000 3,494,000
AAFF Total 11,127,000 497,000 4,865,000 16,489,000

165



4 & a4y

Chiyu Banking @eorporation Ltd.

SHEBRMER A member of BOCHK Group

PRI (D

44, FEALS U i By R
Ly

JIEHJ## I BT 7Y
L T T O S
uﬁf%&%ﬁ”[ J|i8]
74_—?;5#4— jéﬂzﬁim ]
P [ A g

Pl | ﬁg
[ILES«'i?i fil

P tg e

4 kH ji/\i?l

* f’uji'[?.%iﬁ F[fJH [E;;I[ljj%rﬁz FEAE

il
iy %wﬁ
MBSRS 1

’?if‘

PR OB B
b

F BT ATOELEC E
#’mTy PR P A
FroT I

44. Non-bank Mainland China exposures

Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

Non-bank counterparties are identified in accordance with the definitions set out in the
prudential return “Quarterly Analysis of Loans and Advances and Provisions” issued by the
HKMA. Exposures in Mainland China arising from non-bank counterparties are

summarised as follows:

Mainland China entities

Companies and individuals
outside Mainland China where
the credit is granted for use in
Mainland China

Other non-bank Mainland China
exposures

Mainland China entities

Companies and individuals
outside Mainland China where
the credit is granted for use in
Mainland China

Other non-bank Mainland China
exposures

2011

ALIF Ui wu@; :

Ri&EE Hiepdt HEREE VR
Indiwdually
On-balance  Off-balance assessed
sheet sheet Total impairment
exposure exposure exposure _ allowances
Wlow  mloo o edoos
H 45’000 H 45’000 H é’OOO H é’OOO
4,849,308 779,259 5,628,567 -
2,410,250 895,265 3,305,515 -
1,290,371 47,716 1,338,087 -
8,549,929 1,722,240 10,272,169 -

2010
A |E‘J Y Fgﬁ

A Eili IR i
B g RIEEE RREE Vi
Individually
On-balance Off-balance assessed
sheet sheet Total impairment
exposure exposure exposure allowances
?ﬁff’.ﬂ T %WPU T &Uf’?u’ T &Uf’?u’ F
HK$’000 HK% ‘000 HK$'000 HK$’000
4,839,352 672,394 5,511,746 -
2,252,552 1,305,906 3,558,458 2,112
983,563 245,841 1,229,404 -
8,075,467 2,224,141 10,299,608 2,112

During the year, the basis of the above analyses has been refined and the comparative
amounts have been reclassified accordingly.
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45,

46.

47.
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45,

46.

47.

Ultimate holding company

The Group is subject to the control of the State Council of the PRC Government through
CIC, its wholly-owned subsidiary Central Huijin, and BOC in which Central Huijin has
controlling equity interests.

Comparative amounts

Certain comparative amounts have been reclassified to conform with the current year’s
presentation.

Approval of financial statements

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors
on 20 March 2012.

167



4 & a4y

SHEBRMER A member of BOCHK Group

Chiyu Banking @eorporation Ltd.

3{;

=

e e e T

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

I'F;F'J . m%ug&{‘e@ﬂs@ﬁqﬁgwﬁ 1. Capital charge for credit, market and operational risks
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iﬁrl_jj—/:ﬂ AFLREE > IR e
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R LT R R R
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The bases of regulatory capital calculation for credit risk, market risk and
operational risk are described in Note 4.4 to the Financial Statements in this
Annual Report.

As a result of the change in the bases of regulatory capital calculation, the
amounts shown below are not directly comparable.

The financial information contained in these supplementary notes has been
prepared on a combined basis that comprises the positions of Bank’s local
offices and overseas branches specified by the HKMA for its regulatory purposes
and in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules. Subsidiaries that are not
included in the consolidation for regulatory purposes in respect of the calculation
of capital adequacy ratios are denoted in Note 25 to the Financial Statements in
this Annual Report. Investment costs in such subsidiaries are deducted from the
capital base.

The table below summarises the capital requirements and capital charge
calculated by applying 8% on the risk-weighted amounts, computed on the same
combined basis for credit, market, and operational risks.

2011 2010

i%%fl”é&r T

H}HS’OOO HK$’000

Credit risk 1,503,733 1,931,470
Market risk 48,762 42,937
Operational risk 156,651 152,668
1,709,146 2,127,075

For detail of capital management and capital adequacy ratio of the Bank, please
refer to Note 4.4 to the Financial Statements in this Annual Report.
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(continued)

Capital requirements for credit risk

The table below shows the capital requirements for credit risk for each class
and subclass of exposures as specified in the Banking (Capital) Rules.

Capital required for exposures under the
IRB approach
Corporate
Specialised lending under supervisory
slotting criteria approach
- Project finance
Small-and-medium sized corporate
Other corporates
Bank
Banks
Securities firms
Retail
Residential mortgages
- Individuals
- Property-holding shell companies
Qualifying revolving retail
Small business retail
Other retail to individuals
Others
Cash items
Other items
Securitization

Total capital requirements for exposures
under the IRB approach

Capital required for exposures under the
standardised (credit risk) approach
On-balance sheet exposures
Sovereign
Public sector entity
Bank
Securities firm
Corporate
Regulatory retail
Residential mortgage loans
Other exposures which are not past due
Past due exposures

Off-balance sheet exposures
Off-balance sheet exposures other than
OTC derivative transactions or credit
derivative contracts
OTC derivative transactions
Securitization

Total capital requirements for exposures
under the standardised (credit risk)
approach

Total capital requirements for credit risk
exposures

2011 2010
B3 A
HK$'000 HK$'000
243,459 -
636,111 -
382,920 -
311 -

9,930 -
3,439 -
3,313 -
68,555 -
98,325 -
1,446,363 -
443 1,265

- 1,238

453 387,545

- 365

38,481 989,458
6,224 110,782

576 200,217

6,859 155,433

- 792

3,702 74,424
632 9,951
57,370 1,931,470
1,503,733 1,931,470
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(continued)

[‘J?‘BFW\ FEFERET FI\J[F[E‘HE*[SQ 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach

3.1 [ RS A R 515

ﬁﬁng LAY A d LTSI A
L et A P 3T ”F gLy
*rﬁri’ﬁFéF'F T 1f €7 PO v
E%FIHJJ?}(?‘Y% IH*{‘ET” ’tj' il = AT ﬂ‘i ™
N I[fr ALY
w***““ﬁoéw@wﬂirh%
o
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3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components

The Bank adopts the foundation internal ratings-based approach
(“FIRB”) to calculate the regulatory capital requirements for most of the
corporate and bank exposures, and adopts the supervisory slotting
criteria approach to project finance exposures under "specialised
lending". The Bank adopts retail IRB approach for retail exposures to
individuals and small business. The following is the table showing the
different capital calculation approaches to each asset class.

Classes and sub-classes of exposures by capital calculation approach.

FRTE -
R ¥ VR R 5
Asset class Exposure sub-class Capital calculation approach
I UlreY) | B3 SR FE

Corporate exposures

B s IR EIUEJ MM ERRCE E
Specialised lending under supervisory slotting
criteria approach (project finance)

Supervisory Slotting Criteria Approach

IR FERE [l A Rl B
Small-and-medium sized corporate FIRB Approach
LN BT [T RLERT TE
Other corporate FIRB Approach
BB R R B FE(fE " T R
Sovereign exposures Sovereigns Standardised (credit risk) Approach

%‘ﬁ‘g‘ﬂ?ﬁ“ﬁ% o <‘<_FH isb

Sovereign forelgn publlc sector entities

B L
Multilateral development banks

AL i P

Bank exposures

Pl
Banks

T

R
FIRB Approach

&5
Securities firms

LR AR
FIRB Approach

NG RIS YT R I )
Public sector entltles (excludlng sovereign
foreign public sectors entities)

LS (57 e b )7t ik
Standardised (credit risk) Approach

T e e

Retail exposures

RIS

Residential mortgages to individuals

IR L YER N

Reta|I IR Approach

g RTIEE 2 s
Residential mortgages to property-holding shell
companies

(e IR
&uallelng revolvmg retail

%% N 4

Small business retail

e T T
Other retail Eo individuals

AR e i LS (57 e b )7t gk
Equity exposures Standardised (credit risk) Approach
P AR R b F N
Other exposures Cash items Specific Risk-weight Approach
PR
Other items
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3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach

(continues)

3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)
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(A) The structure of internal rating systems and the relationship

between internal ratings and external ratings

The internal rating system is a two dimensional rating system that
provides separate assessment of borrower and transaction
characteristics. For corporate and bank portfolios, the obligor rating
reflects exclusively the risk of borrower default and the facility rating
reflects transaction specific factors that affect the loss severity in the
case of borrower default. Expected Losses are also calculated in the
retail IRB portfolios to reflect the risk of loss in credit decisions.

All the corporate and bank borrowers are assigned into eight broad
obligor ratings including seven grades for non-default obligors with
sub-divisions into 26 minor credit grades and one grade for defaulted
obligors. All credit transactions for corporates and banks are assigned
into 21 facility grades. In the supervisory slotting criteria approach for
the project finance exposures, there are four grades for non-defaulted
borrowers and one for defaulted borrowers in accordance with the
HKMA guidance.

The Bank uses internal rating system to assess the borrower's
likelihood of default for all IRB portfolios. Probability of default (“PD”) is
measured to reflect the risk of borrower default over a one-year period.
A borrower rating means a category of credit-worthiness to which
borrowers are assigned on the basis of a specified and distinct set of
rating criteria, from which estimates of PD are derived.

In the process of obligor rating assignment, variables of latest financial
performance, management quality, industry risks and group connection
of each obligor are assessed as critical factors to predict a borrower's
ability and willingness to meet with the contractually obligations under
different economic conditions. The internal rating tools employ
statistical techniques and analytical rating assignments, which are
applied in the final rating assignment.

The Bank developed statistical models to provide own estimated PD,
loss given default (“LGD”) and exposure at default (“EAD”) for
exposures arising from residential mortgages to both individuals and
property-holding shell companies, qualifying revolving retail exposures
and other retail exposures to individuals and small business retail
exposures. The PD reflects the risk of borrower default over a one-year
period, while the EAD and LGD estimates reflect the loss severity of its
credit exposures. Each of retail exposures is pooled by nature of
obligors, facility types, collateral types and delinquency status. This
grouping process provides the basis of accurate and consistent
estimation for PD, LGD and EAD at the pool level.
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I Jﬁ?ﬁ;;&ﬁl;@ﬁ;ﬁ;i F“Jlrlwﬁf 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach
y (continues)

31 [‘jﬁfi °&f§ﬂ"b@“‘ﬁﬁ»{5'5§?‘ﬂn &) 3.1 Theinternal rating systems and risk components (continued)
(A) [ ;&qfa;ﬁﬁiﬁb[ ]?‘Bﬁliﬁﬁﬁfﬁr (A) The structure of internal rating systems and the relationship
'" P];g%gj] (%) between internal ratings and external ratings (continued)
fﬂ “&Hﬁlﬁ'ﬁ G g A1 7fff For each internal rating, the equivalent external rating in terms of
’Bfrf’*f&i/ﬂ default risk is as below.

FITFEEER [Fees SR B
Interna credit Standard & Poor’s
grades Definition of internal ratings equivalent

1 1A fE55 ~ 25 1A > 2A ~ 2B F1 2C S Ay [Rpvaaka el [ o AAA
2A (755 * MRl 2T AA+
2B The obligors in graJes 1, 2A, 2B and 2C have extremely low default risk. AA
2C The obligor's capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation is extremely AA-

strong.

3 3A s - Z5k 3A 0 3B A1 3C & ﬁ,ﬂﬁfﬁ M o (B TR R RSS A I PR A A+
3B REPHE YA > TR O EORET E A
3C The obligors in grades 3A, 3B and 3C have low default risk but are somewhat A-

susceptible to the adverse effects of changes in circumstances and economic
conditions.

However, the obligor's capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation is
very strong.

4 4A i © 2 AA > 4B 1 AC ke A IR [Rfvsaa e e 5 S 0F ) RLSWR - (T RS BBB+
AB [P BRI Tt s (2= - BBB
4C The obligors in grades 4A, 4B and 4C have relatively low default risk and are currently BBB-

under adequate protection.
However, adverse economic conditions or changing circumstances are likely to lead to
a weakened capacity of the obligor to meet its financial commitment on the obligation.

5 5A iﬁﬁ‘ﬁ 25K 5A > 5B > 5C > 5D » 5E F{I 5F S [ 17 @A [ o AHIEFE [’”ﬁ%%‘-;‘»%’:’s’lﬁj[Jiﬁﬂfk BB+
5B i PSR EER, - BB+
5C Iﬂa BES - fET ’ﬁéj@'lﬁﬁﬂ\ FIEHS ~ PS5 ~ RS SYATI - T = iosy © el BB
5D Saia [_JJ i S BB
5E The obligors in grades 5A, 5B, 5C, 5D, 5E and 5F have medium default risk which are BB-
5F less vulnerable to nonpayment than other speculative obligors. BB-

However, it faces major ongoing uncertainties or exposure to adverse business,
financial, or economic conditions which could lead to the obligor's inadequate capacity
to meet its financial commitment on the obligation.

6 6A [ﬁ‘ﬁ}, M E5E BA GB 6C > 6D - 6E > 6F #1 6G F- é? S g o N pA R RGR - B+
6B (s EV I g e A S TR AR - AT H@r}ﬁﬁpp‘ﬂ“ﬁ B+
6C ook Jg‘/j rﬁgrﬁﬁ ?jiﬂ‘?[ = B
6D The obligors in grades 6A, 6B, 6C, 6D, 6E, 6F, and 6G have high default risk and are B
6E vulnerable to nonpayment. B-
6F The obligors currently have the capacity to meet its financial commitment on the B-
6G obligation but adverse business, financial, or economic conditions will very likely B-
impair the obligor's capacity or willingness to meet its financial commitment on the
obligation.
7 7A |§p*<* 5K 7A - 7B & 7C F @ﬁ@ e = E ﬁlfi LR AR Eﬁ'n e CCC
7B Wi f mﬁ;ﬁ I* o TVHFRL N EE 05 E!’f%p%:ﬁﬂ»l#?' - Je'xﬁﬁ"ﬂ#gﬁi cc
7C \%”ﬁ%[ ) H[E N S C

The obligors in grades 7A, 7B and 7C have very high default risk and are currently
quite vulnerable to nonpayment. The obligors’ ability to meet their financial
commitment and obligation are dependent upon favorable business, financial, or
economic conditions

In the event of adverse business, financial, or economic conditions, these obligors are
not likely to have the capacity to meet its financial commitment on the obligation.

8 8 [ﬁﬁ‘;ﬁ b ETE 8 A REREAY © D
Obligors rated “8” are in payment default.
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(continued)

3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach
(continues)

3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)

(B) Use of internal estimates

The estimates of risk components derived from applying the IRB
approach are not only used in the calculation of regulatory capital, but
also in many other areas including credit approval, credit monitoring,
reporting and analysis of credit risk information, etc.

(C) Process of managing and recognising credit risk mitigation

For those collaterals recognised under capital management, the Bank
has well-defined policies and procedures for collateral valuation and
management which are compliant with the operational requirements for
recognised collateral for credit risk mitigation stated in the Banking
(Capital) Rules.

For credit exposures adopting FIRB approach for capital calculation
purpose, the recognised eligible guarantees include the guarantees
provided by banks and securities firms with a lower risk weights than
the counterparty, and corporate with internal credit ratings which is
equivalent to external credit rating A- or above. The Bank takes into
account the credit risk mitigation effect of recognised collaterals
through its determination of the net credit exposures and the effective
LGD.

For retail IRB approach, the effect of the credit risk mitigation is
incorporated into the internal risk parameters of PD or LGD depending
on the nature of the guarantees and collaterals for calculating the risk
exposures.

The credit and market risk concentrations within the credit risk
mitigation (recognised collateral and guarantees for capital calculation)
used by the Bank are under a low level.

Up to the date of report, the Bank has not used any recognised credit
derivative contracts, on- or off-balance sheet recognised netting for
credit risk mitigation yet.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information
(continued)

3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach
(continues)

3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)

(D) The control mechanisms used for internal rating systems

The Bank has established a comprehensive mechanism to ensure
the integrity, accuracy and consistency of the rating systems
including the estimation processes for the risk components. All of
IRB risk measurement models are approved by the RC.

To achieve reasonably accurate risk ratings assignment, the Bank
has established the rating approval process has been established
which is independent from the sales and marketing units. Since the
internal ratings is the one of the key inputs to the making of credit
decisions, a control mechanism is in place to ensure the integrity,
accuracy and consistency of the rating assignment. For the
wholesale (corporate and banks) portfolio, internal ratings are
normally approved by credit officers who are functionally separated
from sales and marketing units.

The rating assignment and risk quantification process of retail
portfolio is highly automated. As an integral part of the daily credit
assessment process, the accuracy and completeness of the data
input for automatic rating assignment is verified by units independent
from business development function.

The performance of internal rating system is under ongoing periodic
monitoring. The senior management periodically reviews the
performance and predictive ability of the internal rating system. The
effectiveness of the internal rating system and processes are
reviewed by independent control functions (including model
maintenance unit and validation units) and internal audit. The results
of the review are reported to the Board and senior management
regularly.

A model validation unit which is independent from the model
development unit and rating assignment units, conducts periodic
model validations based on both qualitative and quantitative
analysis. Model acceptance standards are established to ensure
the discriminatory power, accuracy and stability of the rating
systems. Reviews of rating models are triggered if the performance
of a model deteriorates materially against predetermined tolerant
limits.

IR > AR BRSE SR o e

The model performance tracking and quantitative model validation conduct by BOCHK in group level. Except for the parts that validated by BOCHK,
the Bank conducts periodic model validations based on qualitative analysis according to the model framework, corporate governance and oversight,
and use test.
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I ﬂ?ﬁaﬁiﬁﬁ§§f§ﬁ;“kﬁuwlaﬁﬁm? 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach
oy (continues)

31 [‘jﬁfi °&f§ﬂ"b@“‘ﬁﬁ»{5'5§?‘ﬂn (78) 3.1 The internal rating systems and risk components (continued)

(D) [‘jﬁﬁ?—“ﬁéﬁﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁﬂ(@) (D) The control mechanisms used for internal rating systems
(continued)

ﬂ%{[ T ET [su%f”;r—“ﬁ?j;‘f LS T [y The obligor rating assignment is reviewed at least annually as required

&= ,4@ o T f ﬁiﬁ gg& f’ _.q;li{rpj[ﬂrF by_the cr_edit _risk_ policy. When credit events oceur to the ot_)lig_or,
P ;r@%{[ £y Mﬁr i A ratlr\g review is triggered promptly in accordance with the credit risk
ﬁ«gglﬁg policy.

i%\u’?%ﬁ VR RS AFEE T Rating override process is designed to allow the credit analyst to
;’}?P?g TR IH?EJ [#f\ SEIE T I &l include any other relevant credit information that has not already been
il TJ[ ZEL o qrp@kJ ﬁh Iﬁ ’Fl HlIET captured in the rating process. The overrides are unlimited in terms of

= g, downgrades, for reasons of conservatism and prudential consideration.
b EI B ; .
P PEEE n R T%ﬂ ! F ; Overrides to better grades (upgrades) are, however, more confined. All
“IlFi”“'T Rl SR (s ey R g et . e . ¥ :
AN ﬁl‘,& Hﬁ o H upgrades will be limited to a maximum of two sub-grades with a very
]Fﬁj [E” ”gﬁﬂ f b % 7 %IHZ| narrowly pre-defined list of appropriate reasons. All overrides need to
-

st 58 EAE F’Hfﬂ] T g be signed off by a higher level of credit approval authority. The internal
JLE V3 %‘E' '(%Fff VPt e HTE #Z?”” ”y rating policy sets a maximum limit of 10% of rating cases for overrides.

HEI [ AR Ié‘\?ﬁ}l—»@h{}g‘@ The use of overrides and override reasons are analysed as part of
%’i . ﬁ[lj R ?‘éfr”l’ﬁiﬁ\ rating system performance review.

@%ST%ﬁiwm%o FuHEEIpOE
HIFHERVRREY ) ﬁ[‘ptﬁq&?‘gﬁﬁj@

fro #5 -

(E) ?ﬁﬁ!{%ﬁﬁ"&iﬁt (E) Approach for determining provisions
Tk fif1 ¥ |f§ HEFEEEE ;hﬂr' — g £ The approach in determining provisions is in line with the Group’s
P% JAUENEE UWM %mitz 133@'5{1 accounting policies. For details, please refer to Note 2.13 “Impairment
TYIE R o of financial assets” to the Financial Statements in this Annual Report.
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Chiyu Banking @eorporation Ltd.

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information
(continued)

3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach
(continues)

3.2 Exposures by IRB calculation approach

The table below shows the Bank's exposures other than securitisation
exposures (including the EAD of on-balance sheet exposures and
off-balance sheet exposures) by each IRB calculation approach:

MP%Wﬁﬁ?w>
2011
2 ﬁ FRLH @
Py BT Ee arm&ﬁi 5 LR
“f%ﬁi? IR ﬁg.ﬁ? REEFHEE AR e
Supervisory
Foundation Slotting Retail Specific
IRB Criteria IRB Risk-weight Total
Approach Approach Approach Approach exposures
HAET R HET R WS T R
HI&’OOO IJ 000 HI&’OOO HI&’OOO HI&’OOO
=4 Corporate 17,075,986 - - - 17,075,986
L= Bank 17,333,255 - - - 17,333,255
Ermaaad Securities firms 6,714 - - - 6,714
FE Retail
[ a2 Residential
SHIEE mortgages to
ng EVE individuals and
property-holding
shell companies - - 3,633,629 - 3,633,629
F”,?W{Er’g}%i Qualifying revolving
FE retail exposures - - 674 - 674
*l i*'!F[ﬁ M Other retail
él ""%f% exposures to
e individuals and
small business
retail exposures - - 3,332,475 - 3,332,475
iy Others - - - 1,320,798 1,320,798
AEF Total 34,415,955 - 6,966,778 1,320,798 42,703,531
3.3 Exposures subject to supervisory estimates under the IRB

3.3 I AL I BT
@*Bﬁﬁ%
PUSTESE i) SR I e
FIREAR | Fnﬂ.g %Jig,ﬁf;ﬁﬁ AT

nﬁmw 17 Eﬁlﬁ*ﬁﬂ*ﬂ%
AL e i i

¥

oy

approach

By definition, amounts reported under the supervisory slotting criteria
approach continue to be subject to supervisory estimates. The table
below shows the total EAD of the Bank's exposures subject to
supervisory estimates under the use of IRB approach.

2011

I£ 000

Corporate 17,075,986
Bank 17,339,969
Others 1,320,798
35,736,753
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(continued)

3T [[SFJ;&gL;@ﬁgﬂgt‘k E\Jlf' £ 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach
y (continues)

4 DR T 5! U PR IR AR 3.4 Exposures by credit risk mitigation used
(A) @%p'ﬁ#%ﬂ[&ﬁ.ﬁ%fgﬂﬁjﬁ% (A) Exposures covered by recognised collateral
A A SR GEE g ) The table below shows the Bank's exposures (after the effect of any
BT fospd < [ el i s e }‘{TPVJP:;&[EE‘,F[LJ on-balance sheet or off-balance sheet recognised netting) which are
R (SIE a% F”ﬁ F o covered by recognised collateral after the application of haircuts
- e T =] — EJ

required under the Banking (Capital) Rules. These exposures
exclude OTC derivative transactions and repo-style transactions.

191 R S A ) 1
BURR B T BRI R T S B

E\éﬂf/?“‘ﬂi 7

2011
I£ 000
fie=4 Corporate 6,479,153
#l= Bank 27,089
iy Others -
6,506,242

(B) “&?Zﬁ‘%ﬁfﬁwﬁ:ﬁfﬂﬂ@ﬁ% (B) Exposures covered by recognised guarantees
R if{iﬁ}%ﬁ%[ (L (Y4 ) The table below shows the Bank's exposures (after the effect of any
FI) fosp /et Rk s §JF' PR INEHF' Y on-balance sheet or off-balance sheet recognised netting) which are
rm QR (SIFER (2 PRk IR covered by recognised guarantees after the application of haircuts

required under the Banking (Capital) Rules. These exposures
exclude OTC derivative transactions and repo-style transactions and
credit derivative contracts.

& prffiA gt ﬁ%“*ﬁi*f”?@?) [P
iR e S
EQJI/ 7 2

2011
?EJ“F" Fu
% '000
=4 Corporate 492,780
2= Bank 451,368
FE Retail -
H ("1 Others -
944,148
35 [‘J?‘B?—“ﬁﬁﬁl?‘ﬁ{-ﬁi?‘ﬁ—iuﬁiﬁeﬂﬁ# 3.5 Risk assessment for corporate and bank exposures under IRB
%ﬁ”"‘“ﬁ f’ffl approach
R A SLE #2011 F 125311 IFil The tables below detail the Bank’s total EAD of corporate and bank
T A AR B AR R e exposures by exposure-weighted average risk-weight and
T ST SR S LT R Y exposure-weighted average PD for each obligor grade as at 31
%IA*ﬁ R - December 2011.
i
RS R R R g The EAD and PD disclosed below in respect of corporate and bank
-{»7y§JH 1EES béfp PR exposures have taken into account the effect of recognised netting

and recognised guarantees.

FWJ);«}FF;;[E# b IR -EFFEH:)JHZEI o For definition of each obligor grade, please refer to page 172.
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35 [J?B‘”&ﬁl SSHERE N f RS

AR (68)
(A) R (T

Ry FOR PR 67

Fmﬂggnjaﬁ;&;\gm

B

=

IR (3R]
R PR 67

2011 = 12 F] 31>

(continues)

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

ErEtf@e 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach

3.5 Risk assessment for corporate and bank exposures under IRB

approach (continued)

i E‘JET%*F‘.,‘;’}}%LE (A) Corporate exposures (other than specialised lending under

g) supervisory slotting criteria approach)
2011

"B e A AR B R R

R T 5 [T T KA

Exposure- Exposure-

Internal Exposure weighted weighted

Credit Grades at default average risk-weight average PD

R I FIfEs

H&é‘OOO % %

Grade 1 - - -

Grade 2 - - -

Grade 3 1,675,797 26.91 0.09

Grade 4 3,952,400 36.28 0.28

Grade 5 10,401,584 73.70 1.20

Grade 6 1,002,643 78.03 5.63

Grade 7 35,811 53.62 18.00

Grade 8 / Default 7,751 250.57 100.00

17,075,986

B B I

HEATIE Y

g (B R B

FF T €7 - il

f: | ig[ £ JET

(B) Corporate exposures (specialised lending under supervisory
slotting criteria approach)

There were no corporate exposures (specialised lending under
supervisory slotting criteria approach) as at 31 December 2011. The
supervisory rating grades and risk-weights of specialised lending are

,BW T F 7 SR <Q\Lﬁ§ffﬁ céelzjtlzrsmined in accordance with section 158 of the Banking (Capital)
+) [ 57158 1 SR T - '
(C) &L=k b (C) Bank exposures
2011
o R o R R R
Sl T 5 R T
Exposure- Exposure-
Internal Exposure weighted weighted
P ER (S s Credit Grades at default average risk-weight average PD
FIbE FIbE
|‘£ 000 % %
Grade 1 - - -
Grade 2 1,603,732 16.20 0.04
Grade 3 13,027,407 23.99 0.07
Grade 4 2,702,116 41.84 0.20
Grade 5 6,714 54.63 0.51
Grade 6 - - -
Grade 7 - - -
Grade 8 / Default - - -
17,339,969
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(continued)

I Jﬁ?ﬁ;;&ﬁl;@ﬁ;ﬁ;i F”lfl ErEtf@e 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach
y (continues)

36 3.6 Risk assessment for retail exposures under IRB approach

IA
‘J

PRI I TR
(IRR ff

W AffEt A S 2010 F 12 F] 31 F
FISE A ooy PRI S B 1R 6

The tables below show breakdown of retail exposures on a pool basis
by expected loss percentage (EL%) range as at 31 December 2011.

P pERIAE
ot R ey Residential mortgages
2011
ﬁ;fxra
H é’OOO
B442%1% Up to 1% 3,624,320
>1% > 1% 8,634
SBERS Default 675
3,633,629
ﬁ%’*ﬁé‘,f’ﬁﬁ%ﬁ Qualifying revolving retail
2011
ﬁfﬂa
H é’OOO
& %% 10% Up to 10% 674
>10% > 10% -
SR Default -
674
HEse Other retail
i
2011
T S
Igé’OOO
B %%=2% Up to 2% 2,543,957
>2% > 2% 223,090
SBLRY Default 2,213
2,769,260
%*F% HNT= 4 Small business retail
2011
ﬁfﬂa
H é’OOO
B4%1% Upto 1% 556,542
>1% > 1% 5,988
B Default 685
563,215
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(continued)

3T ﬂﬁmﬁﬁggﬁ§§fgﬁ$;‘kEulﬂé¥ﬁ*mﬁ 3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach
y (continues)
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3.7 Analysis of actual loss and estimates

The table below shows the actual losses which represent the net
charges (including write-offs and individually assessed impairment
loss allowances) made by each class of exposures under internal
ratings-based approach during the year.

2011

I£ 000

Corporate 2,408

Bank -
Residential mortgages to individuals and

property-holding shell companies -

Qualifying revolving retail -

Other retail to individuals -

Small business retail 49

2,457

The table below shows the expected loss which is the estimated loss
likely to be incurred arising from the potential default of the obligor in
respect of the exposure over a one-year period.

2010 12 A 31 H
31 December 2010

T

Expected loss

%EU’M T

‘000

Corporate 82,478

Bank 8,470
Residential mortgages to individuals and

property-holding shell companies 1,893

Qualifying revolving retail -

Other retail to individuals 9,622

Small business retail 649

103,112
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Chiyu Banking @eorporation Ltd.

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information
(continued)

3. Credit risk under the internal ratings-based approach
(continues)

3.7 Analysis of actual loss and estimates (continued)

The table below sets out the average actual default rate for the year
2011 compared against the estimated PD at 31 December 2010 of the
respective portfolio.

2011 =# R 2010 &F 12 7| 31 [!

During 2011 31 December 2010
RS THEh B
Actual default rate Estimated PD
TiEE i
% %
Corporate - 1.35
Bank - 0.32
Residential mortgages to
individuals and
property-holding shell 0.04 0.37
companies
Qualifying revolving retail - 1.33
Other retail to individuals 0.14 0.97
Small business retail 0.14 0.96

It should be noted that actual loss and expected loss are measured and
calculated using different methodologies compliant to relevant
regulatory and accounting standards, which are therefore not directly
comparable. The limitation arises mainly from the fundamental
differences in the definition of “loss”. The expected loss under Basel Il
which estimates the economic loss arising from the potential default of
the obligor by taking into account the time value of money and including
the direct and indirect costs associated with the recoveries on the credit
exposures, while actual loss is the net individually assessed impairment
charges and write-offs made during the year in accordance with the
accounting standards.

The actual default rate (actual PD) is measured by using the number of
obligors (for wholesale exposures) or number of accounts (for retail
exposures) defaulted whereas the estimated probability of default
(estimated PD) is the long run average default rate over an economic
cycle and is the estimated one-year forward-looking PD estimated from
the beginning of the reporting period.

Hence, actual PD in a particular year (“point-in-time”) will typically differ
from the estimated PD which is the “through-the-cycle” estimates as
economies move above or below cyclical norms.

The estimated PD is more conservative than the actual default rate for
all asset classes.
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4, Ee (fF[F'JTEﬁII@) SrEET pﬂrlé’“ 4. Credit risk under the standardised (credit risk) approach
&

41 %ﬁﬂfﬁﬂj?—“f—fﬁ%ﬁ (ECALl) ?‘fﬁk’eﬁﬁfﬁl 4.1 Ratings from External Credit Assessment Institutions (“ECAI")
=1
iﬁ‘img [ T E’ 7}— Nl?f The ECAIs recognised by the Bank include Standard & Poor’s, Moody’s
1@(%? B~ LI IHCE - ;% ﬁw%ﬂ i and Fitch. The Bank continues to adopt standardised (credit risk)
EREE ( IE”J’FL i ) “fFT L g\ (“STC”) approach based on external rating to determine the risk weight
bl ﬁ'ﬂl e s of the following asset classes of exposures:
- Sovereign

- Public sector entity
- Multilateral development bank

FEUEH (LAY (R E) HID) oY The Bank performs the ECAI issuer ratings mapping to its exposures in

ﬁ[ﬁ THIEAY @f@(‘* =] 7}?‘ L = the banking book in accordance with Part 4 of the Banking (Capital)

f ,{;Mﬁﬁlgg =N AL BRIV Rules.

g

4.2 %E'Jif‘liﬁﬁ%g 4.2 Credit risk mitigation

SPFEERA] 1@’“ (fg"] '?‘f‘a%)??ﬂiﬂmfj For credit exposures adopting STC approach, the main types of

PR B g > 2R UL b A i recognised collaterals include cash deposits, debt securities and shares

I FEA; f,i‘{l quf% =SS F“Fj?j k’/q& for non past-due exposures. In addition, real estate collateral is also

;‘"l o =9t s H'Iﬂj%’ﬁ‘ kT et e s recognised for past due exposures. Those collaterals taken by the Bank
Ji il }“ﬁplﬁ ztE\L.#FHH ;cplﬁ[ Fﬁl are compliant with the comprehensive approach in its treatment of
AR Gyt ) HED o ggﬁr SE recognised collateral for credit risk mitigation in capital calculation as

ﬂf;ﬁ%¢§y$ﬁﬁ ﬂﬁ].ﬁ:g? o S mentioned in the Banking (Capital) Rules. For credit exposures under

feaves (=9 Tﬁ"{EE,)a{-Fﬁfi [Jfgnjryr@ STC approach, the recognised guarantees for capital calculation

gqy SRR FE TR R qup,;n includes the guarantee given by sovereigns, public sector entities,
@F—'Fﬂ‘ b= I%F,J Iy e 5 multilateral development bapks with a onver risk weight than the
(b 1) 2385w LS T W 9 ?[F e counterparty, and corporate with external rating of A- or above.

tV.Aﬁ,I I—Fuﬂ i
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4. e ([FP]RM) FHEET pﬂrlé‘“ 4. Credit risk under the standardised (credit risk) approach
"R (D) (continued)
4.3 S RGN EYE (f Fg Bt ) ={-§T 4.3 Credit risk exposures other than securitisation exposures under
EE 3 pv['-ﬁ EVE B R the standardised (credit risk) approach
2011
R ﬁf‘f”l’f% R ERPRT
AREE % & e T B 7 FJE"#IFFIEI FETR = 51 5
Total Risk-weighted ﬁvg}rﬁp;} T EHT
Exposures Exposures after CRM* amount otal
exposures
covered by
recognised
Total guarantees or
exposures recognised
f%‘ﬁ*ﬁ;k’: ‘1\’%‘%%3 ’%’ﬁﬁﬁﬁ T’%’%ﬁﬁ covered by credit
recognised derivative
Rated Unrated Rated Unrated  collateral contracts
fﬁf‘—' Fu ﬁfﬁu T ﬁfﬁu Fu ﬁfﬁ“ 7 ﬁfﬁ“ 7 fﬁf‘—' 7 fﬁf‘—' 7
H i‘OOO H é’OOO H é’OOO H i’OOO H i’OOO H i‘OOO H i‘OOO
T PR On-balance sheet
o i exposures
Rk Sovereign 707,684 607,687 99,998 5,537 - - -
UETHTA Public sector entity - - - - - - -
2SR AL Multilateral
development bank - - - - - R R
Sl Bank 26,886 26,886 - 5,659 - - -
w5l Securities firm . . _ ; : :
e Corporate 765,232 566,062 197,996 283,031 197,996 1,174 -
TR Regulatory retail 107,085 - 103,728 - 77,796 3,356 -
Residential mortgage
i loans 14,388 - 14,388 - 7,194 - -
TR e R Other exposures which
PR s are not past due 98,573 - 85,733 - 85,733 12,840 -
T e pgE Past due exposures 4 - 4 - 5 R R
?*E% Fj I:Ftl?jm Total for on-balance sheet
o i e exposures 1,719,852 1,200,635 501,847 294,227 368,724 17,370 -
¥ fgﬁk’h‘ Off-balance sheet
i i exposures
Off-balance sheet
exposures other than
% 7} i Jﬁgr ?J OTC derivative
9 et i transactions or credit
derivative contracts 55,339 - 55,339 - 46,274 32,196 -
Wt T L OTC derivative
g7 transactions 8,704 - 8,704 - 7,899 - -
ik 1A Total for off-balance sheet
o i e exposures 64,043 - 64,043 - 54,173 32,196 -
JEGS (T s Total for
non-securitisation
exposures 1,783,895 1,200,635 565,890 294,227 422,897 49,566 -
M4y~ 2¥ 4 pIFPEY 4 Exposures deducted from
HIsps [ e Core Capital or
Supplementary Capital 11,419
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FET E\JIFIE\‘ 4. Credit risk under the standardised (credit risk) approach
(continued)

4.3 Credit risk exposures other than securitisation exposures under
the standardised (credit risk) approach (continued)

e i

L e

Exposures Exposures after CRM*  Risk-weighted amount Total exposures
covered by
recognised

Total  guarantees or
exposures recognised
&EFEI?& T %FEI{& %FEIE& T )EE; A% covered by credit
recognised derivative
Rated Unrated Rated Unrated collateral contracts
yﬁff’.ﬁrn iﬁﬂﬁﬁrn ﬁwf’.%rn ﬁpf{’;rn ﬂwn ﬁwf’.%rn ﬁwf’.ﬁrn
HK$'000 HK%’OOO HK&}S’OOO HK$’'000 HK& '000 HK$’'000 HK$’'000
On-balance sheet
exposures
Sovereign 1,647,209 1,947,887 - 15,813 - - -
Public sector entity - 77,354 - 15,471 - - -
Multilateral
development bank - - - - - - -
Bank 14,602,506 13,986,557 693,901 4,652,309 192,002 - -
Securities firm 64,326 - 9,134 - 4,567 55,192 -
Corporate 14,589,354 1,815,912 11,350,284 1,017,952 11,350,284 1,150,121 385,233
Cash items 148,258 - 148,258 - - - -
Regulatory retail 2,027,976 - 1,846,370 - 1,384,777 75,603 93,768
Residential mortgage
loans 5,002,678 - 4,909,387 - 2,502,711 16,345 76,945
Other exposures which
are not past due 2,045,157 - 1,942,910 - 1,942,910 102,246 -
Past due exposures 8,369 - 8,369 - 9,895 2,936 794
Total for on-balance sheet
exposures 40,135,833 17,827,710 20,908,613 5,701,545 17,387,146 1,402,443 556,740
Off-balance sheet
exposures
Off-balance sheet
exposures other than
OTC derivative
transactions or credit
derivative contracts 978,574 16,780 961,795 - 930,295 51,483 16,780
OTC derivative
transactions 200,417 151,461 48,956 75,730 48,661 - -
Total for off-balance sheet
exposures 1,178,991 168,241 1,010,751 75,730 978,956 51,483 16,780
Total for
non-securitisation
exposures 41,314,824 17,995,951 21,919,364 5,777,275 18,366,102 1,453,926 573,520
Exposures deducted from
Core Capital or
Supplementary Capital 24,524
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Chiyu Banking @eorporation Ltd.

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information
(continued)

5.

Counterparty credit risk-related exposures

The Bank’s counterparty credit risk arising from over-the-counter (“OTC”)
derivative transactions, repo-style transactions both in trading and banking
book is subject to the same risk management framework as mentioned in
Note 4 to the Financial Statements in this Annual Report. The Bank
establishes credit limit through formal credit approval procedures to control
the pre-settlement credit risk arising from OTC derivatives transactions and
settlement limit to control the settlement risk arising from foreign
exchange-related transactions in both the trading book and banking book.
The Bank monitors the risk exposure due to fluctuations in the market by
using the current exposure and the potential exposure value of the
transactions. Exceptions or excesses are timely and closely identified and
monitored by CMD.

Currently, the Bank uses the Current Exposure Method to measure and
monitor the counterparty credit exposures, which comprises current
exposures and potential future exposures.

The Bank establishes prudent eligibility criteria and haircut policy of debt
securities being pledged as collateral for repo-style transactions.

The Bank formulates policy for classification of credit assets according to the
PD of individual counterparty and the period of overdue. If there is objective
evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, impairment allowance
will be provided according to HKFRS and regulatory requirements.
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0y

5. % pLE= |

FIE'JYE?B@?FEIF{TEJ##% E3) 5. Counterparty credit risk-related exposures (continued)
5.1 % BB EE'J??B@??% 5.1 Counterparty credit risk exposures
RS A AL R B I R The following tables summarise the Bank’s exposures to counterparty
RYEUREE T SR T YN P credit risk arising from OTC derivative:
AR i
(A) gﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁlq@%ﬁﬁ‘* puT LB f];él (A) Counterparty credit risk exposures under the internal-ratings
£3 gﬁEﬁjs_s.f% based approach
2011
R
HK$'000
IR 2 OTC derivative:
AR i Gross total positive fair value 35,416
(5 TS B dE Credit equivalent amounts 173,564
Vil f?:ﬁ }“j#‘rﬁ[{, Less: Value of recognised collateral by type
- [’E?}‘ - debt securities -
- HpM - others -
[ﬁ ey gE Net credit equivalent amounts 173,564
I SR HH(5S szﬁ;'/{@'j’:‘v‘%}lﬁ‘}—f : Exposure at default by counterparty type
=4 Corporate 46,024
AL Banks 127,540
=5 Retail -
H f“j Others )
173,564
P12 phssr="2|1 53 W e s AR RE Risk weighted amounts by counterparty type
= Corporate 45,665
#l= Banks 32,388
e Retail -
E P Others -
78,053
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Chiyu Banking @eorporation Ltd.

Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information

(continued)

5. Counterparty credit risk-related exposures (continued)

5.1 Counterparty credit risk exposures (continued)

(B) Counterparty credit risk exposures under the standardised

(credit risk) approach

2011 2010
Hfﬁf&r Fu HAET L
HK$'000 HK$'000
OTC derivative:
Gross total positive fair value 4,987 36,739
Credit equivalent amounts 8,704 200,417
Less: Value of recognised collateral by
type
- debt securities - -
- others - -
Net credit equivalent amounts 8,704 200,417
Credit equivalent amounts net of
recognised collateral by counterparty
type
Sovereigns - -
Public sector entities - -
Banks - 151,460
Corporate 326 48,366
Regulatory retails 3,222 -
Other exposures which are not past
due exposures 5,156 591
Past due exposures - -
8,704 200,417
Risk weighted amounts by counterparty
type
Sovereigns - -
Public sector entities - -
Banks - 75,730
Corporate 326 48,366
Regulatory retails 2,416 -
Other exposures which are not past
due exposures 5,156 295
Past due exposures - -
7,898 124,391

There are no outstanding repo-style transactions under the standardised
(credit risk) approach as at 31 December 2011.

There is no effect of valid bilateral netting agreement on the credit equivalent

amounts of the derivative transactions as at 31 December 2011 (2010: Nil).

There are no outstanding credit derivative contracts as at 31 December

2011 and 2010.
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(continued)

6. Asset securitisation

The Bank has not acted as an originating institution for issuance of securitisation

transactions business during the year.

The Bank has no securitisation exposure as at 31 December 2011 and 2010.

. Capital requirement for market risk

2011 2010
%Efﬁ‘—" Fu PEU?PU T
H 45’000 HK$'000
Under the standardised (market risk) approach
Foreign exchange exposures 46,613 40,366
Interest Rate exposures 2,149 2,571
Equity exposures -
Commodity exposures - -
Under the internal models approach
Foreign exchange exposures and general
interest rate exposures - -
Capital charge for market risk 48,762 42,937
. Capital requirement for operational risk
2011 2010
BT 7 HHFET T
HI&‘OOO HK$’000
Capital charge for operational risk 156,651 152,668

The Bank uses the standardised (operational risk) approach to calculate its

operational risk capital charge.
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Unaudited Supplementary Financial Information
(continued)

9. Equity exposures in banking book

Equity holdings in other entities are accounted for in accordance with the
underlying intentions of holdings at the inception of acquisition. The
classifications for equity holdings taken for relationship and strategic purposes
will be separated from those taken for other purposes (including capital
appreciation). Investments in equity shares which are intended to be held on a
continuing basis, but which do not comprise investments in associates, jointly
controlled entities or subsidiaries, are classified as available-for-sale securities
and are reported in the balance sheet as investments in securities.

For equity exposures in banking book other than associates, jointly controlled
entities or subsidiaries, the Bank applies the same accounting treatment and
valuation methodologies as detailed in the Notes 2.8(4) and 2.11 to the financial
statements. If additional investment is made subsequently such that an investee
becomes an associate, jointly controlled entity or subsidiary, then the investment
is reclassified in accordance with the Bank’s accounting policies.

Gains or losses related to equity exposures are summarised below:

2011 2010

T S fw T

IH;’OOO HK&S ‘000

Realised gains from sales 17,748 -
Unrealised gains on revaluation recognised in

reserves but not through profit or loss 2,272 1,869

Unrealised gains included in supplementary
capital 1,022 841
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FHESSIES Board of Management

= EEES Chief Executive

D HE NG Man Kung

F}’ﬁﬁ;ﬁﬂ Deputy General Manager

e CHAN Yiu Fai

ERIREAES Assistant General Manager

liir= o CHAN Kin Hing

BT L CHENG Pik Chuen

EE]!F?%TFFH The Consultant of Board of Directors
[@*ﬁh B TAN Khek Seng
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Branch Network

535 ¢
BRANCH (Br.)

FRE

HONG KONG ISLAND

H 1k 55 =
Central Br.

I=F =
North Point Br.

W55
Wanchai Br.

RO
Sheung Wan Br.

P os =
Western Br.

AP
Quarry Bay Br.

L[i{f‘"‘ I3

berdeen Br.

JuiE
KOWLOON

E PN
Hung Hom Br.

I 55 =
Kwun Tong Br.

BERHE TS
Sham Shui Po Br.

%*ej[%]}} i
San Po Kong Br.

iﬁ”’ﬁ"ﬂ“‘ﬁ}} I
Yau Ma Tei Br.

iFpHs e

Castle Peak Road Br.

iRy
Kowloon Bay Br.

ST

Tokwawan Br.

—
(%]
N i
=
[N
=]
w
=
QO
=]
o]
=

Lebily
ADDRESS

7 «ﬁH[ 78 9
;8 Des Voeux Road Central, Hong Kong

TS R E 390-394 B
590 394, King's Road, North Point, Hong Kong

AREiS Uisy fuﬁﬁr_ 1325 B
525 Hennessy Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

FHEN S 315 % 319 BRI 3 B

hop 3, G/F, Lee Fung Building, 315-349 Queen’s Road Central, Hong Kong

FIi&éI’F &ij‘ 1443 J‘?“—
443, Queen's Road West, Hong Kong

A F ORI R 967-967A B
567 967A King's Road, Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

Y 138-140 B
/F, 138-140, Aberdeen Main Road, Aberdeen, Hong Kong

SRR B 23-25 B
23-25, Gillies Avenue, Hung Hom, Kowloon

oI PR 5 42-44 B
42-44, Mut Wah Street, Kwun Tong, Kowloon

L‘HEJL/;';H; ,\ﬁ 1 235-237 ';FFF
235-237, Laichikok Road, Kowloon

TS f j’iﬂ;iﬁ?m-% L
61 63, Hong Keung Street, San Po Kong, Kowloon

R A 117-119 5F
117-119, Shanghai Street, Yaumatei, Kowloon

j hﬁ‘éﬁ [ [fl 226-228 B
G/F, 226-228 Castle Peak Road, Kowloon

R 10 B
G/F, Shop 10, Kai Lok House, Kai Yip Estate, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon

Jeit N 78 BRETN 11-13 PR
G/F, Shop 11-13, 78 Tokwawan Road, Kowloon

JuERR S MR 23 BERRE N[l -o 7 48 T03A B

Shop 703A 7IF., Tsz Wan Shan Shopping Centre, 23 Yuk Wah ST.,
Tsz Wan Shan, Kowloon
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TELEPHONE

2843 0187
2570 6381
2572 2823
2544 1678
2548 2298
2811 3131

2553 0603

2362 0051
2343 4174
2789 8668
2328 5691
2332 2533
2720 5187
2796 8968
27656118

2322 3313
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Branch Network (continued)

535 ¢
BRANCH (Br.)

Fohl
NEW TERRITORIES

FIFRS 5 =

Tuen Mun Yau Oi Estate Br.

B P
Kwai Hing Estate Br.

AN
Tai Po Tai Wo Estate Br.

Y el oy =
Belvedere Garden Br.

B2 N

Tsuen Wan Br.

NG TS bkl ]

Shatin Sui Wo Court Br.

Rl =
Ma On Shan Br.

i T 53 i

Sheung Tak Estate Br.

FIBIP 2

Lebily
ADDRESS

PO ST ™ 103-104 5F
Shop 103-104, G/F Restaurant Block Yau Oi Estate Tuen Mun, N.T.

COIESHEESIE SV I
Shop 1, G/F, Hing Yat House, Kwai Hing Estate, Kwai Chung, N.T.

Frp NN A 112-114 B

Shop 112-114, G/F., On Wo House, Tai Wo Estate, Tai Po, N.T.
P 2 WS (LGRS S S BEA

Shop 5A, G/F., Belvedere Square, Tsuen Wan, N.T

%F#?‘JL' [ 398 %*El‘t?ﬁ:@?ﬁ*?ﬁﬂiﬁ: 1% 1D iy

Shop 1 and 1D, Level 2, Discovery Park Commercial Centre,

Tsuen Wan, N.T.

FrRTDE K iy F7 S
Shop F7, Commercial Centre, Sui Wo Court, Shatin, N.T.

Y K LAY T FER L [5 18 313 bR

Shop 313, Level 3, Ma On Shan Plaza Bayshore Tower, Ma On Shan, N.T.

%ﬁ'ﬂ}[ﬁ Ol TR ) R L 238 PR
Shop 238, Sheung Tak Shopping Centre, Sheung Tak Est.,
Tseung Kwan O, N.T.

THE MAINLAND OF CHINA

T

Xiamen Br.

LSy
Xiamen Jimei Sub-Br.

G115

Fuzhou Br.

Hl@z”ﬁaflﬂm'ﬁa%% 861 Bf— £ 111-113 fit5n
Unit 111-113, 1/F, 861 Xiahe Road, Xiamen, Fujian Province, China

BRI 6 5 Vs 88 B

No.88 Jiyuan Road, Jimei, Xiamen, China

FIBSHEAI = P8 210 BEBBES— 8
1/F, International Bldg., 210 Wusi Road, Fuzhou, Fujian Province, China
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TELEPHONE

2452 3666
2487 3332

2656 3386

2411 6789

2413 8111

2601 5888
2640 0733

2178 2278

(86-592) 585 7690
(86-592) 619 3300

(86-591) 8781 0078



	Taxation in the consolidated income statement represents:
	2011
	2010 
	19. Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions
	20. Financial assets designated at fair value through profit or loss
	本集團及本銀行
	The Group and the Bank
	本集團
	The Group
	本銀行
	The Bank
	本集團
	The Group
	本銀行
	The Bank

	28. Other assets
	The Group
	The Bank
	The Group
	The Bank
	The Group and the Bank
	本集團
	本銀行
	The Group
	The Bank
	本集團
	The Group
	本銀行
	The Bank
	本集團
	The Group
	2011 
	2010 
	本銀行
	The Bank
	2011 
	2010

	39. Segmental reporting (continued)
	2011
	2010
	2011
	2010
	HK$’000
	HK$’000
	        9,967
	6,717
	Total
	Total



